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ANMNUAL REPORT

2006 LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Foundry Networks achieved a record-breaking year in 2006. We realized several major
milestones during the year including attaining the highest quarterly and annual revenue
performance in the company’s history. In addition, we began shipping our new router platforms
in early 2006 and by the end of the year they represented 13% of total revenues. Additionally,
we continued 1o grow our sales and R&ID infrastructure to support the higher revenue levels.

TECHNICAL LEADERSHIP

Foundry continues to advance with new technologies. In 2006, we began shipping our
next-generation MPLS routers and new enterprise-class wireless products, and we upgraded
our Layer 4-7 application switching portfolio with new switching modules.

We expanded our presence in the Service Provider market by introducing two families of
MPLS routers, the Netlron® MLX and Netlron® X MR —designed to provide customers
with both superior technology and appealing economics. These new routers will allow
service providers to build cost-effective, highly reliable service offerings for both residential
and enterprise customers. These platforms are among the highest performing in their market
and are among the price leaders in their categories.

BUILDING A STRONGER COMPANY

Over the past two years, Foundry has made a significant investment in its sales organization.

. Our sales organization has grown over 20% during 2006 and approximately 50% since we

began aggressively recruiting during the second half of 2004.This investment has been critical
to the overall success of the Company, and coupled with the new products we've introduced
in 2005 and 2006, has been key 1o the record breaking revenue we achieved last year.

As we've broadened our sales footprint and brought industry leading products to market,
our customer base has rapidly expanded. In 2006, we shipped products to approximately
1400 new customers, complimenting our already expansive base of enterprise and service
provider customers.

BUSINESS VALUE TODAY AND TOMORROW

Foundry Networks delivered solid financial performance in 2006. We achieved record
breaking revenues, improved our revenue per employee and added $140M of cash to our
debt-free balance sheet.

THE POWER OF PERFORMANCE

Looking toward the future, I believe the data networking market will be an exciting market for
the next several years, driven by traffic growth, the convergence of data and voice, and the need
for bewter solutons to address the evolving needs of enterprises and service providers.

In 2007, our goals include building our brand, expanding our breadth of products, and increasing
our installed base of leading enterprise and service provider customers. Qur continuing goals
also include creating innovative products that deliver rich feature sets and industry-leading
performance. Our strong balance sheet should allow us to continue investing in our corporate
infrastructure, which should create the necessary scale and depth to capitalize on exciting market
opportunities ahead.

Thank you for your continued support of Foundry Networks.

Bobby R. Johnson, Jr.
CEO and President
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In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Actual results may differ materially
from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including, but not limited to,
those discussed in the sections entitled “Business — Research and Development,” *“Business — Competition,”
“Business — Inteilectual Property,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Cperations,” and “Risk Factors.” Readers are cautioned to not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements, which reflect management’s opinions only as of the date hereof. Foundry Networks, Inc., together with
its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively “we” or “us” or “Foundry”), undertakes no obligation to revise or
publicly release the results of any revision to these forward-looking statements. Readers should carefully review the
risk factors described in this document and in other documents we file from time to time with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q to be filed in fiscal year 2007. All public
reports filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”} are available free of charge on our
website at www.foundrynetworks.com or from the SEC at www.sec.gov as soon as practicable after we file such
reports with the SEC.

Explanatory Note

In Jupe 2006, cur Board of Directors formed a Special Committee of the Audit Committee (“Special
Commitiee”) to conduct an independent review of our historical stock option granting practices. On September 22,
2006, we announced that (i) the Special Committee had preliminarily concluded that the actual accounting
measurement dates for certain stock option graats likely differed from the recorded grant dates for such awards; and
(i1) we had concluded that the financial statements issued by us relating to periods beginning on or after January 1,
2000 should not be relied upon. On January 22, 2007, we announced the conclusion of the Special Committee’s
investigation and its findings. We also announced that our financial statements for the fiscal years 1999 through
2005 would be restated.

As a result of the independent investigation, we have concluded, and the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors agrees, that incorrect measurement dates were vsed for financial accounting purposes for certain stock
option grants made in prior periods. Therefore, we have recorded additional stock-based compensation expense and
related charges, including tax effects, with regard to past stock option grants. We are restating previously filed
financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These adjustments, after tax, resulted in an aggregate
stock-based compensation charge of $102.5 million recorded in fiscal years 1999 through 2005.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we are restating our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. In addition, we are restating the unaudited quarterly financial
information and financial statements for interim periods of 2005, and vnaudited condensed financial statements for
the three months ended March 31, 2006. This restatement is more fully described in Note 3, “Restatement
of Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements and in Item 7, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

This report also reflects the restatement of “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” in Item 6 for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and the restatement of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004,

Financial information included in the Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and
Current Reports on Form 8-K filed by us prior to September 22, 2006, the related opinions of our independent
registered public accounting firm, and all earnings press releases and similar communications issued by the
Company prior to September 22, 2006, should not be relied upon and are superseded in their entirety by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on or
after September 22, 2006.




PART 1

Item 1. Business.
Overview

Foundry Networks, Inc., a Delaware corporation founded in 1996, designs, develops, manufactures, markets
and sells solutions to meet the needs of high-performance network infrastructures for Layer 2-7 switching and
routing, wired and wireless local area networks (LANs), metropolitan area networks (MANS), wide area networks
(WANs), and other infrastructure of the Internet. We sell a wide variety of fixed configuration switches and modular
platforms, referred to as chassis. Our product breadth allows us to offer end-to-end solutions within and throughout
a customer’s networking infrastructure, regardless of the geographically dispersed nature of the entire organization.
Our products can be found from the wireless access points and wiring closets connecting the desktops together
within an enterprise, to the mission critical LAN backbone and data center. We provide robust and high-
performance routing solutions from the Internet core to the edge of Internet data centers and a customer’s network
of web and application servers. Our Layer 2 and Layer 3 switches provide the intelligence, speed and cost
effectiveness required to support the increasing use of bandwidth-intensive and Internet-based applications. Our
high-performance Internet traffic management systems with network intelligence capabilities allow enterprises and
service providers to build highly available network infrastructures that efficiently direct the flow of traffic. Our
Metro routers are designed to deliver the capabilities and performance needed to provide efficient and reliable
routing services to Internet data centers around the world,

Our networking products have been deployed in key enterprise, service provider, and High Performance
Computing (HPC) markets that include automotive, energy, retail, healthcare, banking, trading, insurance,
aerospace, government agencies, technology, motion pictures, video and animation, transportation, e-commerce,
and universities. For enterprises, we provide a complete end-to-end solution with our Fastlron®, Securelron®,
Fastlron Edge®, Fastlron Workgroup®, IronPoint™, Netlron™, Biglron®, Serverlron®, and Edgelron™ product
lines. Qur enterprise portfolio of products, combined with our network management and security tools, meets the
needs for wireless access, wiring closet, VoIP. data center. WAN access and campus solutions. Our products support
a wide array of interfaces such as wireless, 10/100/1000 Ethernet, | GbE (copper and fiber), 10GbE (10GbE) and
Packet over SONET so that our customers can leverage their existing infrastructures. Our service provider markets
include Metro service providers, Internet service providers, web hosting and Internet data centers, application
service providers, and Internet exchanges. For service providers, we offer our high-performance Biglron switches,
Netlron® Metro routers, and Serverlron web switches. Qur switching and routing products can be managed with our
IronView® Network Manager products. We sell our products through a direct sales force. resellers and OEM
partners. By providing high levels of performance and intelligence capabilities at competitive price points, we
provide comprehensive solutions to address the enterprise and service provider markets.

Market Trends and Business Drivers

The Ethernet switching and routing market appears to be poised for growth. According to the 2006 Ethernet
Switch Five Year Forecast Report, published by an independent research firm, Dell’Oro, the Ethernet switch market
is expected 1o grow steadily over the next five years. In addition, Dell’Oro has projected that 10GbE switch port
shipments will represent the strongest growth segment of the Ethernet switch market. 10GbE is an evolving
communication technology standard that enables data transmission speeds up to 10 billion bits per second.
Although 10GbE port shipments are expected to grow in the coming years, revenues may grow at a slower rate due
to pricing pressures from increased competition and rapid technological change.

Foundry was an early leader in bringing 10GbE products 1o market. Working closely with the Institute of
Electrical and Electronics Engineers standards body for 10GbE (I1EEE 802.3ae), we delivered what we belicve to be
the first Layer 3 10GbE switch in2001. By focusing on the more sophisticated features available at Layer 3 of the
Open Systems Interconnect (OSI) model for data networking, we believe we delivered a higher performing |0GbE
solution than competitors who merely implemented Layer 2 switching. Since the introduction of our first 10GbE
switch product, we have continued to bring new 10GbE products and solutions to market. Our roster of 10GbE
customers includes the banking, university, health care, government, manufacturing and entertainment industries.
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and service providers across the globe. 10GbE is the highest-speed Ethernet available today. 10GbE offers the
potential to unify and simplify networking on a global scale with all the benefits and cost efficiencies of Ethernet.

In addition to the need for high—performance, high-reliability, and high-availability networking solutions,
today’s enterprises and service providers are facing business drivers that place new demands on their networks.
These drivers include: ’

» Convergence
* Mobility
* Security

Convergence — Although convergence primarily refers to using the same network for data, voice, and video,
it also refers to the demands placed on networks that support mission-critical applications such as accounting, order
fulfillment, and other business processes. As businesses seek to accommodate network user needs, adding
bandwidth alone is not an adequate solution. Not only have the types of traffic proliferated, but different
applications require different levels of network service. This need is addressed by application switching, also
known as Layer 4-7 switching. Application switches extend their features and functions by examining data in
Layers 4 through 7 of the OSI model. Not only does a Layer 4-7 switch provide benefits such as optimization of
computing resources, it can also provide critical protection from external threats such as denial of service (DoS)
attacks and address costly nuisances such as unwanted email solicitations, sometimes called “spam email.” This
business driver fuels demand for additional features and functions that networks can perform. Supplying these
features and functions has the potential to be a significant differentiator in the market.

Mobility — Wireless networking has rapidly gained acceptance in the market place. Wireless networking
provides many benefits, including coverage of areas that would be difficult to cable and simplification of changes
when personnel move within an organization. On the horizon is the larger opportunity of mobility. Whereas wireless
networking focused on lowering the total cost of ownership, mobility seeks to enhance return on investment. With
advanced features and functions, mobility will enable businesses to achieve productivity gains by seamlessly
extending productivity tools to multiple locations. This business driver fuels demand for integration in wired and
wireless networking. A company that has considerable expertise in switch and routing has a competitive advantage
over providers of wireless devices to the extent that it can offer a superior integrated solution.

Security -— In today’s business environment, perimeter defenses such as firewalls and intrusion detection are
no longer adequate to address security needs. Security measures must now take into account internal threats,
network admission control, anomaly detection (non-business-related network usage such as music file sharing), and
compliance with policies and regulations. This business driver fuels demand for secure and highly reliable
networking that can support additional security features and functions.

Strategy

Our objective is to be a leading provider of next-generation, high-performance network solutions. We intend to
achieve this objective by providing a broad svite of the most cost-effective, highest-performing network switching
products. Key elements of our strategy include:

Continue to Deliver Products that Meet the Needs of the High-End Switching Market. We intend to
continue to broaden our high-end enterprise and service provider switch portfolio to meet customer needs for
greater bandwidth, more flexible interfaces, advances in Internet networking protocols, convergence, mobility, and
enhanced security. We intend to continue to offer value-added feature sets that provide for reliability, redundancy,
ease of use and management of the network, yielding a higher return on investment with a lower total cost of
ownership.

-’

We have introduced products that implement solutions in five strategic areas, and we intend to continue to
enhance our product portfolio in these areas:

= 10-Gigabit Ethernet — Our 10GbE solutions have achieved commercial success in the marketplace. Qur
10GbE customers include healthcare, government, research, university, and media organizations. As the
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boundaries of LANs, MANs and WANS continue to blur, companies will want to unify networks at a lower
cost, with few management and operational requirements. 10GbE addresses the key concerns facing
businesses today — the continued need for additional bandwidth while building a reliable network.
Foundry’s new 10GbE offerings include the Edgelron product family, FastIron Edge and X Series, Fastlron
SuperX Series, Biglron RX, Serverlron, Netlron XMR Series and Netlron MLX Series. The Fastlron
SuperX family of modular switches began shipping in 2006 and gained rapid acceptance as an edge
aggregation switch for both the traditional enterprise and VolP market segments. The Biglron RX modular
switch began shipment in July 2005 and delivered strong growth as an enterprise core router, high
performance computing core switch. and as a data center and infrastructure router for service providers.
The Netlron XMR Series and Netlron MLX Series were delivered for beta testing by service provider
customers in the fourth quarter of 2005. The introduction of these products is central to our strategy of
offering high performance Layer 2/3 10 GbE capable switches from the enterprise edge to the Internet core.

* Mobility — Our IronPoint™ family of wireless products delivers a complete solution for enterprises of all
sizes. This comprehensive wireless product family has been designed to meet current — and future —
mobility requirements and support a diverse set of environments. The IronPoint Mobility Series of
controllers and access points is designed to deliver best-in-class converged wireless performance in
high-density environments. For iron-tight security, the IronPoint Wireless Location Manager is designed
to protect enterprise networks from wireless security threats, such as rogue access points and unauthorized
users, by delivering real-time, location mapping of all wireless devices. The feature-rich IronPoint 200
Access Point is a cost-effective solution that allows enterprise networks to quickly and easily enable safe and
secure wireless access. The [ronPoint 200 Access Point can also be connected to the lronPoint-FES Wireless
Switch for enhanced management, mobility and security.

* Vbice-over-IP {VoIP) — An increasing number of enterprises are migrating to converged environments in
which voice, video, and data are carried by the same network to take advantage of valuable business benefits
such as reduced costs and increased productivity. A converged network needs a network foundation that
provides superior performance, high availability and secure, guaranteed voice quality. We deliver high-
performance networking products in our Fastlron Layer 2/3 enterprise switches and the tools necessary to
configure and optimize a converged environment with our IronView Network Manager system. Our
adherence to industry and international standards has been validated by our customers who have successfully
vsed a wide variety of IP phones from industry best-of-breed providers such as Avaya Inc., Cisco Systems,
Inc., Mitel Networks Corp., Nortel Networks, Shoretel Inc., and Siemens AG. In 2005, we delivered the new
chassis-based Fastlron SuperX and the stackable Fastlron Edge switch, each with support for both legacy
and industry standard 802.3af power over Ethernet, automated Quality of Service (QoS), redundant & hot
swappable power supplies, wireless mobility, and a range of VoIP security features. These provide customers
the technology needed to power new devices such as IP phones, optimize network performance, and manage
network resources. We intend to further develop and expand our networking and management offerings for
converged environments so that customers will have more options for efficiencies and productivity.

* Security — As networking has become an essential part of nearly all businesses, agencies, and organiza-
tions, security has become an integral part of designing and deploying today’s networks and data centers.
Organizations increasingly rely on [P networks to deliver applications that are critical to business produc-
tivity and profits. Securing this infrastructure against debilitating attacks from malicious users is necessary
to ensure sustained business operations. Mobility, convergence, and Web-centric applications are rendering
centralized security models ineffective. Today, organizations require distributed, network-wide, security
architectures to protect against threats from outside the network and to minimize vulnerabilities inside the
network. Furthermore, the line between Internet and intranet is fading fast as users become more mobile and
less identifiable. In such an open infrastructure, the threats are not concentrated at a single entry point at the
network perimeter, but are network wide. Attacks are also becoming more sophisticated and exploiting
application-level vulnerabilities to cripple critical IP services.

The foundation for our security model is our reliable, robust, high-performance security architecture. Our
architecture is based on our layered IronShield™ Security Model, with advanced device. network, and service
protection features. Our IronShield security is built on a highly reliable, robust, high performance network
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architecture that includes a range of embedded security solutions. Our packet processors are designed to deliver
integrated L2-4 security features, such as Denial-of-Service and CPU rate protection, protocol and spoof attack
protection, as well as hardware based access control lists and rate limiting features. Our products are architected
with embedded sFlow support, which allows Foundry switches and routers to simultaneously deliver wire-speed
packet forwarding and act as network sensors, delivering data in real-time to security apalytics products. Qur
IronView Network Manager (INM) can act as an sFlow collector, and convert this data for input and analysis by a
range of security products, including both signature and anomaly-based intrusion prevention system (IPS) and
network based analysis (NBA) solutions. IronShield security also includes a range of wireless security solutions,
including our RF sensor, which can detect and suppress rogue access points, together with our Wireless Location
Manager and Virtual Shield capability, which provides geographical wireless access security.

In 2005, we introduced the Securelron™ product family. Securelron traffic managers deliver high-perfor-
mance Layer 2 through 7 switching and security, enabling organizations to achieve a highly secure and scalable
network and application infrastructure. These security tratfic managers are designed to protect against network- and
application-layer threats network wide, at the network perimeter, inside the data center, and within the enterprise
LAN. The Securelron traffic managers are built for inline network-wide deployment to provide perimeter-like
security enforcement inside the LAN against threats within the enterprise network.

* Internet Protocol version 6 (IPv6) — Although interest in and adoption of IPv6 is gaining momentum in
international markets, we believe the widespread adoption of [Pv6 in the U.S. commercial sector is likely to
take several years. However, the U.S. federal government has made [Pv6 a requirement for its installations.
We deliver products that meet the requirements of IPv6 using a phased approach. In 2006, we delivered new
[Pv6 interface modules for the Biglron RX Series, Netlron MLX Series and Netlron XMR Series. We intend
to further develop and deliver IPv6 solutions.

Continue to Expand our Metro Router Capabilities to Address this Market and Deliver a New Level of Price/
Performance. We remain committed to the service provider and metro provider markets while growing our
enterprise business. As these markets regain momentum and growth, we are positioned to provide state-of-the-art
solutions. We have product offerings and planned enhancements for Multi-Protocol Label Switching, Virtual
Private LAN Services (VPLS), traffic engineering (TE)} and muitiplexing of different services over Virtual LAN
{VLAN). Qur superior wire-speed bandwidth and port density accommodate the most demanding metro area
networks with room for growth.

Continue to Leverage our Product Capabilities to Address Emerging Markets. Qur strategy is to position
ourselves to benefit from acceptance of Gigabit Ethernet in such environments as metropolitan area networking
(MAN), Gigabit Ethernet storage area networking (SAN), VoIP, and content distribution networks. As noted above,
the key advantages of | and 10 Gigabit Ethernet, such as price, simplicity and ease of use, will allow this technology
to migrate into many new adjacent markets over time. We work with select partners when additional non-network-
ing hardware or software is needed for solutions such as VoIP and SAN. This permits us to remain focused on
network infrastructure and provide complete solutions to our customers. We also intend to explore additional
preduct offerings in adjacent technologies that would benefit our installed customer base by providing case of
management, cost efficiencies, or productivity gains.

Continue to Deliver High-Performance Application Traffic Management Systems. We believe demand for
Internet traffic management intelligence capabilities will be a very important growth area for web-based businesses
and Internet service providers and an area of increasing importance to traditional enterprise networks. We intend to
continue improving the performancé and functionality of our Internet traffic management products. Designed to
provide the highest level of performance and network intelligence capabilities, our products are designed to enable
web-based businesses and Internet service providers to rapidly deliver new revenue-generating applications and
services to customers, while providing a high degree of service reliability.

Expand Global Sales Organization. We intend to continue the global expansion of our sales organization
utilizing a direct sales organization in the United States and abroad, strategic channel partners outside the United
States and select original equipment manufacturers. We intend to increase our worldwide sales force and establish
additional channel partner relationships to build a greater worldwide sales presence.
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Deliver World Class Service and Support. 'We intend to expand our service and support infrastructure to
meet the needs of our growing customer base. Our goal is to minimize our customers’ network downtime by
offering a wide range of service and support programs to meet individual customer needs, including prompt on-site
hardware repair and replacement, 24-hour, seven days-a-week web and telephone support, parts depots in strategic
global locations, implementation support, pre-sales service, system software and network management software
updates, and technical documentation updates.

Sales and MarKeting

Our sales strategy includes domestic and international field sales organizations, domestic and international
resellers, OEM relationships, and marketing programs.

Domestic field sales. Our domestic field sales organization establishes and maintains direct relationships
with key accounts and strategic customers. To a lesser extent, our field organization works with resellers to assistin
communicating product benefits to end-user customers and proposing networking solutions. As of December 31,
2006, our domestic sales organization consisted of 247 sales representatives and systems engineers.

Domestic resellers. Our domestic resellers include regional networking system resellers and vertical
resellers who focus on specific markets, such as small Internet service providers and the federal government.
We provide sales and marketing assistance and training to our resellers, who in turn provide first level support to
end-user customers. We intend to leverage our relationship with key resellers to penetrate select vertical markets.

International sales. Product fulfillment and first level support for our international customers are provided
by resellers and integrators. Please see “Risk Factors — Qur operations in international markets involve inherent
risks that we may not be able to control. As a result, our business may be harmed if we are unable to successfully
address these risks” As of December 31, 2006, our international field organization consisted of 121 sales
representatives and system engineers who conduct sales, marketing, and support activities. Our international
sales organization establishes and maintains direct relationships with resellers, integrators, and end-users. Our
export product sales represented 399 of net product revenue in 2006 and in 2003. Information on net product sales
to customers attributable to our geographic regions is included in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies,” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

OEM/Co-Branding. We have an OEM/co-branding relationship with Hewlett-Packard Company (HP). HP
markets and sells our products on a private label basis through their worldwide sales forces. Our agreement with HP
provides that they may postpone, cancel, increase or decrease any order prior to shipment without penalty.

Marketing programs. We have numerous marketing programs designed to inform existing and potential
customers, the press, industry standard analyst groups, resellers and OEMs, about the capabilities and benefits of us
and our products and solutions. Qur marketing efforts also support the sale and distribution of our products through
our field organizations and channels. These efforts include advertising, public relations, participation in industry
trade shows and conferences, public seminars, Webcasts, participation in independent third-party product tests,
presentations, and maintenance of our web site.

Customer Service and Support

Our service and support organization maintains and supports products sold by our field organization to end-
users. We provide 24-hour assistance, including telephone, and Internet based support. Our customer service
offerings also include parts depots in strategic locations globally, implementation support, and pre-sales service.
Our resellers and OEMs are responsible for installation, maintenance, and support services to their customers.

We provide all customers with our standard one or five year hardware and 90-day software warranty. Our
standalone switches in the Fastlron Edge, Fastlron Workgroup, and Edgelron product lines have a five-year
hardware warranty. We also have four levels of customer service offerings to meet specific support needs. Our
Titanium service program provides the most comprehensive support and includes on-site support and delivery by a
trained technician of a hardware replacement within two to four hours. Our Gold service program is targeted
towards customers who have trained internal resources to maintain their network 24x7. Our Gold program is
designed to provide all the tools needed by these trained resources to maximize the uptime of their network. Our
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Silver service program is tailored for customers who typically purchase spares inventory as part of their overall
contingency plan. Our Bronze service program is targeted towards budget conscious customers who are looking for
basic telephone and web-based support and run a 9 to 5 operation.

We have regional Centers-of-Excellence in Santa Clara and Irvine, California, Denver, Colorado, Chicago,
llinois, Boston, Massachusetts, New York City, New York, and Hemdon, Virginia. We also have
Centers-of-Excellence in Hong Kong, London, Munich, Tokyo and Toronto. These Centers-of-Excellence include
executive briefing centers and serve as major customer demonstration centers, regional technical support centers,
and equipment depot centers. Fully equipped to demonstrate our product lines, they also support interoperability
testing, provide hands-on training for customers, and showcase our end-to-end LAN, MAN and WAN solutions.

Significant Customers

Sales to our ten largest customers accounted for 29% and 30% of net product revenue for 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The loss of continued orders from any of our more significant customers, such as the United States
government or individual agencies within the United States government or Mitsui, could cause our revenue and
profitability to suffer. Sales to United States government agencies accounted for approximately 17%, 19% and 27%,
of our total revenue in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Please see “Risk Factors — We still depend on large,
recurring purchases from certain significant customers, and a loss, cancellation or delay in purchases by these
customers could negatively affect our revenue” and “— The Uniled States government is a significant customer and
has been one key to our financial success. However, government demand is unpredictable and there is no guarantee
of future contract awards.”

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, no customers accounted for [0% or more of our net
product revenue.

Manufacturing

We operate under a modified “turn-key” process, utilizing strategic manufacturing partners that are ISO 9000
certified and have global manufacturing capabilities. All designs, documentation, selection of approved suppliers,
quality control, and configuration are performed at our facilities. Our manufacturing operations consist of quality
assurance for subassemblies and final assembly and test. Our manufacturing process also includes the configuration
of products in unique combinations to meet a wide variety of individual customer requirements. We use automated
testing equipment and “burn-in” procedures, as well as comprehensive inspection and testing, to ensure the quality
and reliability of our products. Our approach to manufacturing provides the flexibility of outsourcing while
maintaining quality control of products delivered to customers. Because quality is a priority in our operations, we
have a quality council consisting of interdepartmental leaders that meet weekly to monitor quality and to drive
continuous improvement, The results of our enhancements are measured by several metrics, including the number
of events reported to customer support in relation to systems shipped.

We currently have four manufacturing partners. Celestica, Inc., located in San Jose, California, Flash
Electronics, Inc., in Fremont, California and Shanghai, China, and Proworks Inc, located in San Jose, California,
assemble and test printed circuit boards. Sanmina-SCI Corp., located in San Jose, assembles and tests printed circuit
boards and our backplane products. Celestica, Inc., Sanmina-SCl Corp., and Flash Electronics, Inc. have global
manufacturing facilities providing back-up capability and local content for foreign sales if required. We perform ‘all
prototype and pre-production procurement and component qualification with support from our manufacturing
partners. Our agreements with our contract manufacturers allow them to procure long lead-time component
inventory on our behalf based on a rolling production forecast provided by us. We may be contractually obligated to
purchase long lead-time component inventory procured by our contract manufacturers in accordance with our
forecasts although we can generally give notice of order cancellation at least 90 days prior to the delivery date. We
also have third-party QEMs such as Meru and Acton who manufacture some products that we purchase and resell
under the Foundry brand.

We design all ASICs, printed circuit boards and sheet metal, and work closely with semiconductor partners on
future component selection and design support. All materials used in our products are subject to a full qualification
cycle and controlled by use of an “approved vendor listing” that must be followed by our sources. We perform
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extensive testing of all of our products, including in-circuit testing of all printed circuit board assemblies, full
functional testing, elevated temperature burn-in and power cycling at maximum and minimum configuration levels.
Please see “Risk Factors — Our reliance on third-party manufacturing vendors to manufacture our products may
cause a delay in our ability to fill orders” for a review of certain risks associated with our manufacturing operations.

We currently purchase components from several sources, including certain integrated circuits, power supplies
and long-range optics, which we believe are readily-available from other suppliers. Our proprietary ASICs, which
provide key functionality in our products, are fabricated in foundries operated by, or subcontracted by, Texas
Instruments Inc., Fujitsu Lid., and Broadcom Corp. In addition, our newer product families integrate customizable
network processors from sole source suppliers such as Marvell. An alternative supply for these ASICs and network
processors would require an extensive development period. Please see “Risk Factors — We purchase several key
components for our products from sole sources; if these components are not available, our revenue may be adversely
affected.”

Research and Development

Our future success depends on our ability to enhance existing products and develop new products that
incorporate the latest technological developments. We work with customers and prospects, as well as partners and
industry research organizations, 1o identify and implement new solutions that meet the current and future needs of
businesses. Whenever possible, our products are based on industry standards to ensure interoperability. We intend to
continue to support emerging industry standards integral to our product strategy.

Our research and development operations involve development activities that utilize both custom and
commercial silicon, which enables us to quickly bring new products and features to market. We continue to
develop new switching solutions that provide new levels of performance, scalability, and functionality. We had
219 engineers at the end of 2006, compared to 204 engineers at the end of 2005. Our research and development
expenses were $70.7 million in 2006, $53.0 million in 2005 and $38.1 miltion in 2004, or 15%, 13% and 9%, of net
revenue in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Competition

We believe the key competitive factors that affect our markets are technical expertise, pricing, new product
innovation, product features, service and support, brand awareness, and distribution. We intend to remain
competitive through ongoing investment in research and development efforts to enhance existing products and
introduce new products. We will seek to expand our market presence through aggressive marketing and sales efforts.
However, our market continues to evolve and we may not be able to compete successfully against current and future
competitors.

The market in which we operate is highly competitive. For instance, Cisco Systems, Inc. (Cisco) maintains a
dominant position in our market and several of its products compete directly with ours. Cisco’s substantial resources
and market dominance have enabled it to reduce prices on its products within a short period of time following
introduction, which reduces the profitability of its competitors. Purchasers of networking solutions may choose
Cisco’s products because of its longer operating history, broader product line, and strong reputation in the
networking market. In addition, Cisco may have developed or could in the future develop new technologies that
directly compete with our products or render our products obsolete. We believe our technology and the purpose-
built features of our products make them unique and allow us to compete effectively against Cisco and other
competitors, Although we believe that we are currently among the top providers of networking solutions, there can
be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against Cisco, currently the market leader in network
infrastructure solutions.

In addition to Cisco, we compete against Extreme Networks, Inc., Juniper Networks, Inc., F5 Networks, Inc.,
Nortel Networks Ltd., Enterasys Networks Inc., 3Com Corp., Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd., Force 10 Networks
Inc., and Alcatel-Lucent, among others. Some of our current and potential competitors have longer operating
histories and substantially greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources, as well as greater name
recognition and larger installed customer bases than we do. Furthermore, companies that do not offer a directly
competitive product to our products could develop new products or enter into agreements with other networking
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companies to provide a product that competes with our products or provides a more complete solution than we can
offer. Additionally, we may face competition from unknown companies and emerging technologies that may offer
new LAN, MAN, and WAN solutions. As a resuli, we anticipate that we will have to continue to adjust prices on
many of our products to stay competitive. Please see “Risk Factors — Intense competition in the market for network
solutions could prevent us from maintaining or increasing revenue and sustaining profitability” and “— Qur gross
margins may decline over time and the average selling prices of our products may decrease as a result of competitive
pressures and other factors.”

Seasonality

We experience some seasonal trends in the sale of our products. For example, sales to the U.S. government are
typically stronger in the third calendar quarter and sales to European customers tend to be weaker in the summer
months.

Backlog

Our backlog generally represents orders for which a purchase order has been received for product to be shipped
within 90 days to customers with approved credit status. Purchase orders often include service contracts which are
also part of our backlog. Orders are subject to canceilation, rescheduling or product specification changes by the
customers. Although we believe that our backlog is firm, orders may be cancelled by the customer without penalty.
In addition, actual shipments depend on the manufacturing capacity of our suppliers and the availability of products
from such suppliers. For these reasons, we believe our backlog at any given date is not a reliable indicator of our
ability to achieve any particular level of revenue or financial performance.

Intellectual Property

Our success and ability to compete are heavily dependent on our internally developed technology and know-
how, Qur proprietary technology includes our ASICs and Field Programable Gate Arrays (“FPGA™s), as well as our
IronCore, JetCore, and Terathon hardware architecture, our lronWare software, our IronView network management
software, and certain system and mechanical designs. Different variations and combinations of these proprietary
technologies are implemented across our product offerings. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright,
trademark, and trade secret laws, as well as contractual restrictions on disclosure, to protect our intellectual property
rights in these proprietary technologies.

We provide software to customers under license agreements included in the packaged software. These
agreements are not negotiated with or signed by the licensee, and thus may not be enforceable in some jurisdictions.
Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights through confidentiality and license agreements, unauthorized
parties may attempt to copy, imitate, or otherwise obtain and use our products or technology. These precautions may
not prevent misappropriation or infringement of our intellectual property. Monitoring unauthorized use of our
products is difficult and the steps we have taken may not prevent misappropriation of our technology, particularly in
some foreign countries in which the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States.

The networking industry’s products are characterized by the need to conform with interoperability standards
which may be subject to patent claims. A number of companies in related industries with significant patent
portfolios have attempted to extract licensing revenue and our industry has been the subject of frequent infringe-
ment claims, and related litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. In addition, many
companies in the networking market have patent portfolios. As a result of the existence of a large number of patents
and rapid rate of issuance of new patents in the networking industry, it is practically impossible for a company to
determine in advance whether a product or any of its components may infringe intellectual property rights that may
be claimed by others. See [tem 3, “Legal Proceedings,” below for pending litigation related to intellectual property
matters and “Risk Factors — We may be subject to litigation risks and intellectual property infringement claims
that are costly 1o defend and could limit our ability to use certain technologies in the future. Additionally, we may be
found to infringe on intellectual property rights of others.”
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Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 8§16 employees, consisting of 428 in sales, customer service and marketing,
219 in engineering, 94 in manufacturing, and 75 in general and administrative. None of our employees is
represented by a labor union, with the exception of several foreign employees who are required by local country
employment laws to have labor union representation. We have never experienced a work stoppage and believe our
employee relations are good. Competition for technical personnel in the networking industry continues to be
significant. We believe that our success depends in part on our ability to hire, assimilate, and retain qualified
personnel.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

The matters relating to our Special Committee investigation into our stock option granting practices and
the restatement of our financial statements have exposed us to civil litigation claims, regulatory proceed-
ings and government proceedings which could burden Foundry and have a material adverse effect on us,

Since June 2006, we have been working to resolve issues associated with our stock option practices and
accounting. A Special Committee of the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors (“Special Committee™), with
the assistance of independent legal counsel, conducted an extensive review of our stock option practices covering
the time from our initial public offering in September 1999 through May 2006. The Special Committee concluded
that the actual accounting measurement dates for some stock option awards likely differed from the recorded
measurement dates for those awards. Subsequently, we determined that, for the period 1999 through 2005, we had
unrecorded non-cash equity-based compensation charges associated with our equity incentive plans. These charges
were material to our financial statements for the years 1999 through 2005. As a result, we are restating our historical
financial statements to record additional non-cash charges for stock-based compensation expense.

Qur past stock option granting practices and the restatement of our prior financial statements have exposed and
may continue to expose us to greater risks associated with litigation, regulatory proceedings and government
inquiries and enforcement actions. As described in Part I, Item 3, “Legal Preceedings,” several derivative
complaints have been filed in state and federal courts against our current directors, some of our former directors
and some of our current and former executive officers pertaining to allegations relating to stock option grants. The
SEC has initiated an informal inquiry into our historical stock option granting practices and we received a subpoena
from the United States Attorney’s Office for the Northern District of California for the production of documents
relating to our historical stock option granting practices, which could result in civil and/or criminal actions seeking,
among other things, injunctions against us and the payment of significant fines and penalties by us. We are
cooperating with the SEC and the United States Attorney’s Office for the Northern District of California, and expect
to continue to do so.

We' have not been in compliance with The Nasdaq Stock Market’s continued listing requirements and
remain subject to the risk of our stock being delisted from The Nasdaq Global Select Market, which
would have a material adverse effect on us and our stockholders.

Due to the Special Committee investigation and resulting restatements, we could not timely fite with the SEC
our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended June 30, 2006, September 30, 2006 and March 31, 2007,
and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. As a result, and as described in Part 1,
Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” we were not in compliance with the filing requirements for continued listing on The
Nasdaq Global Select Market as set forth in Marketplace Rule 4310(c)(14) and were subject to delisting from The
Nasdaq Global Select Market. With the filing of this Annual Report and our Quarterty Reports on Form 10-Q for the
periods ended June 30, 2006, September 30, 2006 and March 31, 2007, we believe we have remedied our non-
compliance with Marketplace Rule 4310(c)(14), subject to Nasdaq’s affirmative completion of its compliance
protocols and its notification of us accordingly. If, however, Nasdaq does not concur that we are in compliance with
the applicable listing requirements, our common stock may be delisted from The Nasdaq Global Select Market and
it would be uncertain when, if ever, our common stock would be relisted. If a delisting did happen, the price of our
stock and the ability of our stockholders to trade in our stock could be adversely affected and, depending on the
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duration of the delisting, some institutions whose charters disallow holding securities in unlisted companies might
sell our shares, which could have a further adverse effect on the price of our stock.

The process of restating our financial statements, making the associated disclosures, and complying with
SEC requirements are subject to uncertainty and evolving requirements.

We have worked with our independent registered public accounting firm and the SEC to make our filings
comply with all related requirements. Nevertheless the issues surrounding our historical stock option grant practices
are complex and the regulatory guidelines or requirements continue to evolve. There can be no assurance that
further SEC and other requirements will not evolve and that we will not be required to further amend this and other
filings. In addition to the cost and time to amend financial reports, such amendments may have a material adverse
affect on investors and common stock price and could result in a delisting of our common stock from The Nasdag
Global Setect Market,

A number of our current and former executive officers and directors have been named as parties to sev-
eral derivative action lawsuits arising from our internal option review, and there is a possibility of addi-
tional lawsuits, all of which could require significant management time and attention and result in
significant legal expenses.

We are subject to a number of lawsuits purportedly on behalf of Foundry against certain of our current and
former executive officers and board members, and we may become the subject of additional private lawsuits.
Subject to certain limitations, we are cbligated to indemnify our current and former directors, officers and
employees in connection with the investigation of our historical stock option practices and such lawsuits. The
expenses associated with these lawsuits may be significant, the amount of time to resolve these lawsuits is
unpredictable and defending these lawsuits may divert management’s attention from the day-to-day operations of
our business, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, business, results of operations
and cash flows.

Ongoing government inquiries relating to our past stock option practices may be time consuming and
expensive and could result in injunctions, fines and penalties that may have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

The inquiries by the Department of Justice (“DOJ”) and the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
into our past stock option practices are ongoing. We have cooperated with the DOJ and the SEC and expect to
continue to do so. The period of time necessary to resolve these inquiries is uncertain, and we cannot predict the
outcome of these inquinies or whether we will face additional government inquiries, investigations or other actions
related to our historical stock option grant practices. Subject to certain limitations, we are obligated to indemnify
our current and former directors, officers and employees in connection with the investigation of our historical stock
option practices, these DOJ and SEC inquiries and any future government inquiries, investigations or actions. These
inquiries could require us to expend significant management time and incur significant legal and other expenses,
and could result in civil and criminal actions seeking, among other things, injunctions against us and the payment of
significant fines and penalties by us, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, business,
results of operations and cash flow.

Intense competition in the market for networking solutions could prevent us from maintaining or
increasing revenue and sustaining profitability.

The market for networking solutions is intensely competitive. In particular, Cisco Systems, Inc. (“Cisco”)
maintains a dominant position in this market and several of its products compete directly with our products. Cisco’s
substantial resources and market dominance have enabled it to reduce prices on its products within a short period of
time following the introduction of these products, which typically causes its competitors to reduce prices and,
therefore, the margins and the overall profitability of its competitors. Purchasers of networking solutions may
choose Cisco’s products because of its longer operating history, broader product line and strong reputation in the
networking market. In addition, Cisco may have developed, or could in the future develop, new technrologies that
directly compete with our products or render our products obsolete. Although we are currently among the top
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providers of network infrastructure solutions, we cannol provide assurance that we will be able to compete
successfully against Cisco, currently the leading provider in the networking market.

We also compete with other companies, such as Extreme Networks, Juniper Networks, F5 Networks, Inc,,
Nortel Networks, Enterasys Networks, 3Com, Huawei Technologies, Force 10 Networks, and Alcatel-Lucent,
Some of our current and potential competitors have greater market leverage, longer operating histories, greater
financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources, more name recognition and larger installed customer
bases. Additionally, we may face competition from unknown companies and emerging technologies that may offer
new LAN, MAN and LAN/WAN sclutions. Furthermore, a number of these competitors may merge or form
strategic relationships that would enable them to apply greater resources and sales coverage than we can, and to
offer, or bring to market earlier, products that are superior to ours in terms of features, quality, pricing or a
combination of these and other factors,

In order to remain competitive, we must, among other things, invest significant resources in developing new
products with supericr performance at lower prices than our competitors, enhance our current products and
maintain customer satisfaction. In addition, we must make certain our sales and marketing capabilities atlow us to
compete effectively against our competitors. If we fail to do so, our products may not compete favorably with those
of our competitors and our revenue and profitability could suffer.

We must continue to introduce new products with superior performance and features in a timely
manner in order to sustain and increase our revenue, and if we fail to predict and respond to emerging
technological trends and customers’ changing needs, our operating results may suffer. '

The networking industry is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new product introductions,
changes in customer requirements, and evolving industry standards. Therefore, in order to remain competitive, we
must introduce new products in a timely manner that offer substantially greater performance and support a greater
number of users per device, all at lower price points. Even if these objectives are accomplished, new products may
not be successfu! in the marketplace, or may take more time than anticipated to start generating meaningful revenue.
The process of developing new technology is complex and uncertain, and if we fail to develop or obtain important
intellectual property and accurately predict customers’ changing needs and emerging technological trends, our
business could be harmed. We must commit significant resources to develop new products before knowing whether
our investments will eventually result in products the market will accept. After a product is developed, we must be
able to forecast sales volumes and guickly manufacture a sufficient volume of products and mix of configurations
that meet customer requirements, all at low costs.

The life cycle of networking products can be as short as 18 to 24 months. The introduction of new products or
product enhancements may shorten the life cycle of our existing products or replace sales of some of our current
products, thereby offsetting the benefit of even a successful product introduction, and may cause customers to defer
purchasing our existing products in anticipation of the new products. This could harm our operating results by
decreasing sales, increasing our inventory levels of older products and exposing us to greater risk of product
obsolescence. In addition, we have experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in developing and
releasing new products and product enhancements and in achieving volume manufacturing for such new products.
This has led to, and may in the future lead to, delayed sales, increased expenses and lower quarterly revenue than
anticipated. During the development of our products, we have also experienced, and may in the future experience,
delays in the prototyping of our ASICs, which in turn has led to, and may in the future lead to, delays in product
introductions.

We depend on large, recurring purchases from certain significant customers, and a loss, cancellation or
delay in purchases by these customers could negatively affect our revenue,

Sales to our ten largest customers accounted for 29% and 30% of net product revenue for 2006 and 2005,
respectivety. The loss of continued orders from any of our more significant customers, such as the U.S. government
or individual agencies within the United States government or Mitsui, could cause our revenue and profitability to
suffer. Qur ability to attract new customers will depend on a variety of factors, including the cost-effectiveness,
reliability, scalability, breadth and depth of our products.
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Although our financial performance may depend on large, recurring orders from certain customers and
resellers, we do not generally have binding commitments from them. For example:

« our reseller agreements generally do not require minimum purchases;
* our customers can stop purchasing and our resellers can stop marketing our products at any time; and

» our reseller agreements generally are not exclusive and are for one-year terms, with no obligation of the
resellers to renew the agreements.

Because our expenses are based on our revenue forecasts, a substantial reduction or delay in sales of our
products to, or unexpected returns from, customers and resellers, or the loss of any significant customer or reseller,
could harm our business. Although our largest customers may vary from period to period, we anticipate that our
operating results for any given period will continue to depend on large orders from a small number of customers. In
addition, a change in the mix of our customers, or a change in the mix of direct and indirect sales, could adversely
affect our revenue and gross margins.

The United States government is a significant customer and has been one key to our financial success.
However, government demand is unpredictable and there is no guarantee of future contract awards.

As part of the changing economic environment, the United States government has become an important
customer for the networking industry, and for us in particular, representing approximately 17%, 19% and 27% of
our total revenue for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The process of becoming a qualified government vendor,
especially for high-security projects, takes considerable time and effort, and the timing of contract awards and
deployment of our products are hard to predict. Typically, six to twelve months may elapse between the initial
evaluation of our systems by governmental agencies and the execution of a contract. The revenue stream from these
contracts is hard to predict and may be materially uneven between quarters. Government agency contracts are
frequently awarded only after formal competitive bidding processes, which are often protracted and may contain
provisions that permit cancellation in the event funds are unavailable to the government agency. Even if we are
awarded contracts, substantial delays or cancellations of purchases could result from protests initiated by losing
bidders. [n addition, government agencies are subject to budgetary processes and expenditure constraints that could
lead to delays or decreased capital expenditures in certain areas. If we fail to win significant government contract
awards, if the government or individual agencies within the government terminate or reduce the scope and value of
our existing contracts, or if the government fails to reduce the budget deficit, our financial results may be harmed.
Additionally, government orders may be subject to priority requirements that may affect scheduled shipments to our
other customers.

We may be subject to litigation risks and intellectual property infringement claims that are costly to
defend and could limit our ability to use certain technologies in the future. Additionally, we may be
found to infringe on intellectual property rights of others,

The networking industry is subject to claims and related litigation regarding patent and other intellectual
property rights. Some companies claim extensive patent portfolios that may apply to the network industry. As a
result of the existence of a large number of patents and the rate of issuance of new patents in the networking industry,
it is practically impossible for a company to determine in advance whether a product or any of its components may
infringe upon intellectual property rights that may be claimed by others. From time to time, third parties have
asserted patent, copyright and trademark rights to technologies and standards that are important to us. Third parties
may in the future assert claims or initiate litigation against us or our manufacturers, suppliers or custorners alleging
infringement of their intellectual property rights with respect to our existing or future products. We are committed to
vigorously defending ourselves against such claims. Regardless of the merits of our position, we have in the past
incurred, and may in the future incur, substantial expenses in defending against third party claims. In the event of a
determination adverse to us, we could incur substantial monetary liability and be required to change our business
practices. Either of these could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows,
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A number of companies have developed a licensing program in an attempt to realize revenue from their patent
portfolios. Some of these companies have contacted us regarding a license. We carefully review all license requests,
but are unwilling to license technology not required for our product portfolio. However, any asserted license
demand can require considerable effort and expense to review and respond. Moreover, a refusal by us to a license
request could result in threats of litigation or actual litigation, which, if or when initiated, could harm our business.

We are a party to lawsuits in the normal course of our business. Litigation in general, and intellectual property
and securities litigation in particular, can be expensive. lengthy and disruptive to normal business operations.
Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings are difficult to predict. We believe that we have defenses in the
lawsuits pending against us as indicated in Note 4, “Commitments and Contingencies — Litigation,” to Consol-
idated Financial Statements, and we are vigorously contesting these allegations. Responding to the allegations has
been, and probably will continue to be, expensive and time-consuming for us. An unfavorable resolution of the
lawsuits could adversely affect our business, results of operations, or financial condition.

If we fail to protect our intellectual property, our business and ability to compete could suffer.

Our success and ability to compete are substantially dependent on our internally developed technology and
know-how. Qur proprietary technology includes our ASICs, our IronCore, JetCore, and Terathon hardware
architecture, our IronWare software, our IronView network management software, and certain mechanical designs.
We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws and contractual restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual property rights in these proprietary technologies. Although we have patent
applications pending, there can be no assurance that patents will be issued from pending applications, or that claims
allowed on any future patents will be sufficiently broad to protect our technology.

We provide software to customers under license agreements included in the packaged software. These
agreements are not negotiated with or signed by the licensee, and thus may not be enforceable in some jurisdictions.
Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights through confidentiality and license agreements, unauthorized
parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our products or technology. These precautions may not
prevent misappropriation or infringement of our intellectual property. Monitoring unauthorized use of our products
is difficult and the steps we have taken may not prevent misappropriation of our technology, particularly in some
foreign countries in which the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States.

Our ability to increase our revenue depends on expanding our direct sales operations and reseller
distribution channels and providing excellent customer support.

If we are unable o effectively develop and retain our sales and support staff, or establish and cultivate
relationships with our indirect distribution channels, our ability to grow and increase our revenue could be harmed.
Additionally, if our resellers and system integrators are not successful in their sales efforts, sales of our products
may decrease and our operating results could suffer. Some of our resellers also sell products that compete with our
products. Resellers and system integrators typically sell directly to end-users and often provide system installation,
technical support, professional services, and other support services in addition to network equipment sales. System
integrators also typically integrate our products into an overall solution, and a number of resellers and service
providers are also system integrators. As a result, we cannot assure that our resellers will market our products
effectively or continue to devote the resources necessary to provide us with adequate sales, marketing and technical
support. Additionally, if we do not manage distribution of our products and services effectively, or if our resellers’
financial conditions or operations weaken our revenue and gross margins could be adversely affected.

In an effort to gain market share and support our customers, we may need to expand our direct sales operations
and customer service staff to support new and existing customers. The timing and extent of any such expansion are
uncertain. We currently outsource our technical support to a third-party provider in Australia to support out
customers on that continent. In the future, we may utilize third-party contractors in other regiens of the world as part
of our expansion effort. Expansion of our direct sales operations, reseller channels, and customer service operations
may not be successfully implemented, and the cost of any expansion may exceed the revenue generated.
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We are required to expense equity compensation given to our employees, which has reduced our
reported earnings, will significantly impact our operating results in future periods and may reduce our
stock price and our ability to effectively utilize equity compensation to attract and retain employees.

We historically have used stock options as a significant component of our employee compensation program in
order to align employees’ interests with the interests of our stockholders, encourage employee retention, and
provide competitive compensation packages. The Financial Accounting Standards Board has adopted changes that
require companies to record a charge to earnings for employee stock option grants and other equity incentives. We
adopted this standard effective January 1, 2006. By causing vs to record significantly increased compensation costs,
such accounting changes have reduced, and will continue to reduce, our reported earnings, will significantly impact
our operating results in future periods, and may require us to reduce the availability and amount of equity incentives
provided to employees, which may make it more difficult for us to attract, retain and motivate key personnel,
Moreover, if securities analysts, institutional investors and other investors adopt financial models that include stock
option expense in their primary analysis of our financial results, our stock price could decline as a result of reliance
on these models with higher expense calculations. Each of these results could materially and adversely affect our
business,

Because our financial results are difficult to predict and may fluctuate significantly, we may not meet
quarterly financial expectations, which could cause our stock price to decline.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results are difficult to predict and may fluctuate significantly from quarter
to quarter. Our ability 1o increase revenue in the future is dependent on increased demand for our products and our
ability to ship larger volumes of our products in response to such demand, as well as our ability to develop or acquire
new products and subsequently achieve customer acceptance of newly introduced products. Delays in generating or
recognizing revenue could cause our quarterly operating results to be below the expectations of public market
analysts or investors, which could cause the price of our common stock to fall. We continue our practice of not
providing guidance as to expected revenues for future quarters. In the future, we may begin to provide guidance
again, but could again discontinue the practice if we believe the business outlook is too uncertain to predict. Any
such decision could cause our stock price to decline.

We may experience a delay in generating or recognizing revenue for a number of reasons. Unfulfilled orders at
the beginning of cach quarter are typically substantially less than our expected revenue for that quarter. Therefore,
we depend on obtaining orders in a quarter for shipment in that quarter to achieve our revenue objectives. In
addition, our reseller agreements typically allow the reseller to delay scheduled delivery dates without penalty.
Moreover, demand for our products may fluctuate as a result of seasonality. For example, sales to the United
States government are typically stroﬁger in the third calendar quarter and demand from European customers is
generally weaker in the summer months,

Orders are generally cancelable at any time prior to shipment. Reasons for cancellation could include our
inability to deliver products within the customer’s specified timeframe due to component shortages or high priority
government orders that take precedence to commercial enterprise orders, as well as other reasons.

Our revenue for a particular period may also be difficult to predict and may be adversely affected if we
experience a non-linear, or back-end loaded, sales pattern during the period. We typically experience significantly
higher levels of sales towards the end of a period as a result of customers submitting their orders late in the period or
as a result of manufacturing issues or component shortages which may delay shipments. Such non-linearity in
shipments can increase costs, as irregular shipment patterns result in periods of underutilized capacity and
additional costs associated with higher inventory levels, inventory planning and management. Furthermore, orders
received towards the end of the period may not ship within the period due to our manufacturing lead times.

In addition, we may incur increased costs and expenses related to sales and marketing, including expansion of
our direct sales operations and distribution channels, product marketing, customer support, expansion of our
corporate infrastructure, legal matters, and facilities expansion. We base our operating expenses on anticipated
revenue levels, and a high percentage of our expenses are fixed in the short-term. As a result, any significant
shortfall in revenue relative to our expectations could cause a significant decline in our quarterly operating results.
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Because of the uncertain nature of the economic environment and rapidly changing market we serve,
period-to-period comparisons of operating results may not be meaningful. In addition, you may not be able 1o

. rely on prior results for any period as an indication of future performance. In the future, our revenue may remain the

same, decrease or increase, and we may not be able to sustain or increase profitability on a quarterly or annual basis.
As a consequence, operating results for a particular quarter are extremely difficult to predict.

We purchase several key components for our products from sole sources; if these components are not
available, our revenue may be adversely affected.

We purchase several key components used in our products from suppliers for which we have no readily
available alternative, or sole sources, and depend on supply from these sources to meet our needs. The inability of
any supplier to provide us with an adequate supply of key components, or the loss of any of our suppliers, may cause
a delay in our ability 1o fulfill orders and may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.
We believe lead-times for various components have lengthened as a result of limits on IT spending and economic
uncertainty, which has made certain components scarce. As component demand increases and lead-times become
longer, our suppliers may increase component costs. If component costs increase, our gross margins may also
decline.

Our principal limited or sole-sourced components include high-speed dynamic and static random access
memories, commonly known as DRAMs and SRAMs, ASICs, printed circuit boards, optical components, packet
processors, switching fabrics, microprocessors and power supplies. Proprietary ASICs used in the manufacture of
our products are purchased from sole sources and may not be readily available from other suppliers as the
development period required to fabricate our ASICs can be lengthy. In addition, our newer product families
integrate customizable netwark processors from sole source suppliers such as Marvell. We acquire these com-
ponents through purchase orders and have no long-term commitments regarding supply or pricing from these
suppliers. From time to time, we have experienced shortages in allocations. of components, resulting in delays in
filling orders. We may encounter shortages and delays in obtaining components in the future, which could impede
our ability to meet customer orders. Our proprietary ASICs, which provide key functionality in our products, are
fabricated in foundries operated by, or subcontracted by, Texas Instruments Inc., Fujitsu Ltd., and Broadcom Corp.
An alternative supply for these ASICs would require an extensive development period.

We depend on anticipated product orders to determine our material requirements. Lead-times for limited-
sourced materials and components can be as long as six months, vary significantly and depend on factors such as the
specific supplier, contract terms and demand for a component at a given time. Inventory management remains an
area of focus as we balance the need to maintain strategic inventory levels to ensure competitive lead-times with the
risk of inventory obsolescence due to rapidly changing technology and customer requirements, If orders do not
match forecasts, or if we do not manage inventory effectively, we may have either excess or insufficient inventory of
materials and components, which could negatively affect our operating results and financial condition.

Our reliance on third-party manufacturing vendors to manufacture our products may cause a delay in
our abhility to fill orders. s

Our subassemblies for certain products are manufactured by contract manufacturers. We then perform final
assembly and testing of these products. In addition, some Foundry-branded products are manufactured by third
party OEMs. Our agreements with some of these companies allow them to procure long lead-time component
inventory on our behalf based on a rolling production forecast provided by us. We are contractually obligated 1o
purchase long lead-time component inventory procured by certain suppliers and third-party manufacturers in
accordance with our forecasts, although we can generally give notice of order cancellation at least 90 days prior to
the delivery date. If actual demand for our products is below our projections, we may have excess inventory as a
result of our purchase commitments, We do not have long-term contracts with these suppliers and third-party
manufacturers.

We have experienced delays in product shipments from our contract manufacturers and OEMs, which in tum
delayed product shipments to our customers. In addition, certain of our products require a long manufacturing lead-
time, which may result in delayed shipments, We may in the future experience similar delays or other problems,
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such as inferior quality, insufficient quantity of product, or acquisition by a competitor or business failure of any of
our OEMs, any of which could harm our business and operating results. We intend to regularly introduce new
products and product enhancements, which will require us to rapidly achieve volume production by coordinating
our efforts with our suppliers and contract manufacturers. We attempt to increase our material purchases, contract
manufacturing capacity and internal test and quality functions to meet anticipated demand. The inability of our
contract manufacturers or OEMs to provide us with adequate supplies of high-quality products, the loss of any of
our third-party manufacturers, or the inability to obtain components and raw materials, could cause a delay in our
ability to fulfill orders. Additionally, from time to time, we transition, via our contract manufacturers, to different
manufacturing locations, including lower-cost foreign countries. Such transitions are inherently risky and could
cause a delay in our ability to fulfill orders on a timely basis or a deterioration in product quality.

Our gross margins and average selling prices of our products have decreased in the past and may
continue to decrease as a result of competitive pressures and other factors.

Our industry has experienced erosion of average product selling prices due to a number of factors, particularly
competitive and macroeconomic pressures and rapid technological change. The average selling prices of our
products have decreased in the past and may continue to decrease in response to competitive pressures, increased
sales discounts, new product iniroductions by our competitors or other factors. Both we and our competitors
occasionally lower sales prices in order to gain market share or create more demand. Furthermore, as a result of
cautious capital spending in the technology sector, coupled with more broad macro-economic factors, both we and
our competilors may pursue more aggressive pricing strategies in an effort to maintain sales levels. Such intense
pricing competition could cause our gross margins to decline and may adversely affect our business, operating
results or financial condition.

Our gross margins may be adversely affected if we are unable to reduce manufacturing costs and effectively
manage our inventory levels. Although management continues to closely monitor inventory levels, declines in
demand for our products could result in additional provisions for excess and obsolete inventory. Additionally, our
gross margins may be negatively affected by fluctuations in manufacturing volumes, component costs, the mix of
product configurations sold and the mix of distribution channels through which our products are sold. For example,
we generally realize higher gross margins on direct sales to an end user than on sales through resellers or to our
OEMs. As aresult, any significant shift in revenue through resellers or to our OEMs could harm our gross margins.
If product or related warranty costs associated with our products are greater than we have experienced, our gross
margins may also be adversely affected.

Weak economic and market conditions or geopolitical turmoil may adversely affect our revenue, gross
margins and expenses.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results may fluctuate due to the effects of general economic conditions in
the United States and globally, and, in particular, market conditions in the communications and networking
industries. Additionally, current politica! turmoil in many parts of the world, including terrorist and military actions,
may weaken the global economy. If economic conditions in the United States and globally do not improve, or if they
worsen, we may experience material negative effects on our business, operating results and financial condition.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to improve or even maintain our financial results or that economic
and market conditions will continue to improve and will not deteriorate.

We need additional qualified personnel to maintain and expand our business. If we are unable to
promptly attract and retain qualified personnel, our business may be harmed.

We believe our future success will depend in large part on our ability to identify, attract and retain highly-
skilled managerial, engineering, sales and marketing, finance and manufacturing personnel. Competition for these
personnel can be intense, especially in the San Francisco Bay Area, and we may experience some difficulty hiring
employees in the timeframe we desire, particularly engineering and sales personnel. Volatility or lack of positive
performance in our stock price may also adversely affect our ability to retain key employees, all of whom have been
granted stock options. In order to improve productivity, we have historically used stock options to motivate and
retain our employees. The additional compensation expense that must now be recognized in connection with grants
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of stock options may limit the attractiveness of using stock options as a primary incentive and retention tool. We
may not succeed in identifying, attracting and retaining personnel. The loss of the services of any of our key
personnel, the inability to identify, attract or retain qualified personnel in the future, or delays in hiring required
personnel, particularly engineers and sales personnel, could make it difficult for us to manage our business and meet
key objectives, such as timely product introductions.

Our success also depends to a significant degree on the continued contributions of our key management,
engineering, sales and marketing, finance and manufacturing persennel, many of whom would be difficult to
replace. In particular, we believe that our future success may depend on Bobby R. Johnson, Jr., our President and
Chief Executive Officer. We do not have employment contracts or key person life insurance for any of our
personnel.

Our operations in international markets involve inherent risks that we may not be able to control. As a
result, our business may be harmed if we are unable to successfully address these risks.

Our success will depend, in part, on increasing international sales and expanding our international operations.
Qur international sales primarily depend on our resellers, including Pan Dacom GmbH in Europe, Mitsui & Co. Lid.
in Japan, Stark Technology in China, and Samsung Corporation in Korea. The failure of our international resellers
to sell our products could limit our ability to sustain and grow our revenue. In particular, our revenue from Japan
depends primarily on Mitsui's ability to sell our products and on the strength of the Japanese economy. There are a
number of additional risks arising from our international business, including:

« seasonal reductions in business activity;

+ potential recessions in economies outside the United States;

* adverse fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

= difficulties in managing operations across disparate geographic areas;

* export restrictions;

* unexpected éhanges in regulatory requirements;

« higher costs of doing business in foreign countries:

= longer accounts receivable collection cycles;

= potential adverse tax consequences;

« difficulties associated with enforcing agreements through foreign legal systems;
+ infringement claims on foreign patents, copyrights, or trademark rights.
*» natural disasters and widespread medical epidemics:

« military conflict and terrorist activities; and

« political instability.

The factors described above could also disrupt our product and component manufacturers and key suppliers
located outside of the United States. One or more of such factors may have a material adverse effect on our future
international operations and, consequently, on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Generally, our international sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, an increase in the value of the
U.S. dollar relative 1o foreign currencies could make our products less competitive on a price basis in international
markets, We invoice some of our international customers in local currencies, which could subject us to fluctuations
in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the local currencies. See also Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk,” for a review of certain risks associated with foreign exchange rates.
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Due to the lengthy sales cycles of some of our products, the timing of our revenue is difficult to predict
and may cause us to fail to meet our revenue expectations.

Some of our products have a relatively high sales price, and their purchase often represents a significant and
strategic decision by a customer. The decision by customers to purchase our products is often based on their internal
budgets and procedures involving rigorous evaluation, testing, implementation and acceptance of new technologies.
As aresult, our sales cycle in these situations can be as long as 12 months and may vary substantially from customer
to customer. While our customers are evaluating our products and before they may place an order with us, we may
incur substantial sales and marketing expenses and expend significant management effort. Consequently, if sales
forecasted from certain customers for a particular quarter are not realized in that quarter, we may not meet our
revenue expeclalions.

As a result of our delayed filing of our periodic SEC reports, our inability to maintain our Form §-3
eligibility may adversely affect our ability to raise future capital or complete acquisitions.

As a result of our delayed filing of our quarterly and annual reports with the SEC, we will be ineligible to
register our securities on Form S-3 for sale by us or resale by other security holders until we have timely filed all
periodic reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for one year. In the meantime, if we use Form S-1 to
raise capital, our transaction costs could increase.

If we do not adequately manage and evolve our financial reporting and managerial systems and
processes, our ability to manage and grow our business may be harmed.

Our ability to implement our business plan and comply with regulations requires an effective planning and
management process. We expect that we will need to continue to improve existing, and implement new, operational
and financial systems, procedures and controls to manage our business effectively in the future. Any delay in the
implementation of, or disruption in the transition to, new or enhanced systems, procedures or controls, could harm
our ability to accurately forecast sales demand, manage our supply chain and record and report financial and
management information on a timely and accurate basis.

We had a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting in the past and cannot assure
you that additional material weaknesses will not be identified in the future. If our internal control over
financial reporting or disclosure controls and procedures are not effective, there may be errors in our
financial statements that could require a restatement or our filings may not be timely and investors may
lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could lead to a decline in our stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires us to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of the end of each year, and to include a management report assessing the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting in each Annual Report on Form 10-K. Section 404 also requires our
independent registered public accounting firm to attest to, and report on, management’s assessment of our internal
control over financial reporting.

In assessing the findings of our voluntary review of our historical stock option granting practices, our
management identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting that existed as of
September 30, 2006. The restatement of financial statements in prior filings with the SEC is a strong indicator of the
existence of a “material weakness” in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting. However,
we have concluded that the control deficiencies that resulted in the restatement of the previously issued consol-
idated financial statements did not constitute a material weakness as of December 31, 2006, because management
determined that as of December 31, 2006 there were effective controls designed and in place to prevent or detect a
material misstatement and therefore the likelihood of stock-based compensation, deferred compensation and
deferred tax assets being materially misstated is not more than remote.

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our
internal control over financial reporting will prevent ail error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will
be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the
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benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of
some persons, by collusicn of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. Over time, controls
may become inadequate because changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or
procedures may occur. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

As a result, we cannot assure you that significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal control
over financial reporting will not be identified in the future. Any failure to maintain or implement required new or
improved controls, or any difficulties we encounter in their implementation, could result in significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses, cause us to fail to timely meet our periodic reporting obligations, or result in material
misstatements in our financial statements. Any such failure could also adversely affect the results of periodic
management evaluations and annual auditor attestation reports regarding disclosure controls and the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and
the rules promuigated thereunder. The existence of a material weakness could result in errors in our financial
statements that could result in a restatement of financial statements, cause us to fail to timely meet our reporting
obligations and cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, leading to a decline in our
stock price. o

The timing of the adoption of industry standards may negatively affect widespread market acceptance of
our products. '

Our success depends in part on both the adoption of industry standards for new technotogies in our market and
our products’ compliance with industry standards. Many technological developments occur prior to the adoption of
the related industry standard. The absence or delay of an industry standard related to a specific technology may
prevent market acceptance of products using the technology. We intend to develop products using new techno-
logical advancements and may develop these products prior to the adoption of industry standards related to these
technologies. As a result, we may incur significant expenses and losses due to lack of customer demand, unusable
purchased components for these products and the diversion of our engineers from future product development
efforts. Further, if the adoption of industry standards moves too quickly, we may develop products that do not
comply with a later-adopted industry standard, which could hurt our ability to sell these products. If the industry
evolves to new standards, we may not be able 1o successfully design and manufacture new products in a timely
fashion that meet these new standards. Even after industry standards are adopted, the future success of our products
depends on widespread market acceptance of their underlying technologies. Attempts by third parties to impose
licensing fees on industry standards could undermine the adoption of such standards and decrease industry
opportunities.

If our products do not interoperate with our customers’ networks, installations will be delayed or
cancelled and could harm our business.

Our products need to interface with existing networks, each of which have different specifications and utilize
multipte protocol standards and products from other vendors. Many of our customers’ networks contain multiple
generations of products that have been added over time as these networks have grown and evolved. Our products
will be required to interoperate with many or all of the products within these networks as well as future products in
order to meet our customers’ requirements. If we find errors in the existing software or defects in the hardware used
in our customers’ networks, we may have to modify our software or hardware to fix or overcome these errors so that
our products will interoperate and scale with the existing software and hardware, which could be costly and
negatively impact our operating results. In addition, if our products do not interoperate with those of our customers’
networks, demand for our products could be adversely affected, orders for our products could be cancelled or our
products could be returned. This could hurt cur operating results, damage our reputation and seriously harm our
business and prospects.

21



If our products contain undetected software or hardware errors, we could incur significant unexpected
expenses and lost sales and be subject to product liability claims.

Our products are complex and may contain undetected defects or errors, particularly when first introduced or
as new enhancements and versions are released. Despite our testing procedures, these defects and errors may be
found after commencement of commercial shipments. Any defects or errors in our products discovered in the future
or failures of our customers’ networks, whether caused by our products or another vendors’ products, could result
in:

* negative customer reactions;

« product liability claims;

= negative publicity regarding us and our products;

» delays in or loss of market acceptance of our products;
* product returns;

« lost sales; and

*» unexpecied expenses to remedy defects or errors.

We may incur liabilities that are not subject to maximum loss clauses.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into purchase orders, sales contracts, and other similar contractual
arrangements relating to the marketing, sale, manufacture, distribution, or use of our products and services. We may
incur liabilities relating to our failure to address certain liabilities or inability to perform certain covenants or
obligations under such agreements, or which result from claims and losses arising from certain external events as
outlined within the particular contract. Such agreements may not contain, or be subject to, maximum loss ctauses,
and liabilities arising from them may result in significant adverse changes to our financial position or results of
operations.

Our products may not continue to comply with the regulations governing their sale, which may harm
our business.

In the United States, our products must comply with various regulations and standards defined by the Federal
Communications Commission and Underwriters Laboratories. Internationally, products that we develop may be
required to comply with regulations or standards established by telecommunications authorities in various
countries, as well as those of certain international bodies. Recent environmental legislation within the European
Union (“EU”) may increase our cost of doing business internationally as we comply with and implement these new
requirements. The EU has issued a Directive on the restriction of certain hazardous substances in electronic and
electrical equipment (RoHS) and enacted the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“WEEE") Directive to
mandate the funding, collection, treatment, recycling, and recovery of WEEE by producers of electrical or
electronic equipment into Europe. Under the RoHS Directive, specified electronic products which we placed on the
market'in the EU on or after July 1, 2006 were required to meet restrictions on lead and certain other chemical
substances. Implementation of the WEEE Directive in certain of the EU-member countries was delayed until a later
date. We are currently implementing measures to comply with the RoHS Directive and the WEEE Directive as
individual countries issue their implementation guidance. Although we believe our products are currently in
compliance with domestic and international standards and regulations in countries in which we currently sell, there
can be no assurance that our existing and future product offerings will continue to comply with evolving standards
and regulations. If we fail to obtain timely domestic or foreign regulatory approvals or certification, we may not be
able to sell our products where these standards or regulations apply, which may prevent us from sustaining our
revenue or maintaining profitability. Additionally, future changes in tariffs, or their application, by regulatory
agencies could affect the sales of some of our products.
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We may engage in acquisitions that could result in the dilution of our stockholders, disrupt our
operations, cause us to incur substantial expenses and harm our business if we cannot successfully
integrate the acquired business, products, technologies or personnel.

Although we focus on internal product development and growth, we may learn of acquisition prospects that
would complement our existing business or enhance our technological capabilities. Any acquisition by us could
result in large and immediate write-offs, the incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities, or amortization expenses
related to amortizable intangible assets, any of which could negatively affect our results of operations. Furthermore,
acquisitions involve numerous risks and uncertainties, including:

« difficulties in the assimilation of products, operations, personnel and technologies of the acquired
companies;

« diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

» disruptions to our operations, including potential difficulties in completing ongoing projects in a timely
manner,

* risks of entering geographic and business markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and
= potential loss of key employees of acquired organizations.

Although we do not currently have any agreements or plans with respect to any material acquisitions, we may
make acquisitions of complementary businesses, products or technologies in the future. We may not be able to
successfully integrate any businesses, products, technologies or personnel that might be acquired, and our failure to
do so could harm our business.

Our stock price has been volatile historically, which may make it more difficult to sell shares when
needed at attractive prices.

The trading price of our common stock has been, and may continue to be, subject to wide fluctuations. Our
stock price may fluctuate in response to a number of events and factors, such as quarterly variations in operating
results, announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors, changes in financial
estimates and recommendations by securities analysts, the operating and stock price performance of other
companies that investors may deem comparable, speculation in the press or investment community, and news
reports relating to trends in our markets. In addition, the stock market in general, and technology companies in
particular, have experienced extreme volatility that often has been unrelated to the operating performance of such
companies. These broad market and industry fluctuations may adversely affect the price of our stock, regardless of
our operating performance. Additicnally, volatility or lack of positive performance in our stock price may adversely
affect our ability to retain key employees, all of whom have been granted stock options,

Anti-takeover provisions could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to determine the
price, rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, of those shares without any further
vote or action by the stockholders. The rights of the holders of common stock may be subject to, and may be
adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. The issvance
of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of Foundry without
further action by the stockholders and may adversely affect the voting and other rights of the holders of common
stock. We have no present plans to issue shares of preferred stock. Further, certain provisions of our charter
documents, including provisions eliminating the ability of stockholders to take action by written consent and
limiting the ability of stockholders to raise matters at a meeting of stockholders without giving advance notice, may
have the effect of delaying or preventing changes in control or management of Foundry, which could have an
adverse effect on the market price of our stock. In addition, our charter documents do not permit cumulative voting,
which may make it more difficult for a third party to gain control of cur Board of Directors.
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Our operations could be significantly hindered by the occurrence of a natural disaster, terrorist acts or
other catastrophic events,

Our principal operations are susceptible to outages due to fire, floods, earthquakes, power loss, power
shortages, telecommunications failures, break-ins and similar events. In addition, certain of our local and foreign
offices, OEMs, and contract manufacturers are located in areas susceptible to earthquakes and acts of terrorism,
which could cause a material disruption in our operations. For example, we procure critical components from
countries such as Japan and Taiwan, which periodically experience earthquakes and typhoons. The prospect of such
unscheduled- interruptions may continué for the foreseeable future, and we are unable to predict either their
occurrence, duration or cessation. We do not have multiple site capacity for all of our services in the event of any
such occurrence. Despite our implementation of network security measures, our servers are vulnerable to computer
viruses, break-ins, and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with our computer systems. We may not
carry sufficient insurance to compensate us for losses that may occur as a result of any of these events. Any such
event could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

On September 5, 2006, we received a letter from the SEC Division of Corporation Finance requesting us to
provide it with our SFAS 5 analysis relating to our stock option practices. We expect to provide the SEC with the
requested information shortly after filing this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

24




Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters for corporate administration, research and development, sales and marketing, and manu-
facturing currently occupy approximately 110,000 square feet of office space in San Jose, California under lease
through May 2008 and 141,000 square feet in Santa Clara, California under lease through May 2010. We utilize the
San Jose location for our manufacturing operations and in early 2006 moved our corporate administration, research
and development, and sales and marketing functions to Santa Clara. We also tease space in various other geographic
locations, domestically and internationally, for sales and service personnel. In addition to smaller sales offices, we
have regional offices under lease agreements in the following locations:

Americas EMEA APAC

Irvine, California London, England Sydney, Australia
Denver, Colorado Paris, France Beijing, China
Atlanta, Georgia Munich, Germany Shanghai, China
Fort Lauderdale, Florida Milan, Italy Hong Kong, China
Honolulu, Hawaii Amsterdam, Netherlands Hyderabad, India
Chicago, Illinois Stockholm, Sweden Tokyo, Japan
Boston, Massachusetts Dubai, United Arab Emirates Auckland, New Zealand
New York City, New York Singapore

Dallas, Texas Seoul, South Korea
Houston, Texas Taipei, Taiwan

Herndon, Virginia
Tacoma, Washington
Sao Paulo, Brazil
Toronto, Canada
Mexico City, Mexico

We believe our existing facilities are adequate to meet current requirements, and that suitable additional or
substitute space will be available as needed to accommodate any necessary future expansion and for any additional
sales offices that may be needed. Our principal web server equipment and operations are maintained in our
corporate headquarters in Santa Clara, California.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Intellectual Property Proceedings. On May 27, 2003, Lucent filed a lawsuit against us in the United States
District Court for the District of Delaware alleging that certain of our products infringe four of Lucent’s patents and
seeking injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages. On February 6, 2004, we filed a lawsuit against Lucent in
the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division. The lawsuit alleged that certain
of Lucent’s products infringed one of our patents. On May 31, 2006, before either case went to trial, Foundry and
Lucent entered into a settlement agreement that resulted in a dismissal of all litigation pending between them, a
mutual retease, a cross-license, and a covenant not to sue extending into the future.

On June 21, 2005, Alcatel USA Resources, Inc. and Alcate! Internetworking, Inc., which are now subsidiaries
of Alcatel-Lucent (collectively “Alcatel-Lucent”) filed a complaint, and later, an amended complaint, seeking
injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages, against us in the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware. Alcatel-Lucent alleged that certain of our products infringed nine of its patents. Alcatel-Lucent also
sought a declaratory judgment that one of our patents was invalid and not infringed by Alcatel-Lucent. We
subsequently filed a counterclaim alleging infringement of our patent by Alcatel-Lucent. In February 2007, the
parties entered into a settlement agreement that resulted in a dismissal of all litigation pending between them, a
mutual release, a cross-license, and a covenant not to sue extending into the future.

As part of the May 2006 and February 2007 settlement agreements described in the two above paragraphs, we
made total payments of $8.4 million. Based on management’s judgment and the results of a third-party valuation
analysis, we recorded a $5.4 million charge in Other charges, net in the second quarter of 2006, The remaining value
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under these agreements represents consideration for license rights to current and future Alcatel-Lucent patents and
is amortized ratably over five years to the cost of product revenue. At December 31, 2006, the remaining value of the
May 31, 2006 settlement agreement was $1.5 million and is included in other assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. In addition, we have recorded a liability of $2.7 million in other accrued expenses at
December 31, 2006 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for the February 1, 2007 settlement agreement,

We also agreed to provide credits to Alcatel-Lucent in the sum of $2.0 million against future purchases of our
products and services at the rate of 25% of the invoice price until the $2.0 million of credits are exhausted. For the
year ended December 31, 2006, we have recorded a reduction of our total net revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income of $790,000 as a result of these credits. As of December 31, 2006 we recorded a
reduction in our deferred support revenue of $325,000 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for the
credits related to service contracts. The $325,000 represents a reduction in future revenue for unrecognized support
revenue.

On June 21, 2005, Enterasys Networks, Inc. filed a lawsuit against us (and Extreme Networks, Inc.
(“Extreme”)) in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts alleging that certain -of our

.products infringe six of Enterasys’ patents and secking injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages. On

August 22, 2003, we filed an answer denying the allegations. Discovery is ongoing. On November 3, 2005, the
Court severed Enterasys’ claims against us and Extreme into two separate cases. Currently, the Court is scheduled to
have a Markman claim construction hearing on October 15, 2007. Subsequently, the Court will set a trial date. We
are commitied to vigorously defending ourselves against Enterasys’ claims.

On September 6, 2006, Chrimar Systems, Inc. (“Chrimar”) filed a lawsuit against us in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan alleging that certain of our products infringe Chrimar’s
U.S. Patent 5,406,260 and seeking injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages. We filed an answer and
counterclaim on September 27, 2006. Subsequently, pursuant to an order of the Court, Chrimar identified claim 17
of the patent as the exemplary claim being asserted against us, No trial date has been set. We are committed to
vigorously defending ourselves against Chrimar’s claims.

Securities Litigation. 'We remain a defendant in a class action lawsuit filed on November 27, 2001 in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (the District Court) on behalf of purchasers of our
common stock alleging violations of federal securities laws. The case was designated as In re Foundry Networks,
Ine. Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, No. 01-CV-10640 (SAS) (S.D.N.Y)), related to In re Initial Public
Offering Securities Litigation, No. 21 MC 92 (SAS) (§.D.N.Y.}. The case is brought purportedly on behalf of all
persons who purchased our common stock from September 27, 1999 through December 6, 2000. The operative
amended complaint names as defendants, the Company and three of our officers (Foundry Defendants), including
our Chief Executive Officer and former Chief Financial Officer, and investment banking firms that served as
underwriters for our initial public offering in September 1999. The amended complaint alleged violations of
Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, on the
grounds that the registration statement for the initial public offering (“IPO”) failed to disclose that (i) the
underwriters agreed to allow certain customers to purchase shares in the [PO in exchange for excess commissions
10 be paid to the underwriters, and (i) the underwriters arranged for certain customers to purchase additional shares
in the aftermarket at predetermined prices. The amended complaint also alleges that false or misleading analyst
reports were issued and seeks unspecified damages. Similar allegations were made in lawsuits challenging over
300 other initial public offerings conducted in 1999 and 2000. The cases were consolidated for pretrial purposes.

On February 19, 2003, the District Court ruled on ali defendants’ motions to dismiss. In ruling on motions to
dismiss, the court must treat the allegations in the complaint as if they were true solely for purposes of deciding the
motions, The motion was denied as to claims under the Securities Act of 1933 in the case involving us. The same
ruling was made in all but ten of the other cases. The court dismissed the claims under Section 10(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 against us and one of the individual defendants and dismissed all of the Section 20(a)
“control person” claims. The District Court denied the motion to dismiss the Section 10(b) claims against our
remaining individual defendants on the basis that those defendants allegedly sold our stock following the IPO. The
stock sale ailegations were found sufficient for pleading purposes. A similar ruling was made with respect to 62
individual defendants in the other cases.
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In 2004, we accepted a settlement proposal presented to all issuer defendants. Under the terms of this
settlement, the plaintiffs are to dismiss and release alt claims against the Foundry Defendants in exchange for a
contingent payment by the insurance companies collectively responsible for insuring the issuers in all of the IPO
cases and for the assignment or surrender of control of certain claims we may have against the underwriters. The
settlement requires approval by the court. In September 2005, the District Court granted preliminary approval to the
terms of the settlement. The settlement must receive final approval from the District Court following notice to class
members and an opportunity for them and others affected by the settlement to object. On April 24, 2006 the District
Court conducted a fairness hearing on the settlement and heard arguments from both the plaintiffs and issuers in
favor of the setdement as well as from both the underwriter defendants and three individual objectors against the
settlement. While the court was considering final approval, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals vacated the class
certification of plaintiffs’ claims against the underwriters in six cases designated as focus or test cases. In re Initial
Public Offering Securities Litigation, 471 F.3d 24 (2d Cir. Dec. 5, 2006). Thereafter, on December 14, 2006, the
District Court ordered a stay of all proceedings in all of the lawsuits pending the outcome of plaintiffs’ petition to
the Second Circuit for rehearing en banc and resolution of the class certification issue. On April 6, 2007, the Second
Circuit denied plaintiffs’ petition for rehearing, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited
class in the District Court. Accordingly, the stay remains in place and the plaintiffs and issuers have stated that they
are prepared to discuss how the settlement might be amended or renegotiated to comply with the Second Circuit
decision. There is no assurance that the settlement may be amended or renegotiated to comply with the Second
Circuit’s ruling, and then approved. If the settlement is not amended or renegotiated and then approved, we intend to
defend the lawsuit vigorously. Because of the inherent uncertainty of litigation, however, we cannot predict its
outcome. If, as a result of this dispute, we are required to pay significant monetary damages, our business would be
substantially harmed.

In August and September 2006, purported Foundry stockholders filed two putative derivative actions against
certain of our current and former officers, directors and employees in the Superior Court of the State of California
County of Santa Clara. The actions were captioned Watkins v. Johnson, et al. (Case No. 1-06-CV 068878) and
Rosenbaum v. Johnson, et al. (Case No. 1-06 CV 071651). On December 27, 2006, pursuant to a Court Order, both
actions were consolidated into in re Foundry Networks, Inc. Derivative Litigation, Superior Court of the State of
California, Santa Clara County, Lead Case. No. 106CV071651 (the “Consolidated Action™). On February 5, 2007,
Plaintiffs served a Consolidated Amended Shareholder Derivative Complaint {the “CAC"). The CAC names 19
defendants and Foundry as a nominal defendant. In general, the CAC alleges that certain stock option grants made
by us were improperly backdated and that such alleged backdating resulted in alleged violations of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, the dissemination of false financial statements and potential tax ramifications.
The CAC asserts 11 causes of action against certain and/or all of the defendants, including, among others, breach of
fiduciary duty, accounting, unjust enrichment and violations of California Corporations Code Sections 25402 and
25403, On February 13, 2007, we filed a motion to stay the CAC pending resolution of a substantially similar
derivative action pending in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose
Division. On March 20, 2007, the Court granted the motion to stay.

On March 9, 2007, a purported Foundry stockholder served our registered agent for service of process with a
putative derivative action against certain of our current and former officers, directors and employees. The complaint
named Foundry as a nominal defendant. The action was filed on February 28, 2007, in the Superior Court of the
State of California, Santa Clara County, and is captioned Patel v. Akin, et al. (Case No. 1-07-CV 080813). The Parel
action generally asserted similar claims as those in the Consolidated Action. In addition, it asserted a cause of action
for violation of Section 1507 of the California Corporations Code. On April 27, 2007, Plaintiff Patel voluntarily
dismissed the Patel action without prejudice.

In September and October 2006, purported Foundry stockholders filed four putative derivative actions against
certain of our current and former officers, directors and employees in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California. The complaints named Foundry as a nominal defendant. The four actions were
captioned Desai v. Johnson, et al. (Case No. C-06-05598 PVT), McDonald v. Johnson, et al. (Case No. C06 06099
HRL), Jackson v. Akin, et al. (C06 06509 JCS) and Edrington v. Johason, Jr, et al. (C06 6752 RMW). On
December 8, 2006, the actions were consolidated into fn re Foundry Networks, Inc. Derivative Litigation, U.S.D.C,
No. Dist. Cal. {(San Jose Division), Case No. 5:06-CV-05598-RMW. A hearing on certain plaintiffs’ motion to
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appoint lead plaintiff and lead counsel was held on February 2, 2007, and, on February 12, 2007, the Court
appointed lead plaintiff and lead counsel. On February 15, 2007, Edrington v. Johnson, Jr., et al. was voluntarily
dismissed. Pursuant to a stipulation among the parties, on March 26, 2007, Plaintiffs filed and served a Consolidated
Derivative Complaint (the “CDC”). The CDC generally alleges that certain stock option grants made by us were
improperly backdated and that such alleged backdating resulted in alleged violations of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, dissemination of false financial statements and potential tax ramifications. The CDC pleads
a combination of causes of action, including, among others, breach of fiduciary duty, unjust enrichment and
violations of Sections 10(b), 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, On May 10, 2007 Foundry
filed a motion to dismiss the consolidated derivative complaint. Pursuant to a stipulation among the parties, the
individual defendants named in the CDC are not required to answer or otherwise respond to the CDC unless the
court denies Foundry’s motion to dismiss.

SEC Informal Inquiry. The SEC has initiated an informal inquiry into our historical stock option granting
practices. At the SEC’s request, we voluntarily produced certain documents to the SEC in this matter. We currently
are cooperating with the SEC and expect to continue to do so.

United States Attorney’s Office Subpoena for Production of Documents.  On June 26, 2006, we received a
subpoena from the United States Attorney’s Office for the production of documents relating to our historical stock
option granting practices. We have produced certain documents to the United States Attorney’s Office. We currently
are cooperating with the United States Attorney’s Office and expect to continue to do so.

The Nasdaq Stock Market Proceedings, Docket #5181N-06.  On August 14, 2006, we received a Nasdaq Staff
Determination letter indicating that we were not currently in compliance with Nasdaq’s listing requirements due to
the delayed filing of our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006. We have received similar Additional
Nasdaq Staff Determination letters with respect to our delinquent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods
ended September 30, 2006 and March 31, 2007, and our delinquent Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Upon our receipt of the August 14, 2006 Staff Determination Letter, we initiated an appeal with the Nasdaq
Listing Qualifications Panel (the “Panel”) and had a hearing with the Panel on September 22, 2006. On
December 12, 2006, we received a letter from The Nasdaq Stock Market, stating that the Panel had determined
to grant our request for continued listing on The Nasdaq Globa! Select Market subject to certain conditions, On
December 26, 2006, we filed an appeal of the Panel’s decision with the Nasdaq Listing and Hearings Review
Council (the “Listing Council”). In January 2007, we received letters from The Nasdaq Stock Market stating,
among other things, that the Listing Council would review the Panel’s December 12, 2006 decision and that our
shares would remain listed on The Nasdaq Global Select Market pending the Listing Council’s review.

On May 19, 2007, we received a decision from the Listing Council which granted us until June 11, 2007 to file
our delinquent periodic reports and restaternents, but which also provided that, if we did not meet this deadline, our
securities would be suspended from trading on The Nasdaq Global Select Market at the opening of business on
June 13, 2007.

On May 21, 2007, we submitted a request to the Board of Directors of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. (the
“Nasdaq Board™) that it cail for review the Listing Council’s May 19, 2007 decision and stay proceedings pending
the Nasdag Board’s review. On June 4, 2007, we received a letter from The Nasdaq Stock Market informing us that
the Nasdaq Board has called for review the Listing Council’s May 19, 2007 decision and has stayed the Listing
Council’s decision to suspend our securities from trading, pending consideration by the Nasdaq Board in July 2007.

We have filed this report with the SEC in an effort to resume our timely reporting and to meet Nasdaq’s
continued listing requirements, in order to maintain our listing eligibility on The Nasdag Global Select Market,

General. From time to time, we are subject to other legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of
business, including claims of alleged infringement of trademarks, copyrights, patents and other intellectual property
rights. From time to time, third parties assert patent infringement claims against us in the form of letters, lawsuits
and other forms of communication. In addition, from time to time, we receive notification from customers claiming
that they are entitled to indemnification or other obligations from us related to infringement claims made against
them by third parties. Regardless of the merits of our position, litigation is always an expensive and uncertain

28



proposition. in accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies (“SFAS 57), we record a liability when
it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. We
review the need for any such liability on a quarterly basis and record any necessary adjustments to reflect the effect
of ongoing negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other information and events pertaining to
a particular case in the period they become known. At December 31, 2006, we have not recorded any such liabilities
in accordance with SFAS 5. Further, we do not believe the outcome of legal matters pending against us would be
material. We believe we have valid defenses with respect to the legal matters pending against us.’

In the event of a determination adverse o us, we could incur substantial monetary liability and be required to
change our business practices. Any unfavorable determination could have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted 1o a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.
Price Range of Common Stock
Our common stock began trading on the Nasdagq National Market on September 28, 1999 and is traded under
the symbol “FDRY.” As of December 31, 2006, there were approximately 345 holders of record of the common

stock and 147,034,193 shares of common stock outstanding. The following table sets forth the high and low closing
sale prices of our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market for the periods indicated.

_High —_Low
2006
Fourth QUAaMET. . . . .. .ot $15.04  $12.06
THIird QUAFTEE . . . ottt et e $1343 $ 9.07
SECONA QUAIET . .\ o o« ot ettt et e et e e $17.78 § 9.85
FITSLQUATIET © . oo o ottt et ettt et e et ittt e $i8.16  $13.58
2005
Fourth QUATTET. . .. oottt ettt e e e e $14.61  $11.55
Third QUATTET . . .. oot e e $12.70  § 8.36
Second QUAMET . . o\ ot et e e $979 § 812
FAFSE QUAITET . . . . ot ottt e et e e e e e e n e e a e e e $12.51 % 990
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The following graph compares the cumulative 5-year total return to stockholders on our common stock relative
to the cumulative total returns of the NASDAQ Composite index and the NASDAQ Computer Manufacturers index,
The graph assumes that the value of the investment in our common stock and in each of the indexes (including
reinvestment of dividends) was $100 on 12/31/2001 and tracks it through 12/31/2006.
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Foundry Networks, Inc. .. 100 88 86 67 86 99 175 264 335 211 173 116 161 121 106 156 169 223 131 161 (34

NASDAQ Composite .. .. 100 97 78 63 72 70 86 95 107 107 109 102 117 108 111 1t7 121 131 122 125 137
NASDAQ Computer
Manufacturers . . . .. .. 100 91 74 57 67 68 8 95 109 109 112 99 115 107 109 106 107 117 103 117 135

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price
performance.

Dividend Policy

We have never paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently anticipate that we will retain our future
earnings and therefore do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Unregistered Securities Sold in 2006

We did not sell any unregistered shares of our common stock during 2006.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We do not have a stock repurchase program and did not repurchase any of our equity securities during the
quarter ended December 31, 2006.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data.

A Special Committee of our Audit Committee has completed an internal investigation of our stock option
granting practices since our tnitial public offering on September 27, 1999 through May 31, 2006. Based on the
results of this investigation, we have concluded that the accounting measurement dates for certain stock option
grants awarded during the fiscal years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005 differ
from the measurement dates previously used to determine stock-based compensation expense. Revising the
measurement dates for these grants resulted in a restatement for the seven fiscal years ended December 31, 2005.
We have determined that we should have recognized approximately $177.1 million of pre-tax stock-based
compensation expense that was not recognized in our previously issued financial statements, of which $175.9 mil-
lion relates to revised measurement dates. In addition, we should have recorded approximately $74.6 million of
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income tax benefits. The revised measurement dates and related tax benefits also resulted in restatement of the
December 31, 1999-2005 balance sheets. The restatement had no impact on our previously reported revenues for
any fiscal year. The restatement also had no impact on our previously reported cash positions as of any date.

The impact of the restatement, as discussed in the Explanatory Note on page 2 and in ltem 7, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” is set forth in the table below:

Summary of Stock Option Investigation Restatement

Decrease
. (Increase) to
Pre-Tax Income Total Capitalized in Retained
Fiscal Year Adjustments Tax Benefit(1) Impact Inventory(2} Earnings
1999 . . . ... e 5 03 $ (14 $ (1) 3 — $ a.n
2000 . ... . 38.0 (16.5) 21.5 — 215
2000 - 523 (21.1) 31.2 — 31.2
2002 ... 24.1 {9.6) 14.5 (0.3) 14.2
2003 ... 74.8 (30.1) 44.7 0.7 44.0
Subtotal . .. ........ ..., ........ 189.5 (78.7) 110.8 (1.0) 109.8
2004 . (17.1) 6.1 (11.0) 1.2 (9.8)
2005 ... 4.7 (2.0) 2.7 (0.2) 2.5
Total <o oo $177.1 $(74.6) $102.5 $ — $102.5

(1) Income Tax Benefit includes adjustments to reflect a previously unrecorded deferred tax benefit of approx-
imately $3.6 million to our “cheap stock™ compensation expense at the time of our initial public offering,
$1.8 million of which is associated with amortization of cheap stock in 1999.

(2) These amounts reflect the net effect of stock-based compensation cost capitalized in inventory. They represent
the net change to cost of product and service revenue by year based on the compensation cost incurred as a result
of the restatement and the respective inventory turnover in each affected period.
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The following table sets forth selected financial data for our last five fiscal years. You should read the selected
financial data set forth in the attached table together with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes,
as well as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gperations” contained
elsewhere in this report.

Year Ended December 31,
Consolidated Statements of Income Data: 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

As As As As
Restated(1)  Restated{l)  Restated(2)  Restated(2)
(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

NELTeVENUE . . . o\ vt e i iee e $ 4733 % 4039 § 40901 0§ 3996 § 300.7
Costofrevenue ...........cccouonnn.. 188.5 1554 143.2 1464 141.3
Grossmargin . ............ccc.uue... o 284.8 248.5 265.9 253.2 159.4
Operating expenses .................... 256.3 186.5 186.6 215.3 156.1
Income from operations . ................ 285 62.0 79.3 379 33
Interest and other income, net. . ........... 344 18.1 99 5.2 5.0

Income before provision for income taxes and
cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle. . ...... .. .. . o 62.9 80.1 89.2 43.1 B.3
Provision for income taxes . ... ........... 24.7 26.5 314 12.0 —
Net income before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle .......... 382 536 57.8 3l 83
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle, net of taxes . .. ....... ... .. .. 0.5 — — — —
Net income ............... P $ 387 $ 536 $ 578 $ 311 $ 83
Basic net income pershare. . ............. $ 027 $ 038 $ 043 $ 025 $ 007
Weighted-average shares used in computing

basic net income per share (in thousands) . . 145,167 139,176 135,442 125,681 120,204

Diluted net income per share (in thousands) .. $§ 026 §$ 037 $ 040 $ 023 § 0.07

Weighted-average shares used in computing
diluted net income per share . ........... 150,509 143,974 143,363 137,476. 123,630

{1} See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and
Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements of this
Form 10-K.

(2) The Selected Financial Data for 2003 and 2002 has been restated to reflect adjustments related to stock-based
compensation expense and the associated tax impact. See table below for additional information related to the
restatement of fiscal years December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Year Ended December 31,

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
AS As As 5
Restated(l)  Restated(2)  Restated(2)  Restated(2)
(In millions}

Cash, cash equivalents and investments . . . ... $ 8864 $746.4 $617.4 $505.7 $326.5
Working Capital ....................... 735.3 617.7 536.3 443.2 404.1
Total assets. . ........ . i 1,095.4 941.0 830.5 691.7 467.1
Long-term liabilities . .. ................. 239 21.8 17.6 . 1T —
Total stockholders” equity ................ 958.1 811.9 7227 622.1 413.7

32




(1) See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and
Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements of this
Form 10-K.

(2) The Selected Financial Data for 2004, 2003 and 2002 has been restated to reflect adjustments related to stock-
based compensation expense and the associated tax impact. See table below for additional information related
to the restatement of fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

The impact of the restatement and a comparison to the amounts originally reported are detailed in the table
below:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
As As As As
Consolidated Statements of Income Data Reported  Adjustments  Restated Reported Adjustments  Restated
{In millions, except share and per share amounts)

NELTEVENUE . . . oot vieen i e e $ 4039 $ — $ 4039 3 409. $ — % 4091
Costofrevenue . ................ 155.2 0.2 155.4 143.4 {0.2) 143.2
Gross margin . . ..........ov.n... 248.7 (0.2) 248.5 265.7 0.2 265.9
Operating expenses . ............. 182.2 4.3 186.5 202.3 (15.7) 186.6
Income from operations .. ......... 66.5 (4.5) 62.0 634 15.9 79.3
Interest and other income, net. . .. ... 18.1 — 18.1 9.9 — 9.9
Income before provision for income .

TAKES . ot r it s e e 84.6 (4.5) 80.1 73.3 15.9 89.2
Provision for income taxes ......... 28.5 (2.0) 26.5 253 6.1 31.4
Netincome .................... $ 561 $(2.5) $§ 536 % 48.0 $ 9.8 $ 578
Basic net income per share. .. ... ... $ 040 $ 038 §$§ 035 $ 043
Weighted-average shares used in

computing basic net income per

share (in thousands) ............ 139,176 139,176 135,445 135,442
Diluted net income per share . ... ... $ 039 $ 037 § 034 $ 040
Weighted-average shares used in

computing diluted net income per

share (in thousands) ............ 143,323 143,974 143,118 143,363
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December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

As As As As
Consolidated Statements of Income Data Reported  Adjustments  Restated Reported  Adjustments  Restated
{In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Netrevenue .. ........o.oouvvnn. $ 3996 $§ — % 3996 $ 3007 $ — 3 3007
Costofrevenue ................. 140.9 5.5 146.4 140.2 1.1 141.3
Grossmargin .. ................. 258.7 (5.5) 253.2 160.5 (L.1) 159.4
Operating expenses .............. 146.7 68.6 215.3 1334 22.7 156.1
Income from operations . . ......... 112.0 (74.1) 379 27.1 (23.8) 33
Interest and other income, net. . ... .. 5.2 —_ 5.2 5.0 — 5.0
Income before provision for income

XS . .o 117.2 (74.1) 43.1 321 (23.8) 83
Provision for income taxes .. ....... 42.1 (30.1) 12.0 9.6 (9.6) —
Netincome .................... $ 751 $44.0y $ 311 § 225 (142) % 8.3
Basic net income per share......... $ 0060 $ 025 $ 0.19 $ 007
Weighted-average shares used in

computing basic net income per

share (in thousands) ............ 125,133 125,681 119,482 120,204
Diluted net income per share . ... .., $ 055 $ 023 $ 0.8 $ 007
Weighted-average shares used in

computing diluted net income per

share (in thousands) , ........... 135,631 137,476 123,780 , 123,630

December 31, 2005
As As
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data , Reported Adjustments Restated
(In millions}
Cash, cash equivalents and investments . .............. .. ... ...... $746.4 5 — $746.4
Working capital. . ... o e 616.0 1.7 617.7
Total asSelS . . . . o it e e 921.9 19.1 941.0
Long-term liabilities . ... ... ... ... .. .. .. ... ... ... . 21.8 — 218
Total stockholders’ equity . ... .. .. ... ... . i 796.0 159 811.9
December 31, 2004
As As
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data Reported Adjustments Restated
(In millions)

Cash, cash equivalents and investments .. ......................... $617.4 $ — $617.4
Working capital . .. .. ... ... e 319.1 17.2 536.3
Total @S8EtS . . . o oo e e e 811.2 19.3 830.5
Long-term liabilities ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... . . . 17.6 — 17.6
Total stockholders’ equity .. .. ... .. ... . .. .t i 706.3 16.4 722.7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Working capital. . ... ... .. e
TOtal @SSELS . o v v vttt e e e e
Long-term liabilities .. ........ . ... . .
Total stockholders’ equity .. ... ... . i i e

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Working capital. . .. ... . e e
Total A8SEES . . . . oot
Long-term Liabilities ... ... ... . . i
Total stockholders’ equity . ... ... ... e

SFAS 123 Disclosure

December 31, 2003

AS As
Reported  Adjustments  Restated

(In millions)

$5057  $ —  $5057
430.0 13.2 4432
658.1 33.6 691.7
7.7 — 7.7
590.5 31.6 622.1

December 31, 2002

As As
Reported  Adjustments  Restated

{In millions)

$326.5 $ — $326.5
390.5 13.6 404.1
451.5 15.6 467.1
398.1 15.6 413.7

As a consequence of the adjustments discussed under the caption “Restatement of Previously-lssued Financial
Statements” in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
we recorded additional compensation expense to the pro forma information required to be disclosed under SFAS 123
in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” to Consolidated Financial Statements. In addition, in
August 2002, we announced a stock option exchange program, pursuant to which 5,744,500 options were cancelled
in September 2002 and replacement options were granted in March 2003. We determined that we underamortized
the fair value of the replacement options granted in our 2002 tender offer by excluding approximately $85.0 million
of unamortized fair value of the tendered grants and only including the incrementai fair value associated with the
March 2003 re-grant. The amount of pro forma stock-based compensation expense reported in the table below has
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been revised to reflect the total fair value of the tendered grants. The restated amounts are presented in the table
below {in millions except per share amounis):

2005 2004
. (As restated) (As restated)
o NeLInCOmME .. .. e e $ 536 $578
Add: '
Stock-based employee compensation expense (benefit) included in
netincome, netof tax . .. ....... ... .. ... ... i 2.9 (10.4)
Deduct:
Compensation expense determined vnder fair valve based method
for all awards, net of tax {(asreported) ... .......... ... ..., (44.5) (35.4)
Incremental compensation expense determined under fair value
based method resulting from correction of option grant dates . . . . 30 (4.0)

Incremental compensation expense determined under fair value
based method resulting from correction of other accounting
(1 0 - (19.5) (21.9)

l
|

Proformanetloss ........... . ... it 3 (4.5) $(13.9)
Basic earnings (loss) per share: _
Asreported . . . ... ... e $0.38 $043
Proforma . ........ ... ... . e $(0.03) $(0.10)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Asreported . . ... e $0.37 $ 040
PIO fOTIMIA - - v vttt e e e e - $(0.03) $(0.10)

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read
together with our consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Our actual results may differ materiaily from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as
a result of many factors, including, but not limited to, those discussed in “Item 1A — Risk Factors.” Readers are
caulioned to not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s opinions
only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these
Jorward-looking statements. Readers should carefully review the risk factors described in this document as well as
in other documents we file from time to time with the SEC. All public reports filed by us with the SEC are available
free of charge on our website at www.foundrynetworks.com or from the SEC at www.sec.gov as soon as practicable
after we file such reports with the SEC.

Restatement of Previously-Issued Financial Statements

In June 2006, our Board of Directors formed a Special Committee of the Audit Committee (*Special
Committee”) to conduct an independent review of our historical stock option granting practices. On September 22,
2006, we announced that (i) the Special Committee had preliminarily concluded that the actual accounting
measurement dates for certain stock option grants likely differed from the recorded grant dates for such awards; and
(ii} we had concluded that the financial statements issued by us relating to periods beginning on or after January 1,
2000 should not be relied upon. On January 22, 2007, we announced the conclusion of the Special Committee’s
investigation and its findings. We also announced that our financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 through
2005 would be restated.

As a result of the independent investigation, our management has concluded, and the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors agrees, that incorrect measurement dates were used for financial accounting purposes for certain
stock option grants made in prior periods. Therefore, we have recorded additional stock-based compensation
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expense and related charges, including tax effects, with regard to past stock option grants. We are restating
previously filed financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These adjustments, after tax, resulted in
an aggregate stock-based compensation charge of $102.5 miilion recorded in fiscal years 1999 through 2005.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we are restating our consolidated batance sheet as of December 31, 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, In addition, we are restating the unaudited quarterly financial
information and financial statements for interim periods of 2005, and unaudited condensed financial statements for
the three months ended March 31, 2006. This restatement is more fully described in Note 3, “Restatement of
Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

This report also reflects the restatement of “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” in [tem 6 for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and the restatement of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004.

Financial information included in the Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and
Current Reports on Form $-K filed by us prior to September 22, 2006, the related opinions of our independent
registered public accounting firm, and all earnings press releases and similar communications issued by us prior to
September 22, 2006 should not be relied upon and are superseded in their entirety by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on or after
September 22, 2006.

Background of Our Stock Option Investigation. Our inguiry into our historical stock option granting
practices was voluntary and began as an internal review in May 2006 in response to a report by the Center for
Financial Research and Analysis entitled “Options Backdating — Which Companies are at Risk?” that identified
Foundry as a company “with a moderate risk” of options backdating. In June 2006, the Audit Committee concluded
that, given the preliminary findings of the internal review to date, it would be appropriate for us to conduct a formal
and independent investigation of our option granting practices and a Special Committee of the Audit Committee
was formed to oversee the investigation. The Special Committee retained independent counsel to conduct a
comprehensive internal investigation of our historical stock option grant practices, who in turn retained forensic
accountants to assist them, Throughout the course of the investigation, the Special Committee’s independent
advisers reported directly to the Special Committee, comprised of a single independent director, Alan Earhart, who
joined our Board of Directors in 2003 and has never served on our Compensation Committee.

The scope of the Special Committee’s investigation was extensive, and included the review of all stock option
grants during the period from our September 27, 1999 initial public offering through May 2006.

In September 2006, we announced that (i) the Special Committee had preliminarily concluded that the actual
accounting measurement dates for certain stock option grants likely differed from the recorded grant dates for such
awards: and (ii) we had concluded that the financial statements issued by us relating to periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2000 should not be relied upon. In Janvary 2007, we announced the conclusion of the Special
Committee’s investigation and its findings, which were set forth in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 23, 2007. We also announced that our financial statements for the fiscal years 1999 through 2005 would be
restated

As a result of the independent investigation, our management has concluded, and the Audit Committee agrees,
that incorrect measurement dates were used for financial accounting purposes for certain stock option grants made
in prior periods. Therefore, we have recorded additional stock-based compensation expense and related tax effects
with regard to past stock option grants, and we are restating previously filed financial statements in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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The incremental impact from recognizing stock-based compensation expense resulting from the investigation
of past stock option grants is as follows (in millions):

Summary of Stock Option Investigation Restatement

Decrease
(Increase) to
Pre-Tax Income Tax Capitalized in Retained
Fiscal Year Adjustments Benefit(1) Total Impact Inventory(2) Earnings
1999 ... ... ... ... $ 03 S (1.4) $ (LD $ — $ (1D
2000 ... 38.0 (16.5) 21.5 — 215
2000 ... 523 (2L.1) 31.2 — 31.2
2002 ... 24.1 (9.6) 14.5 {0.3) 14.2
2003 ... 74.8 (30.1) 447 (0.7) 44.0
Subtotal . .............. 189.5 (78.7) 110.8 (1.0) 109.8
2004 ...l (17.1) 6.1 (1L.Oy 12 (9.8)
2005 ... 4.7 2.00 2.7 {0.2) 2.5
Total ................. $177.1 $(74.0 $102.5 $ — $102.5

(1} Income Tax Benefit includes adjustments to reflect a previously unrecorded deferred tax benefit of approx-
imately $3.6 million related to our “cheap stock” compensation expense at the time of our initial public
offering, $1.8 million of which is associated with amortization of cheap stock in 1999,

(2) These amounts reflect the net effect of stock-based compensation cost capitalized in inventory, They represent
the net change to cost of product and service revenue by year based on the compensation cost incurred as a result
of the restatement and the respective inventory turnover in each affected period.

Findings of the Special Commintee. The Special Committee reviewed the facts and circumstances sur-
rounding stock option grants, The Special Committee’s advisors collectively spent over 18,000 hours searching
more than three million pages of both physical and electronic documents and conducted more than 30 interviews of
18 current and former directors, officers, employees, consultants and legal counsel to Foundry. Based on its
investigation, the Special Committee has concluded, among other things, that we lack contemporaneous evidence
supporting a substantial number of the recorded option grants, and that some stock option grants were determined
with the benefit of hindsight. In some instances, documents, data and interviews suggest that the option grant was
prepared or finalized days or, in some cases, weeks after the option grant date recorded in our bocks. The affected
grants include grants 1o existing employees, newly-hired employees, officers and directors.

The Special Committee found that in a substantial number of cases, our President and Chief Executive Officer,
Bobby Johnson, Ir., selected the grant dates for and approved option awards after the grant dates recorded in our
books. However, Mr. Johnson did not receive any options in connection with these grants. Further, the Special
Committee found no evidence demeonstrating that Mr. Johnson was advised that our stock option granting practices
had resulted or would result in a misstatement of our financial results,

The Special Committee also found that although our former Vice President, Finance and Administration and
Chief Financial Officer, Timothy D. Heffner, did not select grant dates, he was involved in the option granting
process by, among other things, communicating option grants determined by Mr. Johnson to our stock option
administrators and human resources group.

Based on the evidence and findings from our internal review and the Special Committee’s independent
investigation, we analyzed the measurement dates for all stock option grants awarded from the time of our initial
public offering in September 1999 through May 2006 (“review period”). We believe that the Special Committee’s
analysis was properly limited to the review period. In addition to analyzing all granis made during the review period,
we reviewed stock option grants that were recorded between our date of inception, on May 22, 1996, and the date of
our initial public offering, on September 27, 1999, and found none that required accounting adjustments. The first
option granting action for which an adjustment to stock-based compensation expense is required is dated
September 27, 1999. We also examined grants that were made after the review period and found none that
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required accounting adjustments. In July 2006, we made significant changes in our stock option granting practices,
and we have determined that our current equity award processes and procedures are appropriate and appropriately
controlled.

Impact of Judgments and Interpretations on Restatement Values. In calculating the amount of incremental
stock-based compensation expense that we are required to record under generally accepted accounting principles,
we made certain interpretations and assumptions and drew certain conclusions from and regarding the internal
investigation findings. These interpretations, assumptions and conclusions may be subject to later dispute. There is
also a risk that the investigation findings themselves may later be determined to be inaccurate or incomplete. These
risks are particularly acute where documentation was incomplete. Where we had incomplete documentation, we
considered, among other things, the guidance provided by the Office of the Chief Accountant of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC™), pursuant to a letter dated September 19, 2006 (“Chief Accountant’s Letter”),
Specifically, the Chief Accountant’s Letter states that companies such as ours should use all reasonably available
relevant information to form reasonable conclusions as to the most likely option granting actions that occurred and
the dates on which such actions occurred in determining the parameters of the restatement.

We made certain legal interpretations regarding, among other things, the requirements under Delaware Jaw for
the granting of stock options, the effectiveness of actions taken by our Board of Directors and certain of its
committees, and the effectiveness and effect of granting actions by written consent. We also made a number of
accounting interpretations, including interpreting various SEC staff views and applying those interpretations to our
facts and circumstances. For example, we interpreted and applied Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ (“APB 257) and related interpretations to each category of granting
actions discussed below. We were required to make a determination of the correct measurement date, which under
APB 25 is defined as “the first date on which are known both (1) the number of shares that an individual employee is
entitled to receive and (2) the option or purchase price, if any.” As previously noted, we also considered the guidance
provided by the Chief Accountant’s Letter in making our determinations.

Underlying the entire restatement are the investigation findings by the Special Commitiee. We had to make
many assumptions and conclusions in reviewing the evidence presented to us by the Special Committee, including
assumptions regarding the veracity of witnesses; the intent behind the wording of certain documents, particularly
informal communications such as emails and the state of mind of persons involved in the granting process. We
believe that the Special Committee was thorough in its investigation and we had access to the results of its
investigation. Our process for making these assumptions and reaching these conclusions was systematic and
involved interaction among the Special Commitree, the Audit Committee and the current management team.

Consistent with the current accounting literature and published guidance from the staff of the SEC, we
organized option grants awarded during the review period into categories based on the type of granting action that
occurred and the process by which a grant was finalized. We analyzed the available evidence related to each
category of grants, including electronic and physical documents, document metadata (electronically recorded
information about the creation or editing of documents), and witness interviews. Based on relevant facts and
circumstances, we applied the applicable accounting standards to determine a measurement date for every grant
within each category. Where documentation was incomplete, our approach was to identify as the measurement date
the earlier of (a) the date the grant was reported to the Board of Directors or (b) the date the grant was entered into
our equity accounting database. If the measurement date was other than the originally recorded grant date, we made
accounting adjustments as required, resulting in stock-based compensation expense and related tax effects.

From our inception in 1996 until June 23, 1999, the Board of Directors awarded stock options either at a duly
convened meeting or by Unanimous Written Consent (“UWC™). Beginning June 23, 1999, the Board of Directors
authorized Mr. Johnson, acting as a sole member Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors (*Stock Option
Committee™) to grant options to eligible employees who were not executive officers or directors of Foundry. These
Stock Option Committee approvals were documented in written actions (*SOC Actions™). Grants to executive
officers continued to be made principally by the Board of Directors, either at a duly held meeting or by UWC;
however, from September 1999 through May 2006, the Compensation Committee awarded stock options, prin-
cipally to executive officers, on three dates. Grants to Board members were made either under the self-executing
provisions of the 1999 Directors’ Option Plan, or by the Board of Directors (at a duly held meeting or by UWC}. In
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July 2006, the Board of Directors transferred the responsibilities of the Stock Option Committee to the Compen-
sation Committee and directed it to administer all grants of stock or stock options to all employees, including
officers.

We awarded stock options or other equity based compensation through 189 granting actions occurring on 107
separate dates during the review period. The grants are aggregated by granting action as follows:

1) ten granting actions related to persons elected or appointed to the Board of Directors (“Director
Grants™);

2) 133 granting actions related to newly hired employees and routine employee promotion or bonus
grants (“End-of-Month Grants™);

3) 30 granting actions made in connection with broad-based awards to non-officer employees for
retention purposes (“Employee Retention Grants™);

4) 15 granting actions for awards to officers and other executive employees (“Officer Grants™), including
three granting actions for awards to our Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ Grants™); and

5) one granting action deemed modified by our August 2002 tender offer.

As discussed below, we determined that the originally recorded grant dates for 151 granting actions cannot be
supported as the proper measurement dates. Accordingly, after accounting for forfeitures, cancellation, vesting
acceleration and other related adjustments, we have recognized stock-based compensation expense of $177.1 mil-
lion on a pre-tax basis over the vesting periads of the awards. No adjustments were required for the remaining 38
granting actions. The judgments applied, the respective adjustments made, and our assessment of the possibie range
of amounts of compensation expense that would have been recorded if different judgments had been applied, are
summarized by grant category below:

(1) Director Grants — During the review period, we had ten granting actions including stock option awards to
non-employee directors. Approximately $2.3 million of pre-tax stock-based compensation expense has been
recorded as a result of revised measurement dates in connection with these Director Grants.

Eight Director Grants were automatic grants under the provisions of the 1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan,
which required no accounting adjustments. Two were Director Grants awarded for retention purposes pursuant to
the 1996 Stock Plan and documented in actions by UWC that were dated “effective as of” February 28, 2001 and
February 5, 2002, respectively. The Special Committee found that there was inadequate documentation to support
“the originally recorded dates of these two grants. The price of our common stock on the corrected measurement date
for the February 28, 2001 grant was lower than the original option exercise price. The February 5, 2002 grant was
deemed repriced and variable accounting was applied. The Board of Directors directed that the latter grant be re-
priced to reflect the higher exercise price, and has decided not to re-price the former grant to the lower exercise
price. Our current non-management directors who exercised re-priced options have repaid us the net after-tax
difference between the initial exercise price and the corrected exercise price (approximately $86,000 in the

aggregate).

Because judgment was used in establishing one of the revised measurement dates, we performed a sensitivity
analysis around potential alternative measurement dates. We developed a range of possible earlier alternative
measurement dates for that grant, using the original grant date as the beginning of that range because we did not find
any evidence to support a different date for the beginning of the range. We assessed the fluctuation in our stock price
if a different measurement date between the original grant date and the revised measurement date had been used,
and determined that if an earlier measurement date had been selected based on the highest price of our common
stock between February 28, 2001 and April 24, 2001, the total stock-based compensation charge would have been
approximately $0.4 million higher. There was no lower price in the range that would have caused the total stock-
based compensation charge for this grant to be lower. We believe that our approach was the most appropriate under
the circumstances.

(2) End-of-Month Grants— End-of-Month Grants during the review period included 133 granting actions, of
which 119 were revised and resulted in approximately $63.3 million of cumulative pre-tax compensation expense.
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We regularly used the last trading day of the month as the grant date for employee new hire grants and
employee promotion/bonus grants. We refer to these as “End-of-Month Grants” for classification purposes even
though some grants were not recorded on the last trading day of the month. The End-of-Month Grant process was
observed in a large majority of cases. However, because of variations in practice we concluded that it could not be
established as a practice that would serve as the basis for determining appropriate accounting measurément dates for
these granting actions. Our End-of-Month Grants were documented in written actions of the SOC which generally
were prepared shortly after month end, although in most cases there is no contemporaneous evidence to identify the
specific date. The grants were subsequently entered into the stock option database, on average 14 days after month
end, although the timing varied.

As a result, we determined that (in the absence of other contemporaneous evidence indicating that the terms of
awards to individual recipients were known with finality at an earlier date) measurement dates for respective
granting actions involving new hire grants and employee promotion/bonus grants are the earlier of (a) the date the
majority of such grants were entered into our equity accounting database (representing 100 of the 119 granting
actions revised) or (b) other evidence, such as email correspondence — providing the first finalized documentation
of the individual recipient’s share allocation — or the date of the Board of Directors meeting during which
management reported the award of such grants — as documented in the minutes of that meeting (representing 19 of
the 119 granting actions revised). We have concluded that 119 of the 133 End-of-Month Granting actions require
adjustment to their recorded dates.

Because judgment was used in establishing the revised measurement dates, we performed a sensitivity analysis
around the potential alternative measurement dates. We developed a range of possible earlier alternative mea-
surement dates for those grants, using the original grant date as the beginning of that range because we did not find
any evidence to support a different date for the beginning of the range. We assessed the fluctuation in our stock price
if a different measurement date between the original grant date and the revised measurement date had been used,
and determined that if an earlier measurement date had been selected based on the highest price of our common
stock in this period, the total stock-based compensation charge would have been approximately $6.9 million higher.
Had we used the lowest closing price of our stock within the range resulting from the above methodology for each
grant, our total restated stock-based compensation adjustment relating to the revision in measurement dates would
have decreased by approximately $59.4 million. We believe that our approach was the most appropriate under the
circumstances.

(3) Employee Retention Grants — During the review period, we had a total of 30 employee retention granting
actions, of which 23 required revised measurement dates and resulted in approximately $65.8 million of cumulative
pre-tax compensation expense. These employee retention grants were typically made on an annual basis as part of
an extensive process that required several weeks to complete. Pursuant to formulae, guidelines and practices
established by an executive team and led by our CEQ (the sole member of the stock option committee}, managers
throughout the Company would make recommendations for grants to employees in their areas of responsibility.
After the CEO had determined that the recommended grants were in accordance with established formulae,
guidelines and practices, we treated the grants as final. Our practice was that Employee Retention Grants were
generally awarded by the Stock Option Committee.

For 17 Employee Retention Grants, the number of shares that some employees were entitled to receive was not
determined with finality on the stated grant dates {or we were unable to find contemporaneous documentary support
that the proper approval of the grant had been given on the stated grant dates). Documentary evidence such as email
messages and grant allocation lists generated by our human resources department showed that for these grants,
which typically were made to a large portion of the employee population, either grantee names or stock option
amounts were still subject to change on the stated grant date and were not finalized until a subsequent date. As a
result, a revised measurement date for the entire granting action was required. For five additional employee
retention grants, contemporaneous documentary evidence indicated that the list of grantee names and share
amounts was finalized on the stated grant date and only the names or amounts of a small number of “stragglers™
were added after the stated grant date. For these we determined that the original measurement date was appropriate
for all but the grants made to the stragglers. The grants to stragglers were deemed to be part of a separate granting
action and, accordingly, revised using a subsequent date that was supported by the best available contemporaneous
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documentary evidence. One additional Employee Retention Grant was determined to have been repriced and
variable accounting was applied.

As a result, we determined that (in the absence of other contemporaneous evidence indicating that the terms of
awards to individual recipients were known with finality at an earlier date) measurement dates for respective
granting actions involving Employee Retention Grants are the earlier of (a) the date the majority of such grants were
entered into our equity accounting database (representing 14 of the 23 granting actions revised) or (b) the dates of
board meetings documented in minutes, email evidence, or lists of finalized shares and recipients provided to our
humnan resources department (representing nine of the 23 granting actions revised), Because judgment was used in
establishing the revised measurement dates, we performed a sensitivity analysis around potential alternative
measurement dates. We developed a range of possible earlier alternative measurement dates for those grants, using
the original grant date as the beginning of that range in all but two cases where email evidence supported a different
date for the beginning of the range. We assessed the fluctuation in our stock price if a different measurement date
between the beginning date of the range and the revised measurement date had been used, and determined that if an
carlier measurement date had been selected based on the highest price of our common stock in this period, total
stock-based compensation charge would have been approximately $17.3 million higher. Had we used the lowest
closing price of our stock within the range resulting from the above methodology for each grant, our total restated
stock-based compensation adjustment relating to the revision in measurement dates would have decreased by
approximately $52.3 million. We believe that our approach was the most appropriate under the circumstances.

{4) Officer Grants — During the review period, we had 15 granting actions that were awards of stock options
to officers and other executive employees when they were hired, promoted or earned a bonus, and for purposes of
retention. As a result of revising measurement dates for seven of these granting actions, approximately $22.0 million
of cumulative pre-tax compensation expense was recorded.

Terms of new hire, promotion or bonus, and retention grants to officers, which we refer to as “Officer Grants,”
were generally consistent with the terms of grants awarded for similar purposes to non-executive employees.
Officer Grants were awarded by the Compensation Committee or the Board of Directors, and documented either in
meeting minutes or UWC. We determined that the measurement dates used for Officer Grants in 2003, 2004, 2005
and 2006 were supported by contemporaneous documentary evidence. In August 2002, Form 4 filing deadlines
were shoriened and there were no revised Officer Grants afier this date. We determined that, In connection with
some Officer Grants that we made during fiscal years 2000, 2001 and 2002, the number of shares that an individual
officer was entitled to receive was not determined with finatity on stated grant dates or we were unable to find
contemporaneous documentary support that the proper approval of the related stock option grant had been given on
stated grant dates. Our former Chief Financial Officer who exercised re-priced opttons has repaid us the net after-tax
difference between the initial exercise price and the corrected exercise price {approximately $162,000) and has
agreed to re-price any unexercised options which he holds that are being revised to reflect the price of our common
stock on the new measurement dates.

As aresult, we determined that (in the absence of other contemporaneous evidence indicating that the terms of
awards to individual recipients were known with finality at an earlier date) measurement dates for respective
granting actions involving Officer Grants are the earlier of {a) the date the majority of such grants were entered into
our equity accounting database (representing one of the seven granting actions revised) or (b) the dates of faxed
signature pages for UWCs, e-mail evidence, or dates of Board of Directors meetings, as documented in the minutes
of those meetings (representing six of the seven granting actions revised). Because judgment was used in
establishing the revised measurement dates, we performed a sensitivity analysis around potential altemative
measurement dates. We developed a range of possible earlier alternative measurement dates for those grants, using
the original grant date as the beginning of that range because we did not find any evidence to support a different date
for the beginning of the range. We assessed the fluctvation in our stock price if a different measurement date
between the original grant date the revised measurement date had been used, and determined that if earlier
measurement dates had been selected based on the highest price of our common stock in this period, total stock-
based compensation charge would have been approximately $0.2 million higher. Had we used the lowest closing
price of our stock within the range resulting from the above methodology for each grant, our total restated stock-
based compensation adjustment relating to the revision in measurement dates would have decreased by approx-
imately $8.4 million. We believe that our approach was the most appropriate under the circumstances.
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(5) CEO Grants — During the review period, we had three granting actions involving stock option grants to
Mr. Johnson, our CEQ. One award, dated August 7, 2002, was a stock option for 600,000 shares that was presented
and approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors on that same date. A second award, dated January 31,
2006, was a stock option for 600,000 shares and an award of 75,000 restricted shares that was presented and
approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors on that date. The third grant, dated June 10, 2004, was a
stock option to purchase 400,000 shares that was approved by the Board of Directors at its March 5, 2004 meeting,
together with grants to other executive officers. The exercise price of this option was established as the closing price
of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market “on or about” the date of our annual stockholder meeting, with
the determination of the specific date for this option (and the other executives’ options) left in the discretion of
Mr. Johnson. We have concluded that no adjustment is required for any of these granting actions.

(6) Grant Modified by Tender Offer — On August 21, 2002, we commenced a stock option exchange program
for our employees, under which employees (excluding officers and directors) were given the opportunity o
voluntarily cancel unexercised vested and unvested stock options previously granted to them in exchange for a stock
option grant equal to 0.5 times the number of tendered options on or about March 21, 2003. Pursuant to the tender
offer rules, participants who elected to exchange any options were also required to exchange any other options
granted to the participant in the six months prior to August 20, 2002, On March 24, 2003, we issued options to
purchase 2,728,850 shares of common stock to employees who participated in the tender offer (which was net of
shares forfeited by terminating employees), at an exercise price of $7.76 per share, in exchange for options to
purchase 5,744,500 shares of common stock that were tendered by September 20, 2002.

We determined that the list of grantees for the Employee Retention Grant recorded on February 5, 2002 was not
finalized on that date. As a result, this 4,744,200 share grant was revised with a new grant date of March 14, 2002,
Contemporaneous evidence clearly showed that the revised measurement date fell within the six month look-back
period prior to the date of the tender offer consummation. Since any stock options granted to tender participants in
the six-month look-back period were subject to modification by the tender offer, variable accounting is required to
be applied to certain of the untendered options. As a result, we recognized additional compensation expense of
$22.5 million, related to 2,642,300 of the March 14, 2002 untendered options. We did not assess a possible range of
amounts of compensation expense for this grant based on alternate measurement dates, because there were no
carlier alternative measurement dates that would have impacted these untendered options.

The remaining 2,101,400 stock options from the original Employee Retention Grant have been determined to

- be fixed options with a revised measurement date of March 14, 2002. Variable accounting treatment is not applied to

these shares because (i) the holders did not participate in the tender offer or (ii) the stock options the holders were
awarded as part of the Employee Retention Grant exceeded the number of stock options that were deemed repriced
through the tender offer.

All references to the number of option shares, option exercise prices and share prices have been adjusted for
stock splits.
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We recorded additional stock-based compensation expense and related changes, including tax effects, as a
result of these adjustments for past stock option grants discussed above. These adjustments, shown both before and

after tax are as follows (in millions):

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Total

Director Grants . .. ............ $— $ — $ — 501 $ 43 $(@2 %01 § 23
End-of-Month Grants. ... ..., ... 0.3 24.1 22.0 12.5 3.5 — 0.9 63.3
Employee Retention Grants . . . . .. — 10.4 229 8.7 13.1 7.9 2.8 65.8
Officer Grants . . .............. — 35 7.0 2.1 16.7 7.7 0.4 22.0
CEOGrants ................. — — — — — —_ — —
Grant Modified by Tender Offer. . . — — — 0.7 36.9 {15.5) 0.4 22.5
Other,net(1) ................. — — 0.4 —_ 0.3 04 0.1 1.2
Pre-tax stock-based compensation

expense adjustments(2) .... ... 03 38.0 52.3 24.1 74.8 (17.1) 47 177.1
Income tax (benefity/expense . .. .. (1.4y (165 (2L.1) (9.6) (30.D) 6.1 2.00 (74.6)
Net stock-based compensation

-expense/(benefit) adjustments. . . $(1.1) $21.5 $31.2 $145 $447 $(11.0) $27 $1025

(1) Other, net represents related employment tax charges and other stock-based compensation charges.

(2) Includes the following amounts attributable to the impact of variable accounting: 1999, $0; 2000, $0; 2001, $0;
2002, $0.9 million; 2003, $59.4 million; 2004, $(27.0) million; 2005, $0.9 million; total, $34.2 million. We
determined that as a result of revised measurement, eleven granting actions required both a revised measure-
ment date and the application of variable accounting. Generally, variable accounting resulted because strong
evidence indicated that the grant was approved at an earlier date (often a Board of Directors meeting). However,
the granting action was not recorded at that date, and was instead recorded at a subsequent grant date at a lower
price than the earlier date that we subsequently determined to be when the grant was originally awarded.

As a result of the restatement, we recognized $102.5 million, after-tax, of stock-based compensation expense
through fiscal 2005, and had approximately $2.8 million of deferred stock-based compensation expense to be
amertized as of December 31, 2005. As described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” to
Consolidated Financial Statements, on January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R™). As required by SFAS 123R, the
~ unamortized deferred compensation expense of $2.8 miltion at January 1, 2006 has been reclassified to additional

paid-in capital.

The impact of recognizing additional stock compensation and other adjustments on each component of

stockbolders’ equity at the end of each year is summarized as follows (in millions):

Common Stock &

Deferred Stock
Compensation

Retained Earnings

Net Impact to
Stockholders’ Equity

Additional
Fiscal Year Paid-In Capital
1999 .. ..., $ 22
2000 ... ..l 06.6
2000 ...t 12.3
2002 .. ..., (19.1)
2003 ... _73.8
Subtotal .. .......... 165.8
2004 ... ... L (42.0)
2005 ..o (@26
Total .............. §121.2

$ (2.3)

(59.5)
38.1
13.1

_(13.8)

(24.4)

$ 1
(21.5)
(31.2)
(14.2)
(44.0)

(109.8)
9.8

(2.5

$(102.5)

$ 1.0
15.6
19.2

(20.2)

_160

31.6
(15.2)
{0.5)

$159




Tax Impact of Restatement Items

In connection with the restatement of our consolidated financial statements due to stock option adjustments,
we recorded deferred tax benefits on the non-cash stock-based compensation expense over the option vesting
periods for grants to individuals who were employed in tax jurisdictions where a tax deduction was available. The
tax impact of the restatement for stock-based compensation expense reduced (increased) the tax provision for fiscal
years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005 by $1.4 million, $16.5 million,
$21.1 million, $9.6 million, $30.1 million, ($6.1) million and $2.0 million respectively. The aggregate reduction
in tax provision of $74.6 million resulted in a $102.5 million restatement, net of taxes. In addition, we determined
that, in connection with the restated stock-based compensation expense, a related expense for employment taxes
should have been recorded in the amount of approximately $800,000. We recorded this expense in the period of
exercise because employers have an obligation to withhold taxes from employees upon the exercise of nonqualified
stock options, and the employer’s liability for taxes is joint and several along with the employee. The liability was
subsequently released in the period the respective statute of limitation lapsed.

Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m) limits the deductibility of compensation in excess of $1.0 million that
is not performance-based and that is paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the four other named executive officers
in our annual proxy statement. In the year in which any such officers exercise options that have been revised as a
result of our investigation we may have compensation expense for which we are not able to take a corresponding tax
deduction. We are not able to predict the likelihood of this tax benefit limitation on deductibility of our
compensation expense in the future.

Stock-based compensation expense for non-qualified stock options (including incentive stock options deemed
to be non-qualified as a result of the re-measurement) was assumed to be deductible at the time of exercise, subject
to limitations under Section 162(m) and local country law.

Because virtually all holders of options issued by us were neither involved in nor aware of the Company’s
accounting treatment of stock options, we have taken and intend to take actions to deal with certain adverse tax
consequences that may be incurred by the holders of certain incorrectly priced options. The primary adverse tax
consequence is that incorrectly priced stock options vesting after December 31, 2004 may subject the option holder
to a penalty tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 409A (and, as applicable, similar penalty taxes under
California and other state tax laws). We expect to record approximately $4.8 million in operating expense in future
periods in relation to these items and other tax related items.

In the restated consolidated financial statements, we recorded deferred tax assets for stock compensation
expense attributable to non-qualified stock options. The deferred tax assets were recognized in the statement of
income in accordance with the applicable vesting periods of the non-qualified stock options. To the extent actual
events were inconsistent with the initial assumptions and tax benefits were not ultimately realized, we reversed the
recorded tax benefits in the year in which such events occurred. When options were cancelled or expired
unexercised, recorded tax benefits were reversed to additional paid in capital to the extent of previous credits
to additional paid in capital for excess tax benefits, and then to the income tax provision.

Business Environment

During 2006, we saw continued improvement in the macro-economic environment. Despite the challenging
federal spending environment in the first half of 2006, we saw solid growth in our commercial business throughout
the year. During 2006, we benefited from a continuation of a broad enterprise upgrade cycle, which began in late
2004, as customers continued preparing their network infrastructure for Voice over Internet Protocol (“VoIP),
wireless applications, and the adoption of 10GbE in the network core to accommodate higher levels of traffic. In
addition, we experienced renewed service provider interest in our new router product offerings, the XMR and MLX
family of MPLS routers.

The networking market has been characterized by rapid advances in technology and related product perfor-
mance, which has generally resulted in declining average selling prices over time. Our revenue has generally been
favorably affected by increases in units sold as a result of market expansion, increases in market share and the
release of new products. However, our revenue growth has been hindered by declining prices and competitive
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pressures. The market for data networking products continues to be dominated by Cisco, with over 50% share of the
networking market. We continue to invest in our core market and adjacent markets in which the competitive
landscape looks attractive and the growth prospects are promising. Although we expect our revenue to grow in 2007,
there can be no assurance that the networking market will continue to improve or that we will be successful in
executing on our growth sirategy.

2006 Financial Performance

» 2006 marked our 10th anniversary and the sixth year that we have operated profitably in the seven years
since we went public in September 1999,

¢« Our total net revenue for 2006 increased 17% to $473.3 million from $403.9 million in 2003 due to the
increased breadth and depth of the solutions we are now delivering to both the service provider and
enterprise markets and the expansion of our sales organization.

+ Netincome in 2006 was $38.7 million, or 8% of total net revenue, compared to $53.6 million, or 13% of total
niet revenue, in 2005. Our profitability in 2006 was reduced by an increase in non-cash stock-based
compensation expense of $46.2 million, increased professional and legal fees associated with the restate-
ment of our prior period financial statements of $7.4 million and pre-tax litigation settlement expenses and
associated legal fees of $5.4 million,

+ Qur balance sheet remains debt-free, with cash and investments of $886.4 million, an increase of
$140.1 million from 2005. During 2006, we generated $95.2 million of cash from operations and received
$47.7 million of cash from issuances of common stock.

+ In the fourth quarter of 2006 our annualized revenue per employee increased 10 approximately $647,000.

* During 2006 our bock-to bill ratio, the ratio of new orders received compared to revenue recognized
continued to be greater than one.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U).S, generally accepted account-
ing principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period reported. By
their nature, these estimates and judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Management bases its
estimates and judgments on historical experience, market trends, current economic conditions, and other factors
that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances. The results of these estimates form the basis for
Jjudgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, Management believes the
following critical accounting policies reflect the more significant judgments and estimates that can have a
significant effect on our results of operations and the value of certain assets and liabilities on our consolidated
financial statements. Management has discussed the development, selection, and disclosure of these estimates with
the Audit Committee of Foundry’s Board of Directors. These and other significant accounting policies are more
fully described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

We generate the majority of our revenue from sales of stackable and chassis-based networking equipment, with
the remainder of our revenue primarily coming from customer support fees. We generally sell to direct end-users
and value-added resellers. We apply the principles of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) 104, Revenue
Recognition and recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or performance has
occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. It is our practice to
identify an end-user prior to shipment to a value-added reseller.
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Product revenue is generally recognized upon transfer of title and risk of loss, which is generally upon
shipment, unless an acceptance period or other contingency exists, in which case revenue is recognized upon the
earlier of customer acceptance or expiration of the acceptance period, or upon satisfaction of the contingency.

Support revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the support arrangement, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Technical Bulletin 90-1, Accounting for Separately Priced Extended
Warranty and Product Maintenance Contracts.

When sales arrangements contain multiple elements (e.g., hardware, extended warranty), we apply the
provisions of EITF Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (“EITF 00-217), to
determine the separate units of accounting that exist within the arrangement. If more than one unit of accounting
exists, the arrangement consideration is allocated to each unit of accounting using cither the relative fair value
method or the residual fair value method as prescribed by EITF 00-21. Revenue is recognized for each unit of
accounting when the revenue recognition criteria described above have been met for that unit of accounting. The
application of EITF 00-21 involves significant judgment. For example, we use judgment to determine whether
objective and reliable evidence of fair value exists for undelivered item(s) in an arrangement. The timing of revenue
recognition varies based on this determination.

At the time product revenue is recognized, we estimate the amount of warranty costs to be incurred and record
the amount as a cost of revenue. Our standard warranty period extends one to five years from the date of sale for
hardware, depending on the type of product purchased. Our estimate of the amount necessary to settle warranty
claims is based primarily on our past experience. Although we believe our estimate is adequate and that the
judgment we apply is appropriate, actual warranty costs could differ materially from our estimate. If actual warranty
costs are greater than initially estimated, our cost of revenue could increase in the future. We also provide a
provision for estimated customer returns at the time product revenue is recognized. Our provision is based primarily
on historical sales returns and our return policies. Our resellers generally do net have a right of return, and our
contracts with original equipment manufacturers only provide for rights of return in the event our products do not
meet specifications or there is an epidemic failure, as defined in the contracts. If the historical data used by us to
calculate estimated sales returns does not reasonably approximate future returns, revenue in future periods could be
affected.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Customers are subject to a credit review process, through which we evaluate the customer’s financial condition
and ability to pay based on credit rating services such as Dun and Bradstreet. Customers are generally assigned a
credit limit that may be increased only after a successful collection history has been established. We do not have
significant billing or collection problems. We regularly monitor and evaluate the collectibility of our trade
receivables and actively manage our accounts receivable to minimize credit risk. We record specific allowances
for doubtful accounts when we become aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial obligation to us,
such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or significant deterioration in financial condition. We estimate allowances
for doubtfui accounts for all other customers based on factors such as current economic and industry trends, the
extent to which receivables are past due, and historical collection experience. If circumstances change, estimates
regarding the collectibility of receivables would be adjusted. We mitigate some coliection risk by requiring certain
international customers to provide letters of credit or bank guarantees prior to placing an order with us. Although we
believe our allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate and that the judgment we apply is appropriate, our actual
amount of bad debt could differ materially from our estimates.

Inventories

The networking industry is characterized by rapid technotogical change, frequent new product introductions,
changes in customer requirements, and evolving industry standards. Cur inventory purchases and commitments are
made based on anticipated demand for our products, as estimated by management, and our expected service
requirements. We perform an assessment of our inventory each quarter, which includes a review of, among other
factors, demand requirements, product life cycles and development plans, product pricing and quality issues. Based
on this analysis, we estimate the amount of excess and obsolete inventory on hand and make adjustments to record
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inventory at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Once inventory has been written down 1o the lower of
cost or estimated net realizable value, it is reflected on our balance sheet at its new carrying cost until it is sold or
otherwise disposed.

We use contract manufacturers to assemble and test our products. We also utilize third-party OEMs to
manufacture certain Foundry-branded products. In order to reduce manufacturing lead-times and ensure an
adequate supply of inventories, our agreements with some of these manufacturers allow them to procure long
lead-time component inventory on our behalf based on rolling production forecasts provided by us. We may be
contractually obligated to purchase long lead-time component inventory procured by certain manufacturers in
accordance with our forecasts although we can generally give notice of order cancellation at least 90 days prior to
the delivery date. In addition, we issue purchase orders to our component suppliers that may not be cancelable at any
time. As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $53.4 million of open purchase orders with our component
suppliers and third-party manufacturers that may not be cancelable. If actual demand for our products is below the
level assumed in our production forecasts, we may have excess inventory or a liability as a result of our purchase
commitments.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS 123R and apply the provisions of SEC
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 107). We adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective transition
method effective January 1, 2006. We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the grant date fair
value of employee stock-based compensatory awards, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions,
including expected volatility and expected life. We use a combination of historical and implied volatilities to derive
expected volatility. Expected life was derived using the average midpoint between vesting periods and the
contractual term, as described in SAB [07. We may change our volatility assumption in the future if management
believes it will generate a more representative estimate of fair value. Further, as required under SFAS 123R, we must
estimate forfeitures for stock-based awards that are not expected to vest. The assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of stock-based payment awards represent management’s best estimates, but these estimates involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, our stock-based compensation
expense could be materially different in the future if factors change and we use different assumptions. The estimated
fair value, net of an estimated forfeiture rate, is charged to earnings on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of
the underlying awards, which is generally one to five years for our stock option grants and restricted stock grants
and up to two years for our employee stock purchase plan, The impact of adopting SFAS 123R is disclosed in Note 2,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

We recognize deferred tax assets based on differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and
the tax bases of assets and liabilities. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the
arnount that is more likely than not to be realized. Significant management judgment is required in determining
whether valuation allowances should be recorded against our deferred tax assets. Management assesses the
likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be realized against projected future taxable income or our ability to
generate taxable income from specific sources, and to the extent that realization is not believed to be more likely
than not, a valuation allowance is established. In the event we determine that we are unable to realize some or all of
our deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to our deferred tax assets would be necessary, resulting in a
charge to income in the period such determination is made. Likewise, if we later determine that it is more likely than
not that our deferred tax assets would be realized, the previously provided valuation allowance would be reversed.
Our net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $74.6 million and $58.7 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

We are audited by various taxing authorities from time to time, and sometimes these audits result in proposed
assessments where the ultimate resolution may result in us owing additional taxes. We establish reserves when,
despite our belief that our tax return positions are appropriate and supportable under local tax law, we believe certain
positions are likely to be challenged and that it may not succeed in realizing the tax benefit. We evaluate these
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reserves each quarter and adjust the reserves and the related interest in light of changing facts and circumstances’

regarding the probability of realizing tax benefits, such as the progress of a tax audit or the expiration of a statute of
limitations. We believe our tax positions comply with applicable tax law and that we have adequately provided for
any known tax contingencies under SFAS 5, Accounting for Contingencies. .

In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recorded a deferred tax benefit on certain stock-based awards associated
with our stock-based compensation plans, including nonqualified stock options, but under current accounting
standards we cannot record a deferred tax benefit on costs associated with incentive stock options and employee
stock purchase plan shares (qualified stock options). For qualified stock options, we record tax benefit only in the
period when disqualifying dispositions of the underlying stock occur. Accordingly, as we cannot record the tax
benefit for stock-based compensation expense associated with qualified stock options until the occurrence of future
disqualifying dispositions of the underlying stock, our future quarterly and annual effective tax rates will be subject
to greater volatility and, consequently, our ability to estimate reasonably our future quarterly and annual effective
tax rates is adversely affected. In accordance with SFAS 123R, we recorded a net deferred tax asset for the book
compensation expense related to non-qualified stock options, which was approximately $28.2 million as of
December 31, 2006. To the extent the deferred tax benefit is more than the actual tax benefit realized, the difference
may impact the income tax expense if the Company does not have a sufficient hypothetical APIC pool under
SFAS 123R to decrease additional paid-in capital.

Loss Contingencies

We are subject to the possibility of loss contingencies in the normal course of our business, in addition to those
related to intellectual property and securities litigation. A loss contingency is accrued when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount of Joss can be reasonably estimated. We continually reassess the
likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to our contingencies, as well as potential ranges of probable
losses, and will recognize a liability, if any, for these contingencies based on a careful analysis of each issue with the
assistance of outside legal counsel and other experts.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“FIN 48”), to create a single model to
address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes, by prescribing
a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial
statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006 and as a result, is effective for us in the first quarter of 2007. We completed our analysis and the
impact of the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 will result'in an increase to retained earnings of $0.8 million. In
addition, we will record a decrease to deferred tax assets of $2.9 million, a decrease to additional paid-in capital of
$4.2 million and an increase to taxes payable of $0.5 million as part of the adoption of FIN 48.

In June 2006, the FASB reached consensus on Emerging EITF No. 06-2, Accounting for Sabbatical Leave and
Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences (“EITF 06-27).
Paragraph 6 of Statement No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences (“SFAS 43"}, requires accrual of a liability
for compensated absences when certain criteria are met, including a requirement that the obligation relates to rights
that vest or accumulate. The EITF reached a consensus that an employee’s right to a compensated absence under a
sabbatical or similar benefit arrangement does accumulate pursuant to SFAS 43 and, therefore, a liability for the
benefit should be accrued over the period required for the employee to earn the right to the time off under the
arrangement. The guidance in this consensus is to be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
We currently record expense for sabbatical leaves at the point in time that employees have met the sabbatical service
requirements, not over the period required for employees to earn the right to a sabbatical. In the first quarter of 2007,
we will adopt EITF 06-2 through a cumulative-effect adjustment. This will result in a reduction to retained earnings
of approximately $683,000. We do not expect the adoption of EITF 06-2 to have a material impact on our future
financial results. '
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In September 2006, the FASB, issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. We are currently assessing the potential effect, if any, of implementing this standard.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 108™), which is
effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on the
consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose
of a materiality assessment. We do not expect the adoption of SAB 108 to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations
Net Revenue

We offer products in two configuration platforms, a fixed configuration stackable and a flexible configuration
chassis. A stackable has a fixed configuration that cannot be altered. A chassis uses a modular platform that can be
populated and reconfigured with various management and line card modules as frequently as desired by the
customer. For example, customers can use our chassis products at the edge of their network and then reconfigure the
chassis to be used in the mission-critical backbone or core of their network. Our selling prices and gross margins on
chassis-based products are generally higher than our stackable products because of the flexible configuration
offered by chassis-based products.

Net revenue information is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 3, Percentage Change
% of Net % of Net % of Net
2006 Revenue 2005 Revenue 2004 Revenue 2006 to 2005 2005 to 2004

Net revenue;

Product ... ... .... $395,701 84% $338,784 84% $349,019 85% 17% (3)%

Service ........... 77,579 16% _ 65072  16% _ 60,085  15%  19% 8%
Total net revenue . . . . . . $473.280 100% $403,856 100% $409,104 100% 17% (%

Chassis ........... $279,383 7% $226,062 67% $261,764 75% 24% (14)Y%

Stackable . ... ...... 116318  29% 112,722  33% _ 87,255  25% 3% 29%
Total net product )

revenue ........... $395,701  100% $338,784  100% $349,019  100%  17% (3)%

Net product revenue in 2006 increased 17% from 2005 due to a general improvement in both the enterprise and
service provider markets coupled with increased customer acceptance of our new switching and routing platforms
and the expansion of our sales organization. During the course of 2006 we grew our sales personnel from 297 at
December 31, 2005 to 368 at December 31, 2006. Net product revenue from our chassis-based products increased
24% in 2006 as compared to 2003 due to customer acceptance of our new RX, SuperX platforms for the enterprise
market and XMR/MLX platforms for the service provider market. Revenue for 2006 reflects our first full year of
sales of our XMR and MLX product offerings. Due to the strength of our new chassis based platforms, stackable
products represented 29% of our total net revenue in 2006, down from 33% in 2005. Sales to the United States
government accounted for approximately 17% of total net revenue for 2006, down from 19% for 2003, but increased
in terms of absolute dollars by 9% to $84.4 million in 2006 from $77.6 million in 2005. We expect our net product
revenues to continue to increase in the next year as we continue to hire additional sales personnel and gain increased
productivity from the sales personnel we have recently hired.

Net product revenue in 2005 decreased 3% from 2004, due to weaker than expected demand for networking
equipment in the first half of 2005. We believe our commercial customers became more cautious about their own
business outlook towards the end of 2004 due to a number of factors, including lack of visibility into their own
future results and concerns about their business prospects in 2005. In addition, our United States government

50




business declined significantly during the first half of 2005 as the government realigned its IT spending priorities.
During the 2nd half of 2005, product sales gradually improved. However, we continued to experience reductions in
overall average selling prices resulting from a shift in product mix towards lower-priced stackable products and
competitive pricing pressure. Revenue in 2005 reflected our first full year of sales of our lower-priced 10GbE
Fastlron Edge stackable switches, which, at the time, offered a similar feature set as our small-end chassis but at a
lower price point. Through 2005 our 10-Gigabit stackable switches gained strong customer acceptance and continue
to increase as a percentage of product revenue. Stackable products generated 33% of our total net revenue in 2005,
versus 25% in 2004. Sales to the United States government represented 19% of our total revenue in 2005, down from
27% in 2004,

Service revenue consists primarily of revenue from customer support contracts. The increase in absolute
dollars in 2006 and 2005 were due to a larger installed base of our networking equipment each year as customers
purchased new support contracts with their new equipment purchases and renewed maintenance contracts on
existing equipment. We added approximately 1,450 new customers in 2005 and an additional 1,410 new customers
in 2006. We expect service revenues in the next year, as a percentage of net product revenues to be approximately
the same as 2006.

We manage our business based on four geographic regions: the Americas (primarily the United States);
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa (“EMEA™); Japan; and Asia Pacific. Because some of our customers, such as
the United States government and multinational companies, span various geographic locations, we determine
revenue by geographic region based on the billing location of the customer. Net product revenue by region as a
percentage of net product revenue was as follows:

2006 2005 2004

- (=2 (1< O 03% 64% 64%
EME A . e e e 18% 18% 18%
Japan L e 11% 10% 10%
ASIa Pacilic. . . . e e 8% 8% 8%

Net product sales in 2006 for each of the four regions remained approximately the same from 2005 as a
percentage of net product revenue. The shift in product sales from Americas to Japan in 2006 was due to the
increased investment in our Japanese sales infrastructure and an expansion of our partner channels during 2006,
compared to 2005.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, no customers accounted for 10% or more of our net
product revenue,

Gross Margins

The following table presents gross margins and gross margin percentages for product and service revenue
{dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

Gross Gross Gross
2006 Margin% 2005 Margin% 2004 Margin%
Restated (1) Restated(1)
Gross margins:
Product. . ............. $221,175 ©  56% $195,370 58% $219,255 63%
Service............... __ 63,652 82% _53.151 82% __ 46,631 8%
Total gross margin . ... .. $284,827 60% $248,521 62% $265,886 65%

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our cost of product revenue consists primarily of materials, labor, manufacturing overhead, warranty cosis,
and provisions for excess and obsolete inventory. The decrease in product gross margins as a percentage of net
product revenue from 2005 to 2006 were primarily due to an increase of 25% in material and labor cost, which
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includes an increase of $1.7 million from stock-based compensation expense. The average material cost per unit
increased 5% in 2006 as compared to 2005, while the average selling price increased only 3% in 2006 as compared
to 2005. The XMR/MLX and RX platforms are in the early stages of the product life cycle, as such, the material
costs were higher than projected but should improve as we gain the benefits of volume production and a better mix
between line cards and chassis. We expect our product gross margins to remain at approximately the same level
through fiscal 2007.

Product gross margins, as a percentage of product revenue, decreased in 2005 as a result of continued selling
price erosion, increased inventory provisions, primarily as a result of a product transition, and a shift in product mix
to lower-priced stackable products, During 2005, we transitioned from our fourth generation JetCore-based
products to our fifth generation terabit-capacity products, the Biglron RX and Fastiron SuperX 10GbE switches.
As aresult of the product transition, inventory provisions for our older products increased and average selling prices
decreased as we discounted the older product lines. Product inventory provisions were $9.3 million in 2006, and
$5.4 million in 2005, and $3.2 million in 2004.

Our cost of service revenue consists primarily of costs related to providing services under customer support
contracts, including the costs of logistics and maintaining adequate spares inventory levels at service depots.
Service costs include material costs, labor, and overhead. Service gross margins remained flat at 82% in 2006
primarily due to higher service revenues offsetting the increased investment in our service infrastructure. We expect
service gross margins to experience variability over time due to the timing of order bookings for both new support
arrangements and renewals, costs of stocking adequate spares inventory, and additional investments in infrastruc-
ture to support our customers,

Service gross margins increased in 2005 primarily due to lower spares inventory provisions and favorable
pricing variances on certain service inventory components in 2005. We expect service gross margins to experience
variability over time due to the timing of technical support initiations and renewals, spares inventory levels, and
additional investments in our customer support infrastructure.

QOur gross margins may be adversely affected by increased price competition, component shortages, increases
in material or labor costs, excess and obsolete inventory charges, changes in channels of distribution, or custome},
product and geographic mix, See also “Risk Factors — Our gross margins may decline over time and the average
selling prices of our products may decrease as a result of competitive pressures and other factors.”

Operating Expenses

The following table presents research and development, sales and marketing, general and administrative
expenses and other charges, net, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, Percentage Change
% of Net % of Net % of Net
2006 Revenue 2005 Revenue 2004 Revenue 2006 to 2005 2005 to 2004
Restated (1) Restated(1)
Research and development . . .. $ 70,658 15% $ 53,041 13%  $38,149 9% 33% 39%
Sales and marketing. . . ... ... 128,985 27% 105,701 26% 93,260 23% 22% 13%
General and administrative . . . . 43,854 9% 27,765 T% 24,958 6% 58% 11%

Other charges, net . ......... 12,807 3% — — 30,193 1% 100% (100)%

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements,

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and related personnel expenses, prototype
materials, and expenses related to design of new cost effective high performance switches and routers, testing costs,
facilities, and the depreciation of property and equipment used in research and development activities. Research and
development expenses in 2006 increased $17.6 million compared to 2005 primarily due to an increase in stock-
based compensation expense of $15.8 million, and to a lesser extent, an increase in personnel from 204 engineers at
the end of 2005 to 219 engineers at the end of 2006, resulting in salary related cost of $4.6 million. The increases
were offset by a $1.8 million decrease in prototype material expenditures following the introduction of our XMR/
MLX product families in late 2005 and early 2006.
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Research and development expenses in 2005 increased $14.9 million compared to 2004 primarily due to an
increase in stock-based compensation expense of $7.6 million, an increase in payroll-related expenses to retain and
reward our engineers and, to a lesser extent, increased prototype costs associated with the development of our new
Internet and Metro routers. Personnel in our engineering department increased slightly to 204 engineers at the end
of 2005.

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, commissions and related expenses for personnel
engaged in marketing, sales and customer support activities, costs associated with trade shows, advertising, and
promotions, and the cost of facilities. Sales and marketing expenses increased $23.3 million in 2006 primarily due
to an increase in stock-based compensation expense of $18.9 million. In addition, the expansion of our worldwide
sales force and increased variable performance-based compensation resulted in a $16.9 million increase in sales
personnel costs. The sales and marketing headcount grew from 370 at the end of 2005 to 428 at the end of 2006. The
increases were offset by decreases in marketing expenses and the expense associated with the evaluation and
demonstration inventory units in the field. Marketing and customer support expenses decreased by $7.9 million in
2006 (excluding stock-based compensation expense} due primarily to lower advertising, trade show, seminar costs,
and technical support cost allocated to service cost of sales. The expense associated with the evaluation and
demonstration inventory units in the field decreased by $5.3 million in 2006 compared to 2005.

Sales and marketing expenses increased $12.4 million in 2005 primarily due to an increase in stock-based
compensation expense of $7.3 million, the expansion of our worldwide sales force and increased variable
performance-based compensation, which resulted in a $5.9 million increase in sales personnel costs, and increased
carrying costs of $3.0 million associated with additional evaluation and demonstration inventory units in the field,
offset by a decrease in marketing expenses of $3.8 million. Our sales and marketing headcount grew from 325 at the
end of 2004 to 370 at the end of 2005. Notwithstanding this growth in headcount, our marketing expenses decreased
in 2005 due primarily to lower advertising, trade show, and seminar costs.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses for executive, finance
and administrative personnel, costs of facilities, bad debt, legal and accounting fees, and other general corporate
expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $16.1 million in 2006 from 2005, primarily due to an
increase in stock-based compensation expense of $7.8 million and a $4.6 million increase in legal expenses. In
addition, payroll cost increased by $1.6 million due to increased headcount and salaries.

General and administrative expenses increased $2.8 million from 2004 to 2005 due primarily to an increase in
stock-based compensation expense of $5.4 million, increases in rent expense of $1.2 million resulting from the new
lease arrangement in 2005 as well as an increase in payroll related costs of $0.9 million. These increases were
partially off-set by a decrease in legal expenses of $4.4 million in 2005.

Other charges, net. Other charges are summarized as follows:

Litigation settlement. Pursuant to settlement agreements with Alcatel-Lucent and Lucent, we made in the
aggregate total payments of $8.4 million and recorded an operating expense of $5.4 million in the second calendar
quarter of 2006, In October 2004, we entered into a settlement agreement and patent cross-license agreement with
Nortel. As a result of the agreements, Nortel's actions for monetary damages and an injunction against us were
dismissed, and our suit against Nortel was also dismissed. Pursuant to the agreements, we paid $35.0 million to
Nortel and recorded an operating expense of $30.2 million in the third quarter of 2004. The remaining amount paid
to Nortel represents consideration for a four-year cross-license with Nortel and is being amortized ratably to cost of
product revenue over the license term.

Stock option investigation costs. 'We recorded expenses of $7.4 million in 2006 relating to professional fees
and other costs associated with the investigation of stock option grants to our employees.

Interest and other income, net. We earn interest income on funds maintained in interest-bearing money
market and investment accounts, We recorded net interest and other income of $34.4 million, $18.1 million, and
$9.8 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The increases each year were primarily due to higher investment
balances combined with increasing interest rates throughout 2004 and 2005. Our total cash and investment balances
were $886.4 million, $746.4 million, and $617.4 million as of December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively,
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year-to-year increases of approximately 19% in 2006 and 21% in 2005. See Item 7A “Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk” for a description of our investment policy.

Provision for Income Taxes. Our effective tax rate was 39%, 33%, and 35% for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. These rates reflect applicable federal and state tax rates, offset by research and
development tax credits, export sales incentives, and tax-exempt interest income.

Our income taxes payable for federal and state purposes have been reduced and stockholders® equity increased,
by the tax benefits associated with taxable dispositions of employee stock options. When an employee exercises a
stock option issued under a nonqualified plan, or has a disqualifying disposition related to a qualified plan, we
receive an income tax benefit for the difference between the fair market value of the stock issued at the time of the
exercise and the related deferred tax asset. These benefits are credited directly to stockholders’ equity and amounted
to $10.5 million, $2.2 million and $21.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

’

Accelerated Vesting of Stock Options.  On November 3, 2005, our Board of Directors approved the immediate
vesting of approximately 2.2 million shares of unvested stock options previously awarded to employees and officers
that have an exercise price of $20.00 or greater under our equity compensation plans, The closing market price per
share of our common stock on November 3, 2005 was $12.44 and the exercise prices of the approximately
2.2 million in unvested options on that date ranged from $21.50 to $27.33. The Board of Directors made the decision
to immediately vest these options based in part on the issuance of SFAS 123R. Absent the acceleration of these
options, upon adoption of SFAS 123R, we would have been required to recognize approximately $25.0 millicn in
pre-tax compensation expense from these options over their remaining vesting terms as of December 31, 2005, We
also believe that because the options that were accelerated had exercise prices in excess of the current market value
of our common stock, the options were not fully achieving their original objective of incentive compensation and
employee retention. Certain of the stock options which were vested by the Board of Directors in November of 2005
were subsequently determined to require remeasurement as part of the restatement. The unamortized deferred
stock-based compensation at the time of accelerated vesting was $0.1 million. Under the guidelines of APB 25, we
accelerated the amortization of the deferred stock-based compensation for the options with accelerated vesting and
have recorded stock-based compensation expense of $0.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2005,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)
Restated(1) Restated(1)

Cash and cash equivalents ... ........... ... ................. $ 258,137  $291,511  $ 112,274
Short-term InVeStMENtS. . . . .. ...ttt it i ime e et 434,182 280,868 331,202
Long-term investments. . . . .. .. . . i e e 194,114 173,988 173,965
Total . .o e e $ 886433  $746,367  $ 617441
Net cash provided by operating activities . ...................... $ 95181 $109905 $ 81,525
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . .............. (181,713) 40,411 (169,627)
Net cash provided by financing activities . . .. ................... 53,685 28,426 39.156

{1y See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Cash and investments increased $140.1 million in 2006 from 2005 primarily due to cash generated from
operations of $95.2 million and the receipt of $47.7 million of cash from issuances of common stock to employees,
Cash provided by operating activities was primarily attributable to net income of $38.7 million, plus adjustments for
nen-cash charges, including $50.3 million of stock-based compensation, $9.4 million of inventory provisions,
$10.2 million of depreciation and amortization, and a net decrease in operating assets of $7.3 million, offset by an
increase in deferred tax assets of $15.9 million.
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Cash and investments increased $128.9 million in 2005 from 2004 primarily due to cash generated from
operations of $109.9 million and the receipt of $28.4 million of cash from issuances of common stock to employees.
Cash provided by operating activities was primarily attributable to net income of $53.6 million, plus adjustments for
non-cash charges, including $4.6 million of stock-based compensation, $15.1 million of inventory provisions,
$9.1 million of depreciation and amortization, $2.2 million of tax benefit from stock option exercises, $3.2 of
deferred tax assets and a net decrease in operating assets and liabilities of $22.8 million.

Inventories were $34.9 million, $32.3 million, and $38.5 million as of December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. Inventories were higher in 2004 as we significantly increased our production and service inventory
levels to support a broader product offering and larger installed customer base. Inventory turnover was approx-
imately 6.6, 4.1, and 3.7 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Accounts receivable, net of allowances, decreased $5.2 million in 2006 and $13.2 million in 2005. Our
accounts receivable and days sales outstanding (DSO) are primarily affected by shipment linearity, collections
performance, and timing of support contract renewals. DSO, calculated based on annualized revenue for the most
recent quarter ended and net accounts receivable as of the balance sheet date, decreased to 50 days as of
December 31, 2006, from 61 days as of December 31, 2005, and from 79 days as of December 31, 2004, DSO was
unusually high as of December 31, 2004 due to a higher amount of annual support contracts billed during December
2004, with little or no revenue contribution in 2004 and less linear shipments during the fourth quarter of 2004, in
which approximately 65% of our product revenue shipped during the last month of the quarter, Our order receipts
and shipping linearity improved in the fourth quarter of 2006 and DSO dropped to 50 days as a result.

The amount of capital we will need in the future will depend on many factors, including capital expenditure
and hiring plans to accommodate future growth, research and development plans, the levels of inventory and
accounts receivable that we maintain, future demand for our products and related cost and pricing, the level of
exercises of stock options and stock purchases under our employee stock purchase plan, and general economic
conditions. Although we do not have any current plans or commitments to do so, we do from time to time consider
the repurchase of shares, strategic investments to gain access to new technologies, or the acquisition of products or
businesses complementary to our business. Any acquisition or investment may require additional capital. We have
funded our business primarily through our operating activities and we believe that our cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments and cash generated from operations will satisfy our working capital needs, capital
expenditures, commitments and other liquidity requirements associated with our operations through at least the
next 12 months.

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitmenis

The féllowing table aggregates our contractual obligations and commercial commitments at December 31,
2006, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in
thousands):

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating leases of facilities. . . ............... $15,177  $ 6,211 $7.030 $1,927 $9
Purchase commitments with contract
MAanufacturers. . . .o v v v i e e e e 53,434 53,434 _ — s
Total contractual cash obligations . . ............ $68,611  $59.645  $7.030  $1927 §9

For purposes of the above table, contractual obligations for the purchase of goods or services are defined as
agreements that are enforceable, legally binding on us and that subject us to penalties if we cancel the agreement.
Our purchase commitments are based on our short-term manufacturing needs and are fulfilled by our vendors within
short time horizons.

Although it is difficult for us to predict future liquidity requirements with certainty, we believe our existing
cash balances and anticipated funds from operations in 2007 will satisfy our cash requirements for at least the next
12 months. Key factors affecting our cash flows include our ability to effectively manage our working capital, in
particular, inventories and accounts receivable, and future demand for our products and related pricing. We may
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incur higher capital expenditures in the near future to expand our operations. Although we do not have any current
plans or commitments to do so, we may from time to time consider the acquisition of products or businesses
complementary to our business. Any acquisition or investment may require additional capital.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than operating leases of facilities and purchase commitments with contract manufacturers, we do not
maintain any off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, or obligations that are reasonably likely to have a
material current or future effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, or capital resources.

Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements under which we may agree to
indemnify the counter-party from losses relating to a breach of representations and warranties, a failure to perform
certain covenants, or claims and losses arising from certain external events as outlined within the particular contract,
which may include, for example, losses arising from litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such
indemnification clauses may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. No amounts are reflected in our consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2006 or 2005 related to these indemnifications.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
Interest rate risk

Our investments are made in accordance with an investment policy approved by our Board of Directors. The
primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve capital while maximizing yields without significantly
increasing risk. Our exposure to interest rate risk relates to our investment portfolio, which includes corporate and
municipal bonds and government-sponsored enterprise securities. In general, money market funds are not subject to

| market risk because the interest paid on such funds fluctuates with the prevailing interest rate. We do not use interest

. rate swaps in our investment portfolio. We place our investments with high-credit quality issuers and, by policy,

! limit the amount of credit exposure with any one issuer or fund. For liquidity purposes, our investment policy
requires that we maintain a minimum of $75 million in money market accounts of suitable credit quality.

Our investment portfolio, excluding auction rate securities, is classified as held-to-maturity and is recorded at
amortized cost, and includes only securities with original maturities of less than two years and with secondary or
resale markets to ensure portfolio liquidity. Since we hold our investments to maturity, we are exposed to risk in the
event an issuer is not able to meet its obligations at maturity. To mitigate this risk, our investment policy does not
allow us to invest more than $15 million with any one issuer. We do not have any investments denominated in
foreign country currencies, and therefore are not subject to foreign currency risk on such investments.

We have performed & hypothetical sensitivity analysis assuming an immediate parallel shift in the yield curve
of plus or minus 50 basis peints (BPS), 100 BPS, and 150 BPS for the entire year, while all other variables remain
constant. Hypothetical 50 BPS, 100 BPS, and 150 BPS declines in interest rates as of December 31, 2006 would
reduce our annualized interest income by approximately $3.7 million, $7.4 million, and $11.2 million, respectively.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

Currently, the majority of our international sales and expenses are denominated in U.S. dollars and, as a result,
we have not experienced significant foreign exchange gains and losses to date. We do not currently enter into
forward exchange contracts to hedge exposures denominated in foreign currencies or any other derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. However, in the event our exposure to foreign currency risk
increases, we may choose to hedge those exposures. For most currencies, we are a net payer of foreign currencies
and, therefore, benefit from a stronger U.S. dollar and are adversely affected by a weaker U.S. dollar relative to
those foreign currencies.
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We have performed a sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 using a modeling technique that
measures the change in fair values arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in foreign currency exchange
rates relative to the U.S. dollar, with all other variables held constant. Foreign currency exchange rates used were
based on market rates in effect at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The sensitivity analysis indicated that a hypothetical
10% adverse movement in foreign currency exchange rates would not result in a material loss in the fair values of
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Foundry Networks, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Foundry Networks, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Foundry
Networks, Inc.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. ’

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorale.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Foundry Networks, Inc. maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion; Foundry Networks, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006 of Foundry Networks, Inc. and our report dated June 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

fs/  Ernst & YounG LLP

Palo Alto, California
June 12, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Foundry Networks, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Foundry Networks, Inc. as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule
listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation, We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Foundry Networks, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in alt
material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” Foundry Networks, Inc. has
restated previously issued financial statements as of December 31, 2005 and for each of the years in the two year
period ended December 31, 2005,

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2006, Foundry Networks, Inc.
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share Based Payment.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the effectiveness of Foundry Networks, Inc. internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated June 12, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

fs/ Ernst & Young LLP

Palo Alto, California
June 12, 2007
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FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cashequivalents.". . ... ..... ... ... . .. ... .. e
ShOMt-teTTN INVESHMENTS . & o o o vttt et e e e oo e e ee et ta ittt naa s eeee s
Accounts receivable, net of aliowances for doubtful accounts of $2,493 and
$2.387 and sales returns of $2,910 and $1,784 at December 31, 2006 and ]
2008, respectively . . .. .. e
VeI OIES & . o o it et e e e e e e e e e e e
Deferted (AKX ASSeES - . o o o ottt e e e e e
Prepaid expenses and other assets . .. ....... .. ... .. ... i

Total CUITENE A888LS . « o o ot ottt e ettt sttt n e e et et ey
Property and equipment, D€L .. ... .. .ottt e
By TL ot 4§ 17=1 11 - Z A O
Deferred tAX A8SBES & o v vt e it e e e e e e e
OO ASSELS & v v vt i e it e e e e e e e e e e e

oAl ASSEES .« o v o v et it e e e e e e

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . . ...
Accrued payroll and related expenses .. ... ... . i
Income taxes payable . . .. ... . ..
Other accrued EXPEOSES. . . .. .ottt
Deferred Support TeVENUE . . . ... .t e

Total current liabilities. . . . .. . ... .. e e
Deferred SUPPOTt FEVENUE . .. ..o ot i et e n e a e eas

Total liabilities .. ..o oo oo S

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value:
Authorized — 5,000 shares at December 31, 2006 and 2005; None issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 ... ....... ... ... ...
Common stock, $0.0001 par value:
Authorized — 300,000 shares at December 31, 2006 and 2005:
Issued and outstanding — 147,034 and 141,149 shares at December 31, 2006
and 20085, respectively . .. .. ...
Additional paid-in capital . ...... . ... . .
Deferred stock cOmpensation. . . . ... ...ttt it e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . ... .. ... ... . oo
Retained EAITIIES . . . . oo ottt et e e

Total stockholders” equity .. ...... ... e
Total liabilities and stockholders™ equity. . ... ... ... .o i

December 31,

2006

2005

(In thousands, except per
share armounts)

Restated(1}

$ 258,137  $291511
434,182 280,868
73,145 78,351
34,856 32,312
39,455 34,000
8,978 7,825
848,753 724,867
11,103 10,986
194,114 173,988
35,150 24,657
6,270 6,467
$1,095390  $940,965
$ 23,011 $ 22,306
21,878 24,132
5,661 12,457
15,181 9,660
41,706 38,653
113,437 107,208
23,858 21,827
137,295 129,035
15 14
727,358 622,125
— (2,760)

(483) 44
231,205 192,507
958,093 811,930
$1,095,390  $940,965

(1) The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 has been restated to reflect the adjustments discussed
in Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands, except per share data)
Restated(1) Restated(1}

Net revenue:
Product . ..o e e $395,70t 3338784  $349,019
SBrVICE, . e e 77.579 65,072 60,085
Total net revenue . . .. .. .. . e i e 473,280 403,856 409,104
Cost of revenue:
Product . ... e e e 174,526 143,414 129,764
Service. .. ....... .. .. L. b e e e 13,927 11,921 13,454
Total costof revenue . ... .. ... ... i e 188,453 155,335 143,218
GIOSS MATZIN L. . oottt it it e 284,827 248,521 265,886
Operating expenses:
Resecarch and development . . .. .. ... ... 70,658 33,041 38,149
Sales and marketing. . ... ........ . ... .. 128,985 105,701 93,260
General and adminiSIalivE . . . o . vt e e e e e e e e e e 43 854 27,765 24,958
Other charges, net . .. ... . e e e e 12,807 — 30,193
Total Operating eXpenses . . . .. v u 'ttt it i e e 256,304 186,507 186,560
Income from operations. . . ... ... . i e 28,523 62,014 79,326
Interest and Other INCOME, Met. . . . . .. ..t e et e et e i e ee e e ns 34,407 18,078 9,846
Income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle. . . ... ... L e 62,930 80,092 89,172
Provision for income Laxes. . . . ...t et e 24,671 26,530 31,380
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.. .. ... ..... ... 38,259 53,562 57,792
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netof taxes . .. ......... ... 439 — —
N ILCOMIE .+ L . ottt it et e e e $ 38698 § 533,562 § 57,792
Basic net income per share:
Before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ... .......... $ 026 $ 038 § 043
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .. ... ... ... ... ... 0.01 — —
Net income per share —basic ... ... ... ... . i i $ 027 § 038 § 043
Weighted-average shares used in computing basic net income per share . ...... ... 145,167 139,176 135,442
Diluted net income per share:
Before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . ... ......... $§ 025 $ 037 § 040
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .. ................ 0.01 — —
Net income per share —diluted . . ... ... .. . i e $§ 026 $ 037 % 040
Weighted-average shares used in computing diluted net income per share . .. ... ... 150,509 143,974 143,363

(1} The consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 have been restated to reflect the adjustments
discussed in Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Note Accumulated
c Stock Additional Receivable Deferred Other Total
ommon 100X paid-In From Stock Comprehensive Retained Stockholders’ Comprehensive

, Shares Amount Capital Stockholder Compensation Income (Loss) Earnings Equity Income
(In thousands}
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31,
2003 — Previously reported . . . 131,623 $13 $399.789 $(480) 3 — $ a7 $ 191,126 $590.495 $75,074
Adjustment to opening
stockholders’ equity —
Restated(1) . . ... .. ... .. - = 165,896 = (24,398) - (109,973) 31,525 —
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31,
2003 — Restated(1) . .. ... .. 131,623 13 565.685 (480) (24,398 47 81,153 622,020 $75.074
Issuances of common stock
under stock plans . . .. .. .. 5,603 1 18,675 — — — — 38,676
Tax benefil from stock option
exercises — Restated{l) .. .. — — 21.824 — — — — 21,824
Repayment of note receivable
from stockholder. . .. .. ... — — — 480 —_ —_ — 480
Stock-based compensation —
Restated(1) . ... .. ... . — — (34,624) — 16,993 — — (17,631)
Foreign currency translation -
adjustments . . .. ... ... .. — — — — — {498) — (498) $ (498)
Net income — Restated(l) . . . . - = — = — = 57,792 57,792 57,792
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31,
04 — Restated(1) ... ... .. 137,226 14 591,560 — (7.405) {451) 138,945 722,663 $57.294
Issuances of common stock
under stock plans —
Restated() ... ......... 3,923 — 28,425 — — — —_ 28,425
Stock-based compensation —
Restated(l) . .. ... .... .. _- - (39 — 4,645 — —_ 4,606
Tax benefit from stock option
exercises — Restated(1) . . . . _ — 2,179 — —_ —_ — 2179
Foreign currency translation
adjustments . . .. ... ... .. — — — — — 495 — 495 § 495
Net income — Restated{1} . . .. - = —_ = — = 53,562 53,562 53,562
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31,
2005 — Restated(1) ... ... .. 141,149 14 622,125 — (2,760 44 192,507 811,930 $54,057
Elimination of uncamed deferred
compensation upon adopiion
of SFAS 123R . . . . ... ... — - (2,760} — 2,760 —_ —_ —
Issuances of common stock
under stock plans . ... .. .. 5,885 1 47 091 —_ —_ — _— 47.092
Stock-based compensation . . . . — —_ 50,855 — — — — 50,855
Tax benefit from stock option
eXercises ... ...y -— —_ 10,486 —_ — — — 10,486
Cumutative effect of change in
accounting principle. . . . . .. — — (439 — — — — (439)
Foreign currency trunslation
adjustments . . .. ... ... .. — — — — — (527) —_ (527 5 (527)
Netincome .. ........... - = — = — . 38,698 38,698 38,698
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31.
W06 .. 147034  $15  3727.358 5 — 5 — $(483) 5 231,205 $958,095 $38.171

(1) The consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
have been restated to reflect the adjustments discussed in Note 3 “Restatement of Consolidated Financial

Statements,” of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Restated (1) Restated(1)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net INCOME. . . ... e e i e e e $ 38698 § 53562 $ 57,792
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
‘activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . ........ ... ... .. 10,190 9,124 7,746
Stock-based compensation €xpense . ..... ... ..., 50,269 4,549 (17.394)
Provision for doubtful accounts . . ... ....................... 106 (730) (1,033)
Provision for sales returns . . .. ... ... it e 1,126 157 (393)
Inventory provisions . ........... ... .. i 9414 15,116 13,485
Deferred tax assels . . . ... ur ittt it e (15,948) 3,181 4,003
Tax benefit from stock option exercises . .. ................... - 2179 21,823
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation . ............ {6,001) — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable .. ... ... .. e 3,974 13,725 (12,999
IOVentOrIES . ..t e e e (11,811 (8,865) (23,207
Prepaid expenses and other assets .. ........................ (3,581) (3,274) (6,490)
Accounts payable . ... .. .. ... L e 704 4,069 8,157
Accrued payroll and related expenses. . .. ...... ... ... ... ..., 3,746 1,770 5,443
Income taxes payable ... ... .. ... ... . ... .. ... 3,690 10,598 18
Other accrued eXpPenses . . . .. ..ot ittt et 5,521 497 3,395
Deferred support revente. . ... .. ... i e 5,084 4,247 21,119
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .. ............... 95,181 109,905 81,525
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of available-for-sale investments .. ................. (85,625)  (150,700)  (419,426)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments . ................... (665,511) (256,022) (179.602)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments . ... ..., .... 87,725 314,625 326,900
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investments .. ....... 489,971 142,408 110,926
Purchases of property and equipment, net .................... (8,273) (9,900} (8.425)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . ........... (181,713) 40,411 (169,627)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation ... .......... 6,001 — —
Proceeds from issuances of commonstock . ........ ... ... ... .. 47 684 28,426 18,676
Repayment of note receivable from stockholder ... .. .. ... .. cees — — 480
Net cash provided by financing activities . . ............,.... 53,685 28,426 39,156
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ... .............. (32,847) 178,742 (48,946)
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash .. ......... .. ... ... ... (527) 495 (498)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year, . .. ..... ... ... .... 291,511 112,274 161,718
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . ....................... $ 258,137  $ 291,511 $112,274
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for income taxes, netofrefunds. . . ................. $ 36914 % 10,813 §$ 5,252

(1} The consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 have been restated
to reflect the adjustments discussed in Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements “Restatement of

Consolidated Financial Statements.”

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Founded in 1996, Foundry Networks, Inc. (“Foundry” or the “Company”) designs, develops, manufactures,
markets and sells a comprehensive, end-to-end suite of high performance data networking solutions, including
Ethernet Layer 2-7 switches, Metro routers, and Internet traffic management products. We setl our products and
services worldwide through our own direct sales efforts, resellers and OEM relationships. Qur customers include
U.S. government agencies, universities, e-commerce sites, and enterprises such as healthcare, financial, manu-
facturing and entertainment companies, as well as Internet and Metro service providers.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation and Foreign Currency Translation

Our consolidated financial statements reflect the operations of Foundry and our wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The functional corrency of our foreign
subsidiaries is deemed to be the local country’s currency. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated
into U.S. dollars at the exchange rale in effect at the applicable balance sheet date, and revenue and expenses are
translated into U.S. dollars using average exchange rates prevailing during that period. Translation adjustments
have not been material to date and are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
within stockholders’ equity. Our foreign currency translation adjustment for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $(0.5) million, $0.5 million and ${0.5) million, respectively.

Reclassifications

+

Certain prior period amounts on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows have been reclassified to conform
to the December 31, 2006 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying footnotes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates,
judgments and assumptions are used in the recognition of revenue, stock-based compensation, accounting for
allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns, inventory provisions, product warranty liability, income taxes,
deferred tax assets, contingencies and similar items. Estimates, judgments and assumptions are reviewed period-
ically by management and the effects of revisions are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period
in which they are made.

Cash Equivalents and Investments

We consider all investments with insignificant interest rate risk and with original maturities of 90 days or less
to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of corporate and government debt securities and cash
deposited in checking and money market accounts,

Investments with original maturities greater than 90 days that mature less than one year from the consolidated
balance sheet date are classified as short-term investments. Investments with maturities greater than one year from
the consolidated balance sheet date are classified as long-term investments. Auction rate debt securities are
classified as short-term investments and have original maturities longer than | year but interest rates that reset from
7 days to 2 years.

Qur auction rate securities are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value which approximates
cost. Unrealized gains and losses, if any, are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss). There have been no unrealized gains or losses recorded to date. The 2005 information below has been revised
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10 reflect the reclassification of $17.0 million of municipal bonds as auction rate securities and, therefore, as
available-for-sale investments. All other investments, which include municipal bonds, corporate bonds, and federal
agency securities, are classified as held-to-maturity and stated at amortized cost, We do not recognize changes in the
fair value of held-to-maturity investments in income unless a decline in value is considered other-than-temporary.

Our short-term and long-term investments are maintained and managed at two major financial institutions.
Besides auction rate securities, our investment portfolio includes only marketable securities with original maturities
of less than 2 years and with secondary or resale markets.

We monitor our investments for impairment on a quarterly basis and determine whether a decline in fair value
is other-than-temporary by considering factors such as current economic and market conditions, the credit rating of
the security’s issuer, the length of time an investment’s fair value has been below our carrying value, the interval
between auction periods, whether or not there have been any failed auctions, and our ability and intent to hold
investments to maturity. If an investment’s decline in fair value is caused by factors other than changes in interest
rates and is deemed to be other-than-temporary, we would reduce its carrying value 1o its estimated fair value, as
determined based on quoted market prices or liquidation values. Declines in value judged to be other-than-
temporary, if any, are recorded in operations as incurred.

Cash equivalents and investments consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash equivalents: )
Money market funds . .......... ... ... ... ... ... $ 89,299 §— 5 — $ 89,299
Government-sponsored enterprise securities. .. ......... 104,425 32 — 104,457
Available-for-sale:
Auction rate municipal bonds . . ......... ... ... ... 92,774 — — 92,774
Held-to-maturity:
Municipal bonds ... ... ... ... . 46,377 13 e (29) 46,361
Government-sponsored enterprise securities. , , .. ..... ., 500,092 i (1,145) 498,955
$832,967 $53 (1,174) $831,846
Cashequivalents .. ........ ... ... ... . iveunnnn. $204,671 32 (6)  $204,697
Short-term investments. . . ........ ...t ineannn.., 434,182 2 (860) 433,324
Long-term investments. ... ... .. ... ..ttt nn. 194,114 _19 (308) 193,825
$832,967 $53 $(1,174)  $831,846
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December 31, 2005 {Restated )(1)

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds . ..... ... ... ... $125.441 $— 3 — $125,441
Government-sponsored enterprise securities. ... ........ 102,912 3 {61) 102,854
Available-for-sale:
Auction rate municipal bonds . . . ......... ... .. P 84,575 — — 84,575
Held-to-maturity:
Municipal bonds .. ......... ... ... i 22,974 — (86) 22,888
Corporate bonds. . . . ... ... . i 1,511 — (9) 1,502
Government-sponsored enterprise securities. .. ......... 345,796 - (2,619) 343,177
$683,209 $3 $(2,775)  $680,437
Cashequivalents . ... ... .. ... irienunenrnnnn.. $228,353 $3 $ (61) $228,295
Short-term INVESIMENIS. . . . v v v vt v et e e ie e e aen e 280,868 —_ (1,360) 279,508
Long-term investments. . . . ... ... e 173,938 = {1,354) 172,634
$683,209 $3 $(2,775) 3680437

{1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Municipal and corporate bonds. Unrealized losses as of December 31, 2006 on our investments in municipal
and corporate bonds were caused by interest rate increases. The contractual terms of the debentures do not permit
the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than .the amortized cost of the investment. The issuets of our
municipal bonds have a credit rating of AAA, and the issuers of our corporate bonds have a credit rating of AA
{Moody's and S&P).

Government-sponsored enterprise securities { “GSEs”).  Unrealized losses as of December 31, 2006 on our
investments in fixed income housing GSEs (i.e., Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corp.) were caused by interest rate increases. The contractual terms of the investments do not permit the
issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the investment. The issuers of our GSEs have a
credit rating of AAA.

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Abstract No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and Its application 10 Certain Investments, (“EITF 03-17), the following table summarizes
the fair value and gross unrealized losses related to our held-to-maturity securities, aggregated by investment

category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, as of
December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Loss Less than 12 months Loss Greater than 12 months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair ¥Valoe Losses Fair Value Losses
Municipal bonds . . .. .. ... ... ... $ 31179 $Q2NH § 1363 F @ $32542 3 (29
Government-sponsored enterprise
SECUrifies .. ..........couunn.. 316,166 (435} 171,788 {(710) 487,954 (1.145)

$347,345 $(462)  $173,151 $(712) $520,496‘ $(1,174)
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Because the decline in.the market value of our investments is attributable to changes in interest rates and not
credit quality, and because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments vntil a recovery of our amortized
cost, which will be at maturity, we do not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2006.

Under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the *1940 Act”), a company meeting the definition of an
“investment company” is subject to various legal requirements on its operations. A company may become subject to
the 1940 Act if, among other reasons, it owns investment securities with a value exceeding 40 percent of the value of
its total assets (excluding government securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis, unless a particular
exemption or safe harbor applies. From time to time, we have invested in municipal bonds. At times, the total value
of the investment securities we hold may exceed 40 percent of total assets. However, we are, and intend to remain,
an operating company not in the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities. Our
efforts are focused almost exclusively on networking equipment products and we intend to continue to conduct
business as an operating company, and to take such actions as are necessary to ensure we are not, and are not
regulated as, an investment company.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We record an allowance for doubtful accounts to ensure trade receivables are not overstated due to
uncollectibility. Accounts receivable are not sold or factored. Exposure to credit risk is controlled through credit
approvals, credit limits, and continuous monitoring procedures. Customers are subject to a credit review process
that evaluates their financial position and ability to pay. Specific allowances for bad debts are recorded when we
become aware of a customer’s inability to meet its financial obligation to us, such as in the case of bankruptey filings
or a significant deterioration in financial position. Estimates are vsed in determining allowances for all other
customers based on factors such as current economic and industry trends, the extent to which receivables are past
due and historical collection experience. Accounts are deemed past due once they exceed the duee date on the
invoice. We mitigate some collection risk by requiring certain international customers to secure letters of credit or
bank guarantees prior to placing an order with us. If circumstances change, estimates regarding the collectibility of
receivables would be adjusted.

Inventories

Inventories are stated on a first-in, first-out basis at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value, and
include purchased parts, labor and manufacturing overhead. Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005
Restated(1)
Purchased parts .. ... ... ... .. . i e $ 5758 % 8,008
WOTK-II-PrOCESS . .« o ot i e e e 13,193 11,475
Finished goods . .. ... o i e e 15,905 12,829

$34,856  $32,312

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

The networking industry is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new product introductions,
changes in customer requirements, and evolving industry standards. Our inventory purchases and commitments are
made based on anticipated demand for our products, as estimated by management, and our expected service
requirements. We perform an assessment of our inventery each quarter, which includes a review of, among other
factors, demand requirements, manufacturing lead-times, product life cycles and development plans, product
pricing and quality issues. Based on this analysis, we estimate the amount of excess and obsolete inventory on hand
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and make adjustments to record inventory at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Once a specific item
in inventory has been written down to the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value, it is reflected on our
balance sheet at its new carrying value until it is sold or otherwise disposed. Inventory provisions of $9.4 million
$15.1 million and $13.5 million were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accrued compensation, and other accrued liabilities, approximates fair market value due to the relatively
short period of time to maturity. The fair value of investments is determined using quoted market prices for those
securities or similar financial 1instruments.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash
equivalents, short and long-term investments, and accounts receivable. We seek to reduce credit risk on financial
instruments by investing in high-quality debt issuances and, by policy, we limit the amount of credit exposure with
any one issuer or fund. Additionally, we grant credit only to customers deemed credit worthy in the judgment of
management. As of December 31, 2006 and 2003, ten customers accounted for approximately 30% and 32%,
respectively, of our net outstanding trade receivables. '

Certain components, including ASICs and power supplies, used in our products are purchased from sole
sources. Such components may not be readily avaitable from other suppliers as the development period required to
fabricate such components can be lengthy. The inability of a supplier to fulfill our production requirements, or the
time required for us to identify new suppliers if a relationship is terminated, could negatively affect our future
results of operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation expense is recorded using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are two years for computers, software, and equipment and three
years for furniture and fixtures. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful
life or the lease term,

Property and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2006 2005
Computers, software and eqUIPMENt . ... ... ..ot $ 46,052  $ 39,198
Leasehold improvements. . ... ... .. ... .. e 5440 4,021
Furniture and fiXtures . . .. .. ... .. . e 109 109

51,601 43,328
Less accumulated depreciation . ........... it (40,498) (32,342)
Property and equipment, Nel . . .. ... ... oo ittt $11,103 $ 10986

Purchased Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired in the settlement of litigation or by direct purchase are accounted for based on the
fair value of assets received. Identifiable intangible assets are primarily comprised of patent rights, and are recorded
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in other assets. Purchased intangibles with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective
estimated useful lives ranging from three to five years.

The following table presents details of the purchased intangible assets which relate to patent cross-license
agreements and patents acquired during fiscal 2006 and 2005 (in thousands, except years):

Weighted-Average

Useful Life
Year Acquired: (in years) Amount
2006 .. ... et e e e e e e e e e e e e 50 $1,883
200 L e e 3.0 $1,893

The following table presents detail of the Company’s total purchased intangible assets (in thousands):

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount

December 31, 2006 . . .. ... . i e $8,583 $3,698 $4,885
December 31, 2005 . . . .. . e $6,700 $i,665 $5,035
As of December 31, 2006, expected future intangible asset amortization is as follows (in thousands):
Fiscal Years:
2007 e e e e $2,208
2008 . e e e e e e e e e 1,750
2000 e e e e e e e e 317
7 377
73 Y i73
$4,885
Impairment

The Company evaluates long-lived assets held-for-use for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An asset is considered
impaired if its carrying amount exceeds the future net cash flow the asset is expected to generate. If an asset is
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its fair market vatue. No long lived assets were considered impaired as of December 31,
2006. :

Revenue Recognition

General. We generally sell our products through our direct sales force and value-added resellers. We
generate the majority of our revenue from sales of chassis and stackable-based networking equipment, with the
remainder of our revenue primarily coming from customer support fees. We recognize revenue when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or performance has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable
and collectibility is reasonably assured. Evidence of an arrangement generally consists of customer purchase orders
and, in certain instances, sales contracts or agreements. Shipping terms and related documents, or written evidence
of customer acceptance, when applicable, are used to verify delivery or performance. We assess whether the sales
price is fixed or determinable based on payment terms and whether the sales price is subject to refund or adjustment.
We assess collectibility based on the creditworthiness of the customer as determined by our credit checks and the
customer’s payment history with us. It is our practice to identify an end-user prior to shipment to a value-added
reseller.
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When sales arrangements contain multiple elements (e.g., hardware and service), we apply the provisions of
EITF lssue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables, (“EITF 00-217), to determine the
separate units of accounting that exist within the arrangement. If more than one unit of accounting exists, the
arrangement consideration is allocated to each unit of accounting using either the relative fair value method or the
residual fair value method as prescribed by EITF 00-21. Revenue is recognized for each unit of accounting when the
revenue recognition criteria described in the preceding paragraph have been met for that unit of accounting.

Product. Product revenue is generally recognized upon transfer of title and risk of loss, which is generally
upon shipment. If an acceptance period or other contingency exists, revenue is recognized upon the earlier of
customer acceptance or expiration of the acceptance period, or upon satisfaction of the contingency. Shipping
charges billed to customers are included in product revenue and the related shipping costs are included in cost of
product revenue.

At the time product revenue is recognized, we estimate the amount of warranty costs to be incurred and record
the amount as a cost of product revenue. Our standard warranty period extends one to five years from the date of
sale, depending on the type of product purchased. Our estimate of the amount necessary to settle warranty claims is
based primarily on our past experience. We also provide for estimated sales returns at the time product revenue is
recognized and record that amount as a reduction to product revenue. Our sales return provision is based primarily
on historical sales returns and our return policies. Our resellers generally do not have a right of return and our
contracts with original equipment manufacturers only provide for rights of return in the event our products do not
meet our published specifications or there is an epidemic failure, as defined in the contracts.

Services. Service revenue consists primarily of fees for customer support services. Our suite of customer
support programs provides customers access Lo technical assistance, unspecified software updates on a when-and-if
available basis, hardware repair and replacement parts.

Support services are offered under renewable, fee-based contracts. Revenue from customer support contracts is
deferred and recognized ratably over the contractual support period, in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Technical Bulletin 90-1, Accounting for Separately Priced Extended Warranry and
Product Maintenance Contracts. Support contracts generally range from one to five years.

Segment and Geographic Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is
available and evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker, or decision-making group, in deciding how
to allocate resources and in'assessing performance. We are organized as, and operate in, one reportable segment: the
design, development, manufacturing, marketing and sale of a comprehensive, end-to-end suite of high-performance
data networking solutions, including Ethernet Layer 2-7 switches, Metro routers and Internet traffic management
products. Qur chief operating decision-making group reviews consolidated financial information, accompanied by
information about revenue by geographic region and configuration type. We do not assess the performance of our
geographic regions on other measures of income or expense, such as depreciation and amortization, gross margin or
net income. In addition, our assets are primarily located in our corporate oftice in the United States and not allocated
to any specific region. Therefore, geographic information is presented only for net product revenue.

We manage our business based on four geographic regions: the Americas (primarily the United States);
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa (“EMEA™); Japan; and Asia Pacific. Our foreign offices conduct sales,
marketing and support activities. Because some of our customers, such as the United States. government and
multinational companies, span various geographic locations, we determine revenue by geographic region based on
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the billing location of the customer. Net product revenue by region as a percentage of net product revenue was as
follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

N a4 Ty 1o T 63% 64% 64%
EMEA ............ FRP 18% 18% 18%
1 1 1% 10% 10%
Asia Pacific .. ... e e 8% 8% 8%

Sales to the United States government accounted for approximately 17%, 19% and 27% of our total revenue in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, no other individual customer accounted for 10% or more of
our net product revenue.

Advertising Costs

We expense advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 were $4.2 million, $5.7 million and $7.9 million, respectively,

Sales Taxes

We account for taxes charged to our customers and collected on behalf of the taxing authorities on a net basis.

Computation of Per Share Amounts :

Basic earnings per share (“EPS™) has been calculated using the weighted-average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during the period, less shares subject to repurchase. Diluted EPS has been calculated using the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period and potentially dilutive
weighted-average common stock equivalents. There were no shares subject to repurchase during 2005, and 2004.
As of December 31, 2006 627,750 restricted shares were subject to repurchase. Weighted-average common stock
equivalents include the potentially dilutive effect of in-the-money stock options, determined based on the average
share price for each period using the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stock method, the tax-effected
proceeds that would be received assuming the exercise of all in—the—fnoney stock options are assumed to be used to
repurchase shares in the open market. Certain common stock equivalents were excluded from the calculation of
diluted EPS because the exercise price of these common stock eguivalents was greater than the average market price
of the common stock for the respective period and, therefore, their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. There
were 15.1 million, 13.5 million and 3.8 million anti-dilutive common stock equivalents for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

{In thousands, except per share amounts)
Restated(1) Restated(1)

NELIMCOMIE . -+« o v e e e e e e e e e e $ 38,698 $ 53,562 $ 57,792
Basic:

Weighted-average shares outstanding . . .. .............. 145,167 139,176 135,442
Basic EPS. . ... . e e e $ 027 $ 0.38 $ 043
Diluted:

Weighted-average shares outstanding . .. ............... 145,167 139,176 135,442

Add: Weighted-average dilutive potential shares. . ........ 5,342 4,798 7,921

Weighted-average shares used in computing diluted EPS ... 150,509 143,974 143,363
Diluted EPS . ... . e e $ 026 % 037 % 040

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment, {“SFAS 123R”) which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation
expense for all stock-based awards made to employees and directors including employee stock options, restricted
stock units and purchases under our 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan based on estimated fair values. SFAS 123R
supersedes the previous accounting under Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257), as allowed under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(“SFAS 123™), for periods beginning in 2006, In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 107 (“SAB 107) relating to SFAS 123R. We have applied the
provisions of SAB 107 in conjunction with our adoption of SFAS 123R.

We adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective transition method, which requires the application of
the accounting standard as of January 1, 2006, the first day of our fiscal year 2006. Our consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflect the impact of SFAS 123R. In accordance with the
modified prospective transition method, our consolidated financial statements for periods prior to 2006 have not
been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R.

SFAS 123R requires companies to estimate the fair value of stock-based awards on the date of grant using an
option-pricing model. We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model and a single option award approach to
determine the fair value of stock options under SFAS 123R, consistent with that used for pro forma disclosures
under SFAS 123. The fair value of restricted stock is equivalent to the market price of our common stock on the
grant date, The value of the portion of the stock-based award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as
expense over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, in our Consolidated Statement of
Income.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended
December 31, 2006 included (i) compensation expense for stock-based awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as
of, December 31, 2005 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123
and (ii) compensation expense for the stock-based awards granted subsequent to December 31, 2005 based on the
grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Compensation expense for all
expected-to-vest stock-based awards will continue to be recognized using the straight-line attribution method
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provided that the amount of compensation cost recognized at any date is no less than the portion of the grant-date
value of the award that is vested at that date. In dur stock-based compensation expense required under APB 25 and
the pro forma information required under SFAS 123 for the periods prior to 2006, we accounted for forfeitures as
they occurred. Upon adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006, we adjusted retained earnings by approximately
$439,000. This adjustment reflects the cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS 123R on retained earnings and
represents our estimate of previously recognized stock-based compensation expense that will be reversed when
stock options granted prior to December 31, 2003 are forfeited.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, stock-based compensation expense was recognized in our Consolidated
Statement of Income under the provisions of APB 25. Compensation expense under APB 25 was recognized using
the accelerated, multiple-option method. In accordance with APB 25, no compensation expense was recognized
under our 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Stock-based compensation expense/(benefit) of $4.6 million and
$(17.6) million was recognized for the years 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to employee stock-based awards.
As a result of adopting SFAS 123R, stock-based compensation expense recorded for 2006 was $50.8 million, or
$47.2 million higher than which would have been reported had we continued to account for stock-based
compensation under APB 25. Net income for 2006 was approximately $28.7 million lower than that which would
have been reported had we continued to account for stock-based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted
earnings per share would have been $0.20 and $0.19 higher, respectively, had we continued to account for stock-
based compensation under APB 25. Unamortized deferred compensation associated with stock options assumed
from past acquisitions and employee stock-based awards of $2.8 million has been reclassified to additional paid-in
capital in our consolidated balance sheet upon the adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006,

In accordance with SFAS 123R, tax benefits from employee stock plans of $6.0 miltion, which related to tax
deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized, were presented as financing cash flows for 2006. Prior to
the adoption of SFAS 123R, tax benefits from employee stock plans were presented as operating cash flows.
Additionally, In accordance with SFAS 123R, SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 1097}, and
EITF Topic No. D-32, Intraperiod Tax Allocation of the Effect of Pretax Income from Continuing Operations, we
have elected to recognize excess income tax benefits from stock option exercises in additional paid-in capital only if
an incremental income tax benefit would be realized after considering all other tax attributes presently available to
us. In addition, we account for the indirect effects of stock-based compensation, such as research and development
tax credits and domestic manufacturing deduction, through the statement of income.

We have elected the “long method” of computing our hypothetical APIC pool pursuant to the income tax
provisions included in SFAS 123R.
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The following table summarizes the pro forma net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share, net of related tax
effect, had the Company applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to employee stock benefits (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
Restated (1) Restated(1)

Net INCOME . . . .. o ettt e $ 53,562 % 57,792
Add: Total stock-based compensation expense (benefit) included in

reported net income, net of tax effect . . ... ... ... .. L o oL 2,852 (10,431)
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined using the fair

value method for all awards, net of related tax effect .. ............. (60,922) {61,214)
Pro forma net L0SS . . o . ottt e e e $ (4508 $(13,853)
Basic net income (loss) per share:

ASTEPOMEA . . L . ot e e $ 038 § 043

Proforma . ... o e e e e $ (003 $ .(0.10)
Diluted net income (loss) per share

ASTEpOMted . . . . ... $ 037 % 040

Pro fOrma . ..ttt e e e e $§ (003 $ (.10
Weighted-average shares forbasic EPS ........................ ... 139,176 135,442
Weighted-average shares for diluted EPS . . ... ... ... .. oo 143,974 143,363

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Valuation of Stock-Based Compensation

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model includes assumptions regarding expected stock price volatility,
option lives, dividend yields, and risk-free interest rates. These assumptions reflect our best estimates, but involve
uncertainties based on market conditions generally outside of our control,

The fair value of stock option grants and employee stock purchases under the Company’s 1999 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were estimated using the following weighted-average
assumptions:

Stock Option Plan . Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
’ 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Average risk free interest rate . . . . . 4.71% 3.72% 293% 4.40% 2.48% 2.12%
Average expected life of the
opiions ... ... ... L. .. ... 34 years 3.0years 35years 14 years 1.3 years 1.4 years

Dividend yield ................ 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Volatility of common stock . . ... .. 46.6% 61.9% 71.9% 48.3% 63.2% 67.1%

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yieid curve in effect at the
time of grant for periods corresponding with the expected life of the option.

Expected Term. Prior to the fourth quarter of 2005, the expected term of options granted was based on
historical experience as well as the contractual terms and vesting periods of the options. Beginning in the fourth
quarter of 2005, the expected term of options granted is derived from the average midpoint between vesting and the

75




FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

contractual term, as described in SAB 107. Management believes this calculation provides a reasonable estimate of
expected life for our employee stock options.

Expected Dividend. The Black-Scholes valuation model calls for a single expected dividend yield as an
input. We have never paid cash dividends on our capital stock and we do not expect to pay cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.

Expected Volatility.  Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006, expected volatility assumptions
were based primarily on the historical volatility of our common stock over the most recent period commensurate
with the estimated expected life of our stock options. En anticipation of adopting SFAS 123R, the Company refined
its computation of expected volatility by considering the volatility of publicly traded options to purchase its
common stock and its historical stock volatility. Subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on guidance provided in
SFAS 123R and SAB 107, our volatility assumption for the year ended December 31, 2006 was based upon equal
weightings of the historical volatility of Foundry stock over the expected term of the relevant awards and the
implied volatility of traded options on Foundry stock having a life of more than six months. Management believes
that a blend of implied volatility and historical volatility is more reflective of market conditions and a better
indicator of expected volatility than using purely historical volatility. The Company may change its volatility
assumption in the future if management believes it will generate a more representative estimate of fair value.

Estimated Forfeitures. The Company estimates forfeitures based on an analysis of historical actual option
forfeitures. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

The weighted-average estimated fair value of employee stock options granted during 2006, 2005, and 2004
was $5.44, $4.33 and $7.06 per option, respectively. The weighted-average estimated fair value of shares granted
under the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan during 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $3.96, $4.33, and $4.16 per share,
respectively.

Accelerated Vesting of Stock Options

On November 3, 2005, the Board of Directors approved the immediate vesting of approxi}natcfy 2.2 million
shares of unvested stock options previously awarded to employees and officers that have an exercise price of $20.00
or greater under our equity compensation plans. The closing market price per share of our common stock on
November 3, 2005 was $12.44 and the exercise prices of the approximately 2.2 million in unvested options on that
date ranged from $21.50 10 $27.33. The Board of Directors made the decision to immediately vest these options
based in part on the issuance of SFAS 123R. Absent the acceleration of these options, upon adoption of SFAS 123R,
we would have been required to recognize approximately $25.0 million in pre-tax compensation expense from these
options over their remaining vesting terms as of December 31, 2005. By accelerating these unvested stock options,
the related compensation expense is included in the 2005 pro forma results below. We also believe that because the
options that were accelerated had exercise prices in excess of the current market value of our common stock, the
options were not fully achieving their original objective of incentive compensation and employee retention. Certain
of the stock options which were vested by the Board of Directors in November of 2005 were subsequently
determined to require remeasurement as part of the restatement. The unamortized deferred stock-based compen-
sation at the time of accelerated vesting was $0.1 million. Under the guidelines of APB 25 the Company accelerated
the amortization of the deferred stock-based compensatton for the options with accelerated vesting and has recorded
stock-based compensation expense of $0.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2005.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes —an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 {“FIN 48”), to create a single model to address accounting for uncertainty
in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes, by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a
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tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and as a result, is effective for the
Company in the first quarter of 2007. The Company completed its analysis and the impact of the adoption of FIN 48
on January 1, 2007 will result in an increase to retained earnings of $0.8 million. In addition, the Company will
record a decrease to deferred tax assets of $2.9 million, a decrease to additional paid-in capital of $4.2 million and
an increase to taxes payable of $0.5 million as part of the adoption of FIN 48.

In June 2006, the FASB reached consensus on Emerging EITF No. 06-2, Accounting for Sabbatical Leave and
Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences (“EITF 06-27).
Paragraph 6 of Statement No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences (“*SFAS 437}, requires accrual of a liability
for compensated absences when certain criteria are met, including a requirement that the obligation relates to rights
that vest or accumulate. The EITF reached a consensus that an employee’s right to a compensated absence under a
sabbatical or similar benefit arrangement does accomulate pursuant to SFAS 43 and, therefore, a liability for the
benefit should be accrued over the period required for the employee to earn the right to the time off under the
arrangement. Thé guidance in this consensus is to be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
The Company currently records expense for sabbatical leaves at the point in time that employees have met the
sabbatical service requirernents, not over the period required for employees 1o earn the right to a sabbatical. In the
first quarter of 2007, the Company will adopt EITF 06-2 through a cumulative-effect adjustment. This will result in
a reduction to retained earnings of approximately $683,000. The Company does not expect the adoption of
EITF 06-2 to have a material impact on the future financial results of the Company.

In September 2006, the FASB, issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. The Company is currently assessing the potential effect if any of implementing this standard.

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 1087}, which is effective for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006. SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior
year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. We do not
expect the adoption of SAB 108 to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

3. RESTATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We are restating our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005
and December 31, 2004. In addition, we are restating the unaudited quarterly financial information and financial
statements for interim periods of 2005, and unaudited condensed financial statements for the three months ended
March 31, 2006.

Stock Option Investigation

Our inquiry into our stock option granting practices was voluntary and began as an internal review in May 2006
in response to a report by the Center for Financial Research and Analysis entitled “Options Backdating — Which
Companies are at Risk?” that identified Foundry as a company “with a moderate risk™ of options backdating. In June
2006, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors concluded that, given the preliminary findings of the internal
review to date, it would be appropriate for us to conduct a formal and independent investigation of our option
granting practices and a Special Committee of the Audit Committee was formed to oversee the investigation. The
Special Committee retained independent counse! to conduct a comprehensive internal investigation, who in turn
retained forensic accountants to assist them. Throughout the course of the investigation, the Special Committee’s
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independent advisers reported directly to the Special Committee, comprised of a single independent director, Alan
L. Earhart, who joined our Board of Directors in 2003 and has never served on our Compensation Committee.

The scope of the Special Committee’s investigation was extensive, and included the review of stock option
grants during the period from our September 27, 1999 initial public offering through May 2006.

Consistent with the current accounting literature and published guidance from the staff of the SEC, we
organized option grants awarded during the review period into categories based on the type of granting action that
occurred and the process by which a grant was finalized. We analyzed the available evidence related to each
category of grants, including electronic and physical documents, document metadata (electronically recorded
information about the creation or editing of documents), and witness interviews. Based on relevant facts and
circumstances, we applied the applicable accounting standards to determine a measurement date for every grant
within each category. If the measurement date was other than the originally recorded grant date, we made
accounting adjustments as required, resulting in stock-based compensation expense and related tax effects.

Judgment

In calculating the amount of incremental stock-based compensation expense that we are required to record
under generally accepted accounting principles, we made certain interpretations and assumptions and drew certain
conclusions from and regarding the internal investigation findings. Where we had incomplete documentation, we
considered, among other things, the guidance provided by the Oftice of the Chief Accountant of the SEC, pursuant
to a letter dated September 19, 2006 (“Chief Accountant’s Letter”). Specifically, the Chief Accountant’s Letter
states that companies such as ours should use all reasonably available relevant information to form reasonable
conclusions as to the most likely option granting actions that occurred and the dates on which such actions occurred
in determining the parameters of the restatement.

We made certain legal interpretations regarding, among other things, the requirements under Delaware law for
the granting of stock options, the effectiveness of actions taken by our Board of Directors and certain of its
committees, and the effectiveness and effect of granting actions by written consent. We also made a number of
accounting interpretations, including interpreting various SEC staff views and applying those interpretations to our
facts and circumstances. For example, we interpreted and applied APB 25 and related interpretations to each
category of granting actions discussed below. We were required to make a determination of the correct measurement
date, which under APB 25 is defined as “the first date on which are known both (1) the number of shares that an
individual employee is entitled to receive and (2) the option or purchase price, if any.”

We believe that the approaches we used were the most appropriate under the circumstances.

As a result of the independent investigation, our management concluded, and the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors agreed, that incorrect measurement dates were used for financial accounting purposes for certain
stock option grants made in prior periods. Therefore, we have recorded additional stock-based compensation
expense and related tax effects with regard to past stock option grants, and we are restating previously filed financial
statements.

Summary of Stock-Based Compensation Adjustments
We determined that the originally recorded grant dates for 151 granting actions cannot be supported as the
proper measurement dates. Accordingly, after accounting for forfeitures, cancellations, vesting acceleration and

other related adjustments, the Company recorded additional stock-based compensation expense and related
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charges, including tax effects, with regard to past stock option grants. These adjustments, shown both before and
after tax, are as follows (in millions):

Summary of Stock Option Investigation Restatement

Becrease
{Increase) to

Pre-Tax Income Tax Capitalized in Retained

Fiscal Year Adjustments Benefit(1) Total Impact Inventory(2) Earnings

1999 . . ... $ 03 $ (14 $ (1. $ — $ (1D
2000 ... ... .. 38.0 (16.5) 21.5 = 21.5
2001 ... L 523 21.1) 31.2 — 31.2
2002 .. 24.1 (9.6) 14.5 (0.3) 14.2
2003 ... 74.8 (30.1) 44.7 (0.7) 44.0
Subtotal . .............. 189.5 (78.7) 110.8 (1.0) 109.8
2004 ... .. (1713 6.1 (1.0 k.2 9.8)
2005 .. .. 4.7 (2.0} 2.7 (0.2) 2.5
Total ................. $177.1 $(74.6) $102.5 $ — $102.5

(1) Income Tax Benefit includes adjustments to reflect a previously unrecorded deferred tax benefit of approx-
imately $3.6 mitlion related to our “cheap stock™ compensation expense at the time of our initial public
offering, $1.8 million of which is associated with amortization of cheap stock in 1999.

(2) These amounts reflect the net effect of stock-based compensation cost capitalized in inventory. They represent
the net change to cost of product and service revenue by year based on the compensation cost incurred as a result
of the restatement and the respective inventory turnover in each affected period.

Included in the pre-tax adjustments above is approximately $0.8 million of employment tax charges related to
stock options affected by the revised measurement dates, and approximately $0.4 million of other stock-based
compensation expense.

As a result of the restatement, we recognized $102.5 million, after-tax, of stock-based compensation expense
through fiscal 2005, and had approximately $2.8 million of deferred stock-based compensation expense remaining
to be amortized as of December 31, 2005. On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS 123R. As required by SFAS 123R,
the unamortized deferred compensation expense of $2.8 million at January 1, 2006 has been reclassified to
additional paid-in capital. -
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The impact of recognizing additional stock compensation and other adjustments on each component of
stockholders’ equity at the end of each year is summarized as follows (in millions):

Common Stock & . Net Impact to
Additional Paid-In Deferred Stock Retained Stockholders’

Fiscal Year Capital Compensation Earnings Equity
1999 . e § 22 3 (2.3) $ 11 $ 10
2000 ... ... 96.6 (59.5) (21.5) 15.6
2000 ... 12.3 38.1 (31.2) 19.2
2002 ..., (19.1) 13.1 (14.2) (20.2)
2003 ... 73.8 (13.8) (44.0) 16.0
Subtotal . ..................... 165.8 (24.4) (109.8) 3L.6
2004 ... .. 42.0) 17.0 9.8 (i15.2)
2005 ... ... {2.6) 4.6 (2.5 (0.3)

g
-
=N
(=53

121.2 3 2.8 $(102.5) $159

Tax Impact of Restatement Items

In connection with the restatement of the consolidated financial statements due to stock option adjustments, we
recorded deferred tax benefits on the non-cash stock-based compensation expense over the option vesting periods
for grants to individuals who were employed in tax jurisdictions where a tax deduction was available. The aggregate
reduction in the tax provision of $74.6 million resulted in a $102.5 million restatement, net of taxes.

Internal Revenue Code Section 162{m) limits the deductibility of compensation in excess of $1.0 million that
is not performance-based and that is paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the four other named executive officers
in our annual proxy statement. In the year in which any such officers exercise options that have been revised as a
result of our investigation we may have compensation expense for which we are not able to take a corresponding tax
deduction. We are not able to predict the likelihood of this tax benefit limitation on deductibility of our
compensation expense in the future,

Stock-based compensation expense for non-qualified stock options (including incentive stock options deemed
to be non-qualified as a result of the re-measurement) was assumed to be deductible at the time of exercise, subject
to limitations under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code and local country law.

Because virtually all holders of options issued by us were neither involved in nor aware of our accounting
treatment of stock options, we have taken and intend to take actions to deal with certain adverse tax consequences
that may be incurred by the holders of certain incorrectly priced options. The primary adverse Lax consequence is
that incorrectly priced stock options vesting after December 31, 2004 may subject the option holder to a penalty tax
under Internal Revenue Code Section 409A (and, as applicable, similar penalty taxes under California and other
state tax laws). We expect to record approximately $4.8 million in operating expense in future periods in relation to
these items and other tax related items.

In the restated consolidated financial statements, we recorded deferred tax assets for stock compensation
expense attributable to non-qualified stock options. The deferred tax assets were recognized in the statement of
income in accordance with the applicable vesting periods of the non-qualified stock options. To the extent actual
events were inconsistent with the initial assumptions and tax benefits were not ultimately realized, we reversed the
recorded tax benefits in the year in which such events occurred. When options were cancelled or expired
unexercised, recorded tax benefits were reversed to additional paid in capital to the extent of previous credits
to additional paid in capital for excess tax bepeﬁts, and then to the income tax provision.
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Impact on SFAS 123 Disclosure

Additionally, we have restated the pro forma amortization of deferred stock compensation included in reported
net income, net of tax, and total stock-based employee compensation expenses determined under fair value based
method, net of tax, under SFAS 123 in Note 1 to reflect the impact of the stock-based compensation expense
resulting from the correction of these past stock option grants. In addition, in August 2002, we announced a stock
option exchange program, pursuant to which 5,744,500 options were cancelled in September 2002 and replacement
options were granted in March 2003. We determined that we under-amortized the fair value of the replacement
options granted in our 2002 tender offer because we excluded approximately $85 million of unamortized fair value
of the tendered grants and only included the incremental fair value associated with the March 2003 re-grant
(amortization of $14.2 million and $17.3 million pertained to fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively). The amount of
pro forma stock-based compensation expense reported in the table below has been revised to reflect the total fair
value of the tendered grants.

The following table presents the effect of the related adjustments on the pro forma calculation of the net
income (loss) and income (loss) per share under SFAS 123 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in
millions, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Year Ended December 31, 2004
As As As
Reported Adjustments Restated Reported Adjustments As Restated
Netincome . .........coooveinenn.. $ 56.1 $(2.5) $53.6 $480 $ 98 $57.8

Add: Total stock-based compensation
expense (benefit) included in reported
net income, net of tax effect. .. ... ... — 2.9 2.9 — (10.4} (10.4)

Deduct: Total stock-based compensation
expense determined using the fair value
method for all awards, net of related

taxeffect............. ... .. ... .. (54.1) (6.9) (61.0) (42.2) (19.1) _(61.3)
Pro forma net income (loss). .......... $ 20 $(6.5) $(@45 $ 58 $(19.7) $(13.9)
Basic net income (loss) per share:
Asreported . ...................... $ 0.40 $038 $035 $ 043
Proforma .............couvuninnn. $001 $(0.03) $0.04 $(0.10)
Diluted net income (loss) per share
Asreported . ... ... ... ... $0.39 $037 $034 $0.40
Proforma .......... ... ... ... $0.01 $(0.03) $004 $(0.10)
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Effect of Restatement Adjustments

The following table presents the effects of the stock-based compensation and related tax adjustments made to
the Company’s previously reported consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 (in millions):

December 31, 2005

As As
Reported Adjustments Restated

ASSETS
Current assets: )
Cash and cash equivalents . . .......................... $291.5 $ — $291.5
Short-term investments . .. ..., ... . ... ... 0. ieinn.. 280.9 — 280.9
Accounts receivable, net .. ... ... . L 784 — 78.4
Inventories . ... ........ ..t e 323 — 323
Deferred tax assets . ... ..ottt 29.3 4.7 340
Prepaid expenses and other assets .. ... ....... ... .. ... .. 7.8 — 7.8
Total current assets ... ...ttt . 720.2 47 7249
Property and equipment, net .. ............ ... ... . ... 11.0 — 11.0
Investments . ... ... e e 174.0 — 174.0
Deferred tax assets . .. .. ... . e 10.3 14.4 24.7
Other assels . . ... . e 6.4 — 6.4
TOtal ASSELS . v vt e et e e e $921.9 $ 19.1 $941.0

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable . . ... ... L $ 223 $ — $ 223
Accrued payroll and related expenses. . .. ... ... ... ... 23.4 0.7 241
Income taxespayable . ...... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 10.2 23 12.5
Other accrued expenses . .. .. .. ... i, 9.5 0.2 9.7
Deferred suppott revenue. . . ...t 38.6 — © 38.6
Total current liabilities. . .. ...... ... . ... .. ... ..... 104.0 3.2 107.2
Deferred support revenue .......... ... 21.9 — 219
Total liabilities . ........ .. ... o i i 125.9 3.2 129.1
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock .. ... . .. o — — —
Commonstock . ... ... . — e —
Additional paid-in capital ........ ... ... ..., . .. .. ... .. 500.9 121.2 622.1
Deferred stock compensation. . . ....................... — 28 @ (28
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ... .......... .. — — —
Retained earnings .. ........ .. ... . ... i 205.1 (102.5) 192.6
Total stockheolders” equity ........ ... ... . ... ... ... 796.0 15.9 811.9
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity . ... ............ $921.9 $ 19.1 $941.0
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The following table presents the effects of the stock-based compensation and related tax adjustments made to
the Company’s previously reported consolidated statements of income as of December 31, 2005 and December 31,
2004, (in millions, except share and per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Year Ended December 31, 2004
As As As As
Reported  Adjustments  Restated - Reported  Adjustments  Restated

Netrevenue . ..........c.uoeuen.. $ 4039 $ — $ 4039 §$ 4091 $ — % 4091
Costofrevenue ................. 155.2 0.2 1554 143.4 0.2) 143.2
Grossmargin . . ................. 248.7 (0.2) 248.5 265.7 0.2 265.9
Operating expenses: ‘
Research and development . ........ 513 1.7 53.0 43.9 (5.8) 38.1
Sales and marketing . ... ........ .. 103.9 1.8 105.7 98.6 (5.3) 93.3
General and administrative . ... ... .. 27.0 0.8 27.8 29.6 (4.6) 25.0
Other charges, net .. ............. — —_ — 30.2 — 30.2
Total operating expenses. . .. ....... 182.2 4.3 186.5 202.3 (15.7) 186.6
Income from operations . . ......... 66.5 (4.5} 62.0 63.4 15.9 79.3
Interest and other income, net. . ... .. 18.1 — 18.1 9.9 — 9.9
Income before provision for income

TAXES ... 84.6 (4.5) 80.1 733 15.9 89.2
Provision for income taxes .. ....... 28.5 2.0) 26.5 25.3 6.1 314
Netincome .................... $ 561 $(25y $§ 536 § 480 3 98 $ 578
Basic net income per share. ... ..... $ 040 $ 038 § 035 $ 043
Weighted-average shares used in

computing basic net income per

share (in thousands) ............ 139,176 139,176 135,445 135,442
Diluted net income per share ....... $ 039 $ 037 $ 034 $ 040
Weighted-average shares used in

computing diluted net income per

share (in thousands) . ........... 143,323 ‘ 143,974 143,118 143,363
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The following tables present the effects of the stock-based compensation and related tax adjustments upon the
Company's previously reported consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005
and December 31, 2004 (in millions);

Year Ended December 31, 2005
As Reported Adjustments As Restated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net IICOmeE . . .o i et e e e e $ 56.1 $(2.5) $ 536
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities: '

Depreciation and amortization . . .. ........ ... ... .. ... ... 9.1 — 9.1
Stock-based compensation. . ............ ... ... ... ... ..., — 4.6 4.6
Provision for doubtful accounts . . .......... ... ... ... ....... 0.2 (0.9} .7
Provision forsalesreturns . . . ... ........ .. .. ..o .. 0.1 — 0.1
Inventory provisions . ........... ... .trinrinnninnnn.. 15.1 — 15.1
Deferred tax assets ... ...t ii it i e 2.7 0.5 32
Tax benefit from stock option exercises . ..........c.vvnvu... 4.5 (2.3) 2.2
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable. . ... .. ... .. L 12.9 0.8 13.7
Inventories ... ... .. .. e e (8.1 (0.2) (8.9)
Prepaid expenses and other assets .......................... 3.3 — (3.3)
Accounts payable .. ... ... ... .. . 4.1 — 4.1
Accrued payroll and related expenses. . .. ... ... . ... ... ... 1.7 0.1 1.8
Income taxes payable ............. ... .. ... . ... 10.2 0.4 10.6
Other accrued eXpenses . ... . it e i et e 0.8 0.3) 0.5
Deferred support revenue. . ... ........ ... ... . 4.2 — 4.2
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .................. 109.7 02 109.9
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of avatlable-for-sale investments. .. ....... I (150.7) — {150.7)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments ................... (256.0) — (256.0)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments ... ........ 314.6 — 314.6
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investments . . ... ... 142.4 — 142.4
Purchases of property and equipment, net. .. ................. (9.9) — (9.9)
Net cash provided by investing activities . ................... 40.4 — 40.4
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES;
Proceeds from issuances of commonstock .. ................. 28.6 (0.2) 28.4
Net cash provided by financing activities . . .................. 28.6 0.2) 284
Increase in cash and cash equivalents. . ....................... 178.7 — 178.7
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 0.5 — 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year. . ................. 112.3 o 112.3
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ....................... $291.5 $ — §291.5
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds . . ... .............. $ 108 $ — $ 108
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J
Year Ended December 31, 2004
As Reported  Adjustments  As Restated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Nl IMCOME . . . oot e e e e e e $ 48.0 $ 9.8 $ 578

Adjustments 1o reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . .. ............ ... . 0 7.4 - 0.3 7.7
Stock-based compensation . . .. ... ... .. e — (17.4) (17.4)
Provision for doubtful 2CCOUNts - . . . ..o\t —_ {1.0) (1.)
Provision forsales returns . ... ... . . i e e (0.4) — 0.4)
Inventory provisions .. ..........c.. i ... 13.5 — 13.5
Deferred tax @sSets . . ... ..ttt e e e e (9.0) 13.0 4.0
Tax benefit from stock option exercises . .................... 29.2 7.4) 21.8
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: -
Accounts receivable. . . .. ... ... ... ... (14.0) 1.0 (13.0)
INVENIOTIES . .ot e i e e e e e (24.2) 1.0 (23.2)
Prepaid expenses and other assets . ........................ (6.2) (0.3) {6.3)
Accounts payable .. ... ... 8.2 — 8.2
Accrued payroll and related expenses. . . ... ... ... .. L. 5.0 0.4 54
Income taxes payable .. ... ... ... ... . . i, 0.1 — 0.1
Other accrued expenses . . .. ........ .ot 28 0.6 34
Deferred supportrevenue. ... ... ... ... oo 21.1 — 21.1
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .................. 81.5 — 81.5
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of available-for-sale investments. . ................. 419.4) — (419.4)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments .. ................. (179.6) - (179.6)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments . . .. ....... 3269 — 3269
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investments . .. ... .. 110.9 — 1109
Purchases of property and equipment, net. . . ................. (8.4) — (8.4)
Net cash used in investing activities . .. ..................... (169.6) — (169.6)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: '
Proceeds from issuances of commonstock ... ................ 38.7 — 387
Repayment of note receivable from stockholder .. ... .......... 0.5 — 0.5
Net cash provided by financing activities . . .. .............. .. 39.2 — 39.2
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents . . .. .................... (48.9) — (48.9)
Effect of exchange rate changes oncash . :vvnnunnnn.s o (0.5) — (0.5)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year................... 161.7 — 161.7
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ....................... $1123 $ — $1123

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for income taxes, netof refunds. . ................. $ 53
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4, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Guarantees and Product Warranties

FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, ("‘FIN 457}, requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor
must disclose and record a liability for the fair value of the obligation it assumes under that guarantee. FIN 43 is
applicable to our product warranty liability and indemnification obligations contained in commercial agreements,
including customary intellectual property indemnifications for our products contained in agreements with our
resellers and end-users.

We provide customers with a standard one or five year hardware warranty, depending on the type of product
purchased, and a 90-day software warranty. Customers can upgrade and/or extend the warranty for up to five years
by purchasing one of our customer support programs. Our warranty accrual represents our best estimate of the
amount necessary to settle future and existing claims as of the balance sheet date. We periodically assess the
adequacy of our warranty accrual and adjust the amount as considered necessary.

Changes in our product warranty liability for the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows (in
thousands):

Balance, December 31, 2005 . . . .. e e e $1,511
Liabilities accrued for warranties issued during the period . . ... ... .. ... . ... .. 1,252
Warranty claims settled during the period ... ... ... ... .. . oL, (1,217)

Balance, December 31, 2006, . . . ... . .. e $ 1,546

We offer our customers renewable support arrangements, including extended warranties, that generally range
from one to five years, however, the majority of our support contracts have one year terms. We do not separate
extended warranty revenue from routine support service revenue, as it is not practical to do so. The change in our
deferred support revenue balance was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Deferred support revenue at December 31,2005 . ... ... ... ... . .. o i $ 60,480
New support arrangemenls, . .. . ..o v u vttt it am e e e 80,870
Recognition of support revenue . .. ... ... L e e {75,786)

Ending balance at December 31, 2006. ... ... ... .. ... . ... . 3 65,564

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements under which we may agree to
indemnify the counter-party from losses relating to a breach of representations and warranties, a failure to perform
certain covenants, or claims and losses arising from certain external events as outlined within the particular contract,
which may include, for example, losses arising from litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such
indemnification clauses may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. No amounts are reflected in our consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2006 or 2005 related to these indemnifications as, historically, payments
made related to these indemnifications have not been material to our consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

Leases

We lease our facilities and office buildings under operating leases that expire at various dates through April
2011. Most of our leases contain renewal options. Qur headquarters for corporate administration, research and
development, sales and marketing, and manufacturing occupy approximately 110,000 square feet of space in
San Jose, California. In March 2005, we entered into a lease agreement for 141,000 square feet of additional office
space in Santa Clara, California. The Santa Clara lease expires in 2010. We continue to utilize the San Jose location
for our manufacturing operations and recently moved our corporate administration, research and development, and
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sales and marketing functions to Santa Clara, California. Rent expense under all operating leases was $6.1 million,
$6.7 million and $5.4 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 31, 2006, future minimum lease
payments under all noncancelable operating leases were as follows {in thousands):

Operaling
20007 . e e % 6,211
2008 . . e e e e 4,224
2000 . L e e e e e 2,806
2000 . e e e 1.614
2. 1 1 313
I 313 T O 9
Total 1885 PAYIMEIIS . . . .. oottt e et et ettt e e $15,177

Purchase Commitments with Suppliers and Third-Party Manufacturers

We use contract manufacturers to assemble certain parts for our chassis and stackable preducts. We also utilize
third-party OEMs to manufacture certain Foundry-branded products. In order to reduce manufacturing lead-times
and ensure an adequate supply of inventories, our agreements with some of these manufacturers allow them to
procure long lead-lime component inventory an our behalf based on a rolling production forecast previded by us.
We are contractually obligated to purchase long lead-time component inventory procured by certain manufacturers
in accordance with our forecasts although we can generally give notice of order cancellation at least 90 days priorto
the delivery date. In addition, we issue purchase orders to our component suppliers and third-party manufacturers
that may not be cancelable. As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $53.4 million of open purchase orders
with our component suppliers and third-party manufacturers that may not be cancelable.

Settlement and Patent License Agreements

On February 1, 2007. we entered into a settlement agreement with Alcatel-Lucent that resulted in a dismissal
of all litigation pending between us, a mutuat release, a cross-license, and a covenant not to sue extending into the
future. On May 31, 2006, we entered into a settlement agreement with Lucent Technologies, Inc., (“Lucent”) that
resulted in a dismissal of all litigation pending between us, a mutual release, a cross-license, and a covenant not to
sue extending into the future. As part of the settlement agreements we made total payments of $8.4 million. Based
on management's judgment and the results of a third-party valuation analysis, we recorded a $5.4 million charge in
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income in the second quarter
of 2006. The remaining vatue under these agreements represents consideration for license rights to current and
future Alcatel-Lucent patents and is amertized ratably over five years to the cost of product revenue. At
December 31, 2006 the remaining value of the May 31, 2006 settlement agreement was $1.5 million and is
included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. In addition, we recorded a liability of
$2.7 million in other accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for the February 1, 2007
settlement agreement.

We also agreed to provide credits in the sum of $2.0 million against future purchases of Foundry products and
services at the rate of 25% of the invoice price until the $2.0 million of credits are exhausted. For the year ended
December 31, 2006 we have recorded a reduction of our total net revenue in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income of $790,000 as a result of these credits. As of December 31, 2006 we recorded a reduction in
our deferred support revenue of $325,000 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for the credits related to
service contracts. The $325,000 represents a reduction in future revenue for unrecognized support revenue.
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On September 30, 2005, we entered into a patent cross-license agreement with IBM Corporation (“IBM™).
Pursuant to the agreement, we paid $4.5 million to IBM in the third quarter of 2005. Based on management’s
judgment and the results of a third-party valuation analysis, we recorded a $2.6 million charge in general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income in the third quarter of 2005. The
remaining value under this agreement represents consideration for license rights to current and future IBM patents
and is amortized ratably over three years to the cost of product revenue.

On October 25, 2004, we entered into a settlement agreement and patent cross-license (the “Agreements”™)
covering technologies that were at issue in litigation with Nortel. The Agreements resolved the ongoing litigation in
both Massachusetts and California. Pursuant to the Agreements, we paid $35.0 million to Nortel in early November
2004 and, based on management’s judgment and the results of a third-party valuation analysis, we recorded an
operating expense of $30.2 million in the third quarter of 2004. The remaining $4.8 million paid to Nortel represents
consideration for a four-year cross-license with Nortel.

Litigation

Intellectual Property Proceedings. On May 27, 2003, Lucent filed a lawsuit against us in the United States
District Court for the District of Delaware alleging that certain of our products infringe four of Lucent’s patents and
seeking injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages, On February 6, 2004, we filed a lawsuit against Lucent in
the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division. The lawsuit alleged that certain
of Lucent’s products infringed one of our patents. On May 31, 2006, before either case went to trial, Foundry and
Lucent entered into a settlement agreement that resulted in a dismissal of all litigation pending between them, a
mutual release, a cross-license, and a covenant not to sue extending into the future,

On June 21, 2003, Alcatel USA Resources, Inc. and Alcate] Internetworking, Inc., which are now subsidiaries
of Alcatel-Lucent (collectively “Alcatel-Lucent™) filed a complaint, and later, an amended complaint, seeking
injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages, against us in the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware. Alcatel-Lucent alleged that certain of our products infringed nine of its patents. Alcatel-Lucent also
sought a declaratory judgment that one of our patents was invalid and not infringed by Alcatel-Lucent. We
subsequently filed a counterclaim alleging infringement of our patent by Alcatel-Lucent. In February 2007, the
parties entered into a settlement agreement that resulted in a dismissal of all litigation pending between them, a
mutual release, a cross-license, and a covenant not to sue extehding into the future.

As part of the May 2006 and February 2007 settlement agreements described in the iwo above paragraphs, we
made total payments of $8.4 million. Based on management’s judgment and the results of a third-party valuation
analysis, we recorded a $5.4 million charge in general and administrative expenses in the second quarter of 2006.
The remaining value under these agreements represents consideration for license rights to current and future
Alcatel-Lucent patents and is amortized ratably over five years to the cost of product revenue. At December 31,
2006, the remaining value of the May 31, 2006 settlement agreement was $1.5 mitlion and is included in other assets
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. In addition, we have recorded a liability of $2.7 million in other
accrued expenses at December 31, 2006 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for the February 1, 2007
settlement agreement. ’

We also agreed to provide credits to Alcatel-Lucent in the sum of $2.0 million against future purchdses of
Foundry products and services at the rate of 25% of the invoice price until the $2.0 million of credits are exhausted.
For the year ended December 31, 2006, we have recorded a reduction of our total net revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income of $790,000 as a result of these credits. As of December 31, 2006 we recorded a
reduction in our deferred support revenue of $325,000 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for the
credits related to service contracts. The $325,000 represents a reduction in future revenue for unrecognized support
revenue.
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On June 21, 2005, Enterasys Networks, Inc. filed a lawsuit against us (and Extreme Networks, Inc.(“Ext-
reme’)) in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts alleging that certain of our products
infringe six of Enterasys’ patents and seeking injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages. On August 22, 2003,
we filed an answer denying the allegations. Discovery is ongoing. On November 3, 2005, the Court severed
Enterasys’ claims against us and Extreme into two separate cases. Currently, the Court is scheduled to have a
Markman claim construction hearing on October 15, 2007. Subsequently, the Court will set a trial date. We are
committed to vigorously defending ourselves against Enterasys’ claims.

On September 6, 2006, Chrimar Systems, Inc. (“Chrimar™) filed a lawsuit against us in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan alleging that certain of our products infringe Chrimar’s
U.S. -Patent 5,406,260 and seeking injunctive relief, as well as unspecified damages. We filed an answer and
counterclaim on September 27, 2006. Subsequently, pursuant to an order of the Court, Chrimar identified claim 17
of the patent as the exemplary claim being asserted against us. No trial date has been set. We are committed to
vigorously defending ourselves against Chrimar’s claims.

Securities Litigarion. 'We remain a defendant in a class action lawsuit filed on November 27, 2001 in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York {the District Court} on behalf of purchasers of our
common stock alleging violations of federal securities laws. The case was designated as In re Foundry Networks,
Inc. Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, No. 01-CV-10640 (SAS) (S.D.N.Y.}, related to In re Initiai Public
Offering Securities Litigation, No. 21 MC 92 (SAS) (S.D.N.Y.). The case is brought purportedly on behalf of all
persons who purchased our common stock from September 27, 1999 through December 6, 2000. The operative
amended complaint names as defendants, the Company and three of our officers (Foundry Defendants), including
our Chief Executive Officer and former Chief Financial Officer, and investment banking firms that served as
underwriters for our initial public offering in September 1999. The amended complaint alleged violations of
Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, on the
grounds that the registration statement for the initial public offering (“IPO™) failed to disclose that (i) the
underwriters agreed to allow certain customers to purchase shares in the IPO in exchange for excess commissions
to be paid to the underwriters, and (ii) the underwriters arranged for certain customers to purchase additional shares
in the aftermarket at predetermined prices. The amended complaint also alleges that false or misleading analyst
reports were issued and seeks unspecified damages. Simiiar allegations were made in lawsuits challenging over
300 other initial public offerings conducted in 1999 and 2000. The cases were consolidated for pretrial purposes.

On February 19, 2003, the District Court ruled on all defendants’ motions to dismiss. In ruling on motions to
dismiss, the court must treat the allegations in the complaint as if they were true solely for purposes of deciding the
motions. The motion was denied as to claims under the Securities Act of 1933 in the case involving us. The same
ruling was made in all but ten of the other cases. The court dismissed the claims under Section 10(b} of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 against us and one of the individual defendants and dismissed all of the Section 20(a)
“control person” claims. The District Court dented the motion to dismiss the Section 10(b) claims against our
remaining individual defendants on the basis that those defendants allegedly sold our stock following the IPO. The
stock sale allegations were found sufficient for pleading purposes. A similar ruling was made with respect to
62 individual defendants in the other cases.

In 2004, we accepted a settlement proposal presented to all issuer defendants. Under the terms of this
settlement, the plaintiffs are to dismiss and release all claims against the Foundry Defendants in exchange for a
contingent payment by the insurance companies collectively responsible for insuring the issuers in all of the I[PO
cases and for the assignment or surrender of control of certain claims we may have against the underwriters. The
settlement requires approval by the court. In September 2005, the District Court granted preliminary approval to the
terms of the settlement. The settlement must receive final approval from the District Court following notice to class
members and an opportunity for them and others affected by the settlement to object. On April 24, 2006 the District
Court conducted a fairness hearing on the settlement and heard arguments from both the plaintiffs and issuers in
favor of the settlement as well as from both the underwriter defendants and three individual objectors against the
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settlement. While the court was considering final approval, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals vacated the class
certification of plaintiffs’ claims against the underwriters in six cases designated as focus or test cases. In re Initial
Public Offering Securities Litigation, 471 F.3d 24 (2d Cir, Dec. 5, 2006). Thereafter, on December 14, 2006, the
District Court ordered a stay of all proceedings in all of the lawsuits pending the outcome of plaintiffs’ petition to
the Second Circuit for rehearing en banc and resolution of the class certification issue. On April 6, 2007, the Second
Circuit denied plaintiffs’ petition for rehearing, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited
class in the District Court. Accordingly, the stay remains in place and the plaintiffs and issuers have stated that they
are prepared to discuss how the settlement might be amended or renegotiated to comply with the Second Circuit
decision, There is no assurance that the settlement may be amended or renegotiated to comply with the Second
Circuit’s ruling, and then approved. If the settlement is not amended or renegotiated and then approved, we intend to
defend the lawsuit vigorously. Because of the inherent uncertainty of litigation, however, we cannot predict its
outcome. If, as a result of this dispute, we are required to pay significant monetary damages, our business would be
substantially harmed.

In August and September 2006, purported Foundry stockholders filed two putative derivative actions against
certain of our current and former officers, directors and employees in the Superior Court of the State of California
County of Santa Clara. The actions were captioned Watkins v. Johnson, et al. (Case No. 1-06-CV 068878} and
Rosenbaum v. Johnson, et al. (Case No, 1-06 CV 071651). On December 27, 2006, pursuant to a Court Order (the
“Consolidation Order”), both actions were consolidated into In re Foundry Networks, Inc. Derivative Litigation,
Superior Court of the State of California, Santa Clara County, Lead Case. No. 106CV071651 (the “Consolidated
Action™). On February 5, 2007, Plaintiffs served a Consolidated Amended Shareholder Derivative Complaint (the
“CAC”). The CAC names 19 defendants and Foundry as a nominal defendant. In general, the CAC alleges that
certain stock option grants made by us were improperly backdated and that such alleged backdating resulted in
alleged violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the dissemination of false financial statements and
potential tax ramifications. The CAC asserts 11 causes of action against certain and/or all of the defendants,
including, among others, breach of fiduciary duty, accounting, unjust enrichment and violations of California
Corporations Code Sections 25402 and 25403. On February 13, 2007, we filed a motion to stay the CAC pending
resolution of a substantially similar derivative action pending in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California, San Jose Division. On March 20, 2007, the Court granted the motion to stay.

On March 9, 2007, a purported Foundry stockholder served our registered agent for service of process with a
putative derivative action against certain of our current and former officers, directors and employees. The complaint
named Foundry as a nominal defendant. The action was filed on February 28, 2007, in the Superior Court of the
State of Californid, Santa Clara County, and is captioned Patel v. Akin, et al. (Case No. 1-07-CV 080813). The Patel
action generally asserted similar claims as those in the Consolidated Action. In addition, it asserted a cause of action
for violation of Section 1507 of the California Corporations Code. On April 27, 2007, Plaintiff Patel voluntarily
dismissed the Pate! action without prejudice.

In September and October 2006, purported Foundry stockholders filed four putative derivative actions against
certain of our current and former offtcers, directors and employees in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California. The complaints named Foundry as a nominal defendant. The four actions were
captioned Desai v. Johnson, et al. (Case No. C-06-05598 PVT), McDonald v. Johnson, et al. (Case No. C06 06099
HRL), Jacksor v. Akin, et al. (C06 06509 JCS) and Edringron v. Johnson, Jr, et al. (C06 6752 RMW). On
December 8, 2006, the actions were consolidated into In re Foundry Networks, Inc. Derivative Litigation, U.S.D.C.
No. Dist. Cal. (San Jose Division}, Case No. 5:06-CV-05598-RMW. A hearing on certain plaintiffs’ motion to
appoint lead plaintiff and lead counsel was held on February 2, 2007, and, on February 12, 2007, the Court
appointed lead plaintiff and lead counsel. On February 15, 2007, Edrington v. Johnson, Jr, et al. was volumarily
dismissed. Pursuant to a stipulation among the parties, on March 26, 2007, Plaintiffs filed and served a Consolidated
Derivative Complaint (the “CDC”). The CDC generally alleges that certain stock option grants made by us were
improperly backdated and that such alleged backdating resulted in alleged violations of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, dissemination of false financial statements and potential tax ramifications. The CDC pleads
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a combination of causes of action, including, among others, breach of fiduciary duty, unjust enrichment and
violations of Sections 10(h), 14{a) and 20(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. On May 10, 2007 Foundry
filed a motion to dismiss the consolidated derivative complaint. Pursuant to a stipulation among the parties, the
individual defendants named in the CDC are not required to answer or otherwise respond to the CDC unless the
court denies Foundry’s motion to dismiss.

SEC Informal Inguirv. The SEC has initiated an informal inquiry into our historical stock option granting
practices. At the SEC’s request, we voluntarily produced cenain documents to the SEC in this matter. We currently
are cooperating with the SEC and expect to continue to do so.

United States Artorney's Office Subpoena for Production of Documents.  On June 26, 2006, we received a
subpoena from the United States Attorney’s Office for the production of documents relating to our historical stock
option granting practices. We have produced certain documents to the United States Attorney’s Office. We currently
are cooperating with the United States Attorney’s Office and expect to continue to do so.

The Nasdag Stock Market Proceedings, Docker # 518IN-06. On August 14, 2006, we received a Nasdagq
Staff Determination letter indicating that we were not currently in compliance with Nasdaq's listing requirements
due to the delayed filing of our Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended June 30, 2006. We have received similar Additional
Nasdaq Staff Determination letters with respect to our delinquent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods
ended September 30, 2006 and March 31, 2007, and our delinquent Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Upen our receipt of the August 14, 2006 Staff Determination Letter, we initiated an appeal with the Nasdag
Listing Qualifications Panel (the “Panel”) and had a hearing with the Panel on September 22, 2006. On
December 12, 2006, we received a letter from The Nasdaq Stock Market, stating that the Panel had determined
to grant our request for continued listing on The Nasdaq Global Select Market subject to certain conditions. On
December 26, 2006, we filed an appeal of the Panel’s decision with the Nasdaq Listing and Hearings Review
Council (the “Listing Council™). In January 2007, we received letters from The Nasdaq Stock Market stating,
among other things, that the Listing Council! would review the Panel’s December 12, 2006 decision and that our
shares would remain listed on The Nasdaq Global Select Market pending the Listing Council’s review.

On May 19, 2007, we received a decision from the Listing Council which granted us until June 11, 2007 to file
our delinquent periodic reports and restatements, but which also provided that, if we did not meet this deadline, our
securities would be suspended from trading on The Nasdaq Global Select Market at the opening of business on
June 13, 2007.

On May 21, 2007, we submitted a request to the Board of Directors of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. (the
“Nasdaq Board™) that it call for review the Listing Council’s May 19, 2007 decision and stay proceedings pending
the Board’s review. On June 4, 2007, we received a letter from The Nasdaq Stock Market informing us that the
Nasdaq Board has called for review the Listing Council’s May 19, 2007 decision and has stayed the Listing
Council’s decision to suspend our securities from trading, pending consideration by the Nasdaq Board in July 2007.

We have filed this report with the SEC in an effort to resume our timely reporting and to meet Nasdag's
continued listing requirements, in order to maintain our listing eligibility on The Nasdag Global Select Market.

General. From time to time, we are subject to other legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of
business, including claims of alleged infringement of trademarks, copyrights, patents and other intellectual property
rights. From time to time, third parties assert patent infringement claims against us in the form of letters, lawsuits
and other forms of communication. In addition, from time to time, we receive notification from customers claiming
that they are entitled to indemnification or other obligations from us related to infringement claims made against
them by third parties. Regardless of the merits of our position, litigation is always an expensive and uncertain
proposition. In accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies (“SFAS 57), we record a liability when
it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. We
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review the need for any such liability on a quarterly basis and record any necessary adjustments to reflect the effect
of ongoing negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other information and events pertaining to
a particular case in the period they become known. At December 31, 2006, we have not recorded any such liabilities
in accordance with SFAS 5. Further, we do not believe the outcome of legal matters pending against us would be
material. We believe we have valid defenses with respect to the legal matters pending against us, In the event of a
determination adverse to us, we could incur substantial monetary liability and be required to change our business
practices. Any unfavorable determination could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows,

5. INCOME TAXES

We account for income taxes pursuant to SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes {“SFAS 1097).
SFAS No. 109 provides for an asset and liability approach to accounting for income taxes, under which deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to tax credit carryfor-
wards and to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred iax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or setded. Components of our deferred tax assets
were as follows at December 31 (in thousands): '

December 31,
2006 2005
Restated(1)
Deferred Tax Assets:

Accrued payroll and related expenses ... ....... ... .. ... . ... $ 3,034 $ 2,167
Inventory valuation T€SEIVE . . . . .. .ottt e e e ie e e e 17,574 17,204
Accrued Warrantly . ... ... e e et " 605 594
Allowance for doubtful accounts . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... . 976 938
Write-down of minority interest. . ... ..... ... ... it 979 983
Depreciation . . . . ... . e e e 2,953 1,332
Stock-based compensation. .. ... ... Lo e 28,196 18,728
Research and development credits . . . .. ... ... .. i 7,866 8,964
Deferred SUPPOrt TEVENUE . .. ..ottt ittt et e e e e 7,687 6,033
Other temporary differences .. ... ... .. .. .. i 6,536 3,994
Total deferred tax assets ... ... ...t iiin it 76,406 60,937
Valvation allowance. . . ... .ottt et e e (979) (983)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance. . .............. 75,427 59,954

Deferred Tax Liability:
Litigation settlement tax liability .. ... . ... . ... . . oo i (822) (1,297)

Net deferred 13X aSseLS . ..ottt i it e i e et e e e e $74,605 $58,657

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

For financial reporting purposes, a valuation allowance has been established for certain deferred tax assets.
relating to the write-down of investments. At the end of 2006, the valuation allowance was $1.0 million, which has
not changed from 2005. :

We believe that we will likely generate sufficient taxable income in future periods to realize the tax benefits
arising from our existing deferred tax assets, although there can be no assurances that we will do so. We also had
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state tax credit carryforwards of $7.9 million, of which $7.4 million can be carried forward indefinitely and
$0.5 million will expire beginning in 2009.

As part of the restatement, the Company increased deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005 by
approximately $19.0 million. The benefit of this change in deferred tax assets was recorded predominantly as
an increase to deferred income tax benefit. The Company’s deferred tax assets from stock-based compensation was
$28.2 million at December 31, 2006. A portion or all of our deferred tax assets relating to stock-based compensation
may not ultimately be realized. To the extent the deferred tax benefit is more than the actual tax benefit realized, the
difference may impact the income tax expense if the Company does not have a sufficient hypothetical APIC pool
under SFAS 123R to decrease additional paid-in capital.

We are audited by various taxing authorities from time to time, and sometimes these audits result in proposed
assessments where the ultimate resolution may result in us owing additional taxes. We establish reserves when,
despite our belief that our tax return positions are appropriate and supportable under local tax law, we believe certain
positions are likely to be challenged and that it may not succeed in realizing the tax benefit, We evaluate these
reserves each quarter and adjust the reserves and the related interest in light of changing facts and circumstances
regarding the probability of realizing tax benefits, such as the progress of a tax audit or the expiration of a statuie of
limitations. We believe our tax positions comply with applicable tax law and that we have adequately provided for
any known tax contingencies under SFAS 5.

Our provision for income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Restated (1) Restated(1)

Current:
Federal . ... .. e e $ 37,240 $30,758 $23,858
Foreign. . .. .. ... ... 366 405 165
State. .. . e e 5,754 4,583 3,425
Total CUTTENt. . . .. e e e e 43,360 35,746 27,448
Deferred:
Federal . . ... ... ... .. . . . .. . e (16,132) (8,459) 3,419
Foreignand state. . . . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., (2,557) (757} 513
Total deferred . . .. oo (18,689) (9,216) 3,932
Total provision . ... ..o e $ 24,671 $26,530 $31,380
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(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Our provision for income taxes and effective tax rate differs from the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate as
follows for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2006 . 2005 2004
’ Restated (1) Restated(1)
Provision at U.S. statutory rate of 35% .. ......... $22.025 35.0% $28,032 35.0% $31,210 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit. ... ...... 2,728 4.3% 3,444 4.3% 3,834 43%
Federal and state research and development credits .. (3,161) (5.0)% (2.665) (3.3)% (2,248) (2.5)%
Nondeductible deferred stock compensation. .. ... .. 5,482 8.7% —_ — — —
Export sales incentive >. . ... ... ... .. ... .. .. (1,373) (2.2)% (1,654) (2.1D% (1413) (1.6)%
Tax-exempt interest. . . ... .........ovuuine... (1,465) (23)% (1,523) (1.9% (1,183 (1.3)%
U.S. production activities deduction ............. (165) (0.3)% 400y (0.5% — —
Other ... ... . e 600 1.0% 1,297 1.6% 1,182  13%
Total ... . e $24,671 39.2% 526,531 33.1% $31,380 35.2%

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Our income taxes payable have been reduced by the tax benefits associated with certain dispositions of
employee stock options. When an employee exercises a stock option issued under a nonqualified plan, we receive an
income tax benefit for the difference between the fair market value of the stock issued at the time of the exercise and
the employee’s option price, tax effected. These benefits are credited directly to stockholders’ equity to the extent
they exceed the deferred tax asset related to stock-based compensation previously recorded for the awards. When an
employee exercises a stock option issued under a qualified plan, we receive an income tax benefit for the difference
between the fair market value of the stock issued at the time of the exercise and the employee’s option price, tax
effected, only when the exercise is a disqualifying disposition. Deferred tax assets are not recorded for stock-based
compensation recognized for options issued under qualified plans. Excess benefits net of deficits amounted to
$10.5 miillion, $2.2 million and $21.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

6. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with a par value of $0.0001 per share.
Preferred stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series. Our Board of Directors is authorized to
determine the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions on these shares. The issuance of preferred stock may
have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of Foundry without further action by the
stockholders and may adversely affect the voting and other rights of the holders of commen stock. No shares of
preferred stock were outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Common Stock

We had 147,034,193 and 141,149,296 shares of common stock issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively.
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The following shares of common stock have been reserved and are available for future issuance as of
December 31, 2006:

2006 Stock Incentive Plan . . . .. . .. . e e 26,000,000
1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan. . .. ... ... ... . ... . . . 3,126,250
1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan . ....... ... .. ... ... . .. i, 6,628,776
2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan . ... ... ... ... ... ... . . . i, 1,963,778
1996 Stock Plan . ... ... . e e e e e e e e e 27062,547

Total . .o e e 64,781,351

2006 Stock Incentive Plan

The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2006 Stock Plan”) was adopted by the stockholders at Foundry’s annual
meeting held on June 16, 2006, replacing the 1996 Stock Plan. As of June 16, 2006, no further grants will be made
under the 1996 Stock Plan. Under the 2006 Stock Plan, the stockholders authorized the issvance of up to
26,000,000 shares of common stock to employees, consultants and non-employee directors of the Company. The
2006 Stock Plan has a fixed number of shares and will terminate on December 31, 2009 unless re-adopted or
extended by the stockholders prior to or on such date; it is not an “evergreen” plan. As of December 31, 2006,
978,500 options were outstanding under the 2006 Stock Plan with a weighted-average exercise price of $12.92 per
share. The number of shares of the Company’s common stock available for issuance under the 2006 Stock Plan will
be reduced by cone share for every one share issued pursuant to a stock option or stock appreciation right and by
2.3 shares for every one share issued as a restricted stock or restricted stock unit. Stock options and stock
appreciation rights under the 2006 Stock Plan must be granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the
fair market value on the date of grant. Repricing of stock options and stock appreciation rights is prohibited without
stockholder approval. Awards under the 2006 Stock Plan may be made subject to performance conditions as well as
time-vesting conditions.

1996 Stock Plan

The 1996 Stock Plan expired on June 16, 2006, the date of our 2006 annual stockholder meeting. As of
December 31, 2006, no options were available for future issuance under the 1996 Stock Plan and options to
purchase 27,062,547 shares were outstanding with a weighted-average exercise price of $13.31 per share. Stock
options granted under the 1996 Stock Plan have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock
on the date of grant. In January 2007, the Special Committee of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors at the
completion of its investigation of our historical stock option granting practices found we had granted some stock
option awards at less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Additional information is
discussed in Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.” Options under the 1996 Stock Plan vest
over a vesting schedule determined by the Board of Directors, generaliy one to five years. Options granted prior to
January 1, 2005 expire 10 years from the date of grant. Options granted afier January 1, 2005 expire 5 years from the
date of grant. Effective June 16, 20006, additional equity awards under the 1996 Stock Plan have been discontinued
and new equity awards are being granted under the 2006 Stock Plan. Remaining authorized shares under the 1996
Stock Plan that were not subject te outstanding awards as of June 16, 2006 were canceled on June 16, 2006. The
1996 Stock Plan will remain in effect as to outstanding equity awards granted under the plan prior to June 16, 2006.

1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan

Under the 1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Directors’ Plan™), each non-employee director who
becomes a director after the effective date of the plan will receive an automatic initial grant of an option to purchase
225,000 shares of common stock upon appointment or election, and annual grants to purchase 60,000 shares of
common stock. Options granted under the plan will vest at the rate of 1/4th of the total number of shares subject to
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the options twelve months after the date of grant and 1/48th of the total number of shares subject to the options each
month thereafter. The exercise price of all stock options granted under the Directors’ Plan shall be equal to the fair
market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant of the option. Options expire 10 years from the date of
grant, In June 2006, our five non-employee directors received annual grants totaling 240,000 stock options at an
exercise price of $10.83 per share. As of December 31, 2006, 1,135,000 options were available for future issuance
and options to purchase 1,991,250 shares were outstanding under the Directors’ Plan with a weighted-average
exercise price of $31.43 per share. On April 19, 2007 the Board of Directors modified the terms of the Directors’
Stock Option Pian to reduce the number of stock options awarded to a newly appointed or elected Directors from
225,000 shares to 100,000 shares and the number of shares awarded on an annual basis from 60,000 to 40,000 shares.
While vesting of options for newly appointed or elected directors was unchanged, vesting of grants awarded on an
annual basis was changed to vest ratably over a 24 menth period.

2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan

Under the 2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan (the “Non-Executive Plan™), we may issue non-qualified
options to purchase common stock 1o employees and external consultants other than officers and directors. Options
granted prior to January 1, 2005 expire 10 years from the date of grant. Options granted after January 1, 2005, expire
5 years from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2006, 246,163 options were available for future issuance and
options 1o purchase 1,717,615 shares were outstanding under the Non-Executive Plan with a weighted-average
exercise price of $12.73 per share.

The following table (which excludes restricted stock awards) summarizes stock option activity under all stock
option plans during the three years ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Options Average Remaining Intrinsic
Quitstanding Exercise Price  Contractual Term Value
. (In thousands)
Balance, December 31,2003 ........... 26,516,559 $12.96
Granted. .. ...................... 11,358,800 15.30
Exercised .. ......... ...t (4,483,154) 7.00
Cancelled . ...................... (3,353,693 19.53
Balance, December 31,2004 ... ........ 30,038,512 14.00
Granted. .. ...................... 6,526,700 9.71
Exercised ........... ... ... (2,945,346) 6.85
Cancelled ........... ... ... .... (1,832,239 14.44
Balance, December 31,2005........... 31,787,627 13.75
Granted. .. .......... .. e, 6,502,300 14.07
Exercised ....................... (4,798,821) 7.86
Cancelled ....................... (1,741,194) 19.29
Balance, December 31,2006 ........... 31,749,912 _14.40 5.37 $111,434
Vested and expected to vest at
December 31,2006 ................ 30,664,093 14.45 5.39 $109,314
Exercisable at December 31, 2006....... 22,732,876 1492 5.53 $ 93,549

Stock options for 5.3 million shares, 0.2 million shares and 1.0 million shares, were granted under the 1996
Stock Plan, the 1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, and the 2006 Stock Plan, respectively.
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference
between Foundry’s closing stock price on the last trading day of 2006 and the exercise price for all in-the-money
options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on
December 31, 2006. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2006,
was $35.2 million.

As of December 31, 2006 there were 9,017,034 unvested options for all plans.

As of December 31, 2006, there was $54.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested stock-based compensation arrangements granted under the Company’s stock-based compensation plans.
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.17 years.

As of December 31, 2005, 22.4 million options were exercisable with an average exercise price of $15.04. As
of December 31, 2006, 22.7 million options were exercisable with an average price of $14.92.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 4.8 million, 2.9 million and 4.5 million, respectively,
in stock options were exercised. The intrinsic value of stock options exercised for the years ended 2006, 2005 and
2004 was $35.2 million, $14.2 million and $63.1 million, respectively.

The compensation cost (benefit) that has been charged against income for these plans was $50.8 million,
$4.6 million and $(17.6) million for the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The total
income tax expense (benefit) recognized in the income statement was $(14.4) million, $(1.8) million and
$6.9 million for the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Compensation cost capitalized
as part of inventory for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $0.1 million, approximately three thousand and {$0.2) million,
respectively.

Stock-based compensation relates to the following categories by period:
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)
Restated(1) Restated(1)

Costof revenue — Product . ... ........ ... ............ $ 1,858 $ 179 £ (741
Costof revenue — Service . . ........ . .. 2,175 201 (780)
Research and development .. ........ ... ... ........... 17,542 1,733 (5,912)
Sales and marketing . .. .......... .. ... ... .. ... ...... 20,680 1,808 (5,518)
General and administrative . ... ......... ... ... . ..., 8,519 684 (4,675)

Total. . .............. .. ... ... R $50,774 $4,605 $(17,626)

(1) See Note 3, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004 was $5.44, $4.33 and $7.06, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, an aggrepgate of 26,402,663 shares were available for future option grants to our
employees.
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Stock Award Activity

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock award activity and related information for the year ended
December 31, 2006 is set forth in the following table:

Weighted-Average

Restricted Stock Grant Date
Qutstanding Fair Valee
(In thousands)

Balance, December 31, 2005. . . . ... ... ... . .. — 5 —
Granted. . . .. e e 644 $14.57
VEStEd. . ottt e e e . - 3 —
Forfeited . ... ... i e (16} $14.21

Balance, December 31, 2006. . ... ... ... i 628 $14.58

These restricted stock awards which were granted under the 1996 Stock Plan vest over two years, with 50%
vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date and 50% vesting on the second anniversary of the grant date. These
restricted shares are not transferable until fully vested and are subject to a repurchase option for all unvested shares
upon certain early termination. None of the restricted stock awards were vested as of December 31, 2006. The grant
of these restricted stock awards has been deducted from the shares available for grant under the Company’s stock
option plans.

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under Foundry’s 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ( the “ESPP™), employees are granted the right to
purchase shares of common stock at a price per share that is 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of the shares at
(i) the beginning of a rolling two-year offering period or (ii) the end of each semi-annual purchase period, subject to
a plan limit on the number of shares that may be purchased in a purchase period. During 2006, 2005 and 2004,
Foundry issued an aggregate of 1,086,076 shares, 978,138 shares and 1,119,928 shares, respectively, under the
ESPP at average per share prices of $8.64, $8.46 and $6.52, respectively.

A total of 6,628,776 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the ESPP as of December 31,
2006. The number of shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP will be increased on the first day of each fiscal
year through 2009 by the lesser of (i) 1,500,000 shares, (ii) 2% of our outstanding common stock on the last day of
the immediately preceding fiscal year or (iii) the number of shares determined by the Board of Directors.

As a result of the Company’s failure to timely file its periodic reports since the second quarter of 2006, the
Company has suspended its employee payroll withholdings for the purchase of its common stock under the ESPP
{and returned all employee contributions) from August 2006 through the filing of all its required regulatory reports.
On June 5, 2007, the Board of Directors amended the ESPP to limit the ability of a participant in the ESPP to
increase or decrease the rate of his or her payroll deductions during any offering period (as defined in the ESPP).
This change is effective beginning August 2, 2007. Further, on January 25, 2007 the Board of Directors approved a
bonus payable in the first quarter of 2007, in the total amount of $4.5 million to compensate those employees
participating in the Company’s ESPP at the time it was suspended. The amount of the bonus paid was set by the
Board of Directors to compensate participants for the opportunity lost due to the suspension of the ESPP. The
amount of the bonus equals the value of the shares estimated to have been purchasable by each participant in the
ESPP — as if acquired by the participant under the terms of the ESPP — and sold in a same day sale transaction
immediately following the originally scheduled ESPP purchase on January 31, 2007. Under SFAS 123R, the
Company’s suspension of ESPP employee payroll withholdings effectively cancels the related option held by ESPP
participants. The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense in fourth fiscal quarter of 2006 in the
amount of $0.3 million under the ESPP.
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7. 401(K) PLAN

The Company provides a tax-qualified employee savings and retirement plan that entitles eligible employees
1o make tax-deferred contributions, Under the 401(k) Plan, U.S.-based employees may elect to reduce their current
annual compensation up to the lesser of 20% or the statutorily prescribed limit, which was $15,000 in calendar year
2006. Employees age 50 or over may elect to contribute an additional $5,000. The 401(k) Plan provides for
discretionary contributions as determined by the Board of Directors each year. The Company has a matching
contribution program whereby it matches dollar for dollar contributions made by each employee. The matching
amount in calendar year 2006 was up to $1,250 per year for each employee. For calendar year 2007, the Board of
Directors has approved an increase in the Company’s matching amount to $3,500 per year for each employee. The
matching contributions to the 401{k} Plan totaled $665,679 and $603,000 in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

8. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following tables set forth selected consolidated statement of income data for each of the eight quarters
ended December 31, 2006. Operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for any future
pertod (in millions, except share and per share amounts).

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter
As Restated

Netrevenue .............oviuvnu.n.. $ 1320 $ 11838 $ 1084 $ 1140
Costofrevenue ....................... 53.7 46.9 42.9 449
Gross margin . ....... ... ... 78.3 71.9 65.5 69.1

Operating expenses:

Research and development ............. 16.9 16.8 17.0 200
Sales and marketing . ................. 329 304 313 343
General and administrative . ... ... ...... 10.0 10.7 12.1 11.1
Other charges, net. .. ................. 29 4.2 5.7 —
Total operating expenses .. r.......... 62.7 62.1 66.1 65.4
Income from operations . ................ 15.6 9.8 (0.6) 3.7
Interest and other income, net. . ........... 99 9.1 8.4 6.9

Income before provision for income taxes
and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle. .. ............ 25.5 18.9 7.8 10.6
Provision for income taxes . .............. 9.8 6.7 34 4.6
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . . . . ... 157 12.2 44 6.0
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of taxes . . ... — — — 0.4
Netincome. . ..............cooiiie.on.. $ 157 $ 122 3 4.4 3 6.4
Basic net income pershare .. .......... ... $ 011 $ 008 $ 003 $ 004
Diluted net income per share. . ............ $ 010 $ 008 $ o003 $ 004

Shares used in computing earnings per share
(in thousands):

Basic .......... ... . ... oo, 146,764 146,082 145,279 142,477
Diluted ........... oo 152,364 149,830 150,968 149,333
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Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore,
the sum of quarterly basic and diluted per share information may not equal annual basic and diluted earnings per
share.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter
As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated
NetTevenue ... ......oovnerennannaan . $ 1162 $ 106.5 $ 966 $ 846
Costofrevenue ....................... 45.0 41.2 37.5 31.7
Gross margin . .. ... 71.2 65.3 59.1 52.9
Operating expenses:
Research and development . .............. 13.2 14.9 13.8 11.1
Sales and marketing . ................... 26.2 287 27.8 23.0
General and administrative . .............. 7.6 11.2 50 40
Other charges, net. .. ................... — — — —
Total operating expenses . ... ......c....... 470 | 54.8 46.6 38.1
Income from operations ................. 24.2 10.5 12.5 14.8
Interest and other income, net . . ........... 5.8 4.7 3.8 38
Income before provision for income taxes . . .. 30.0 15.2 16.3 18.6
Provision for income faxes . .............. 11.1 3.7 53 6.4
Netincome. ... ........ouieenenennon.. § 189 $ 1L5 $ 1.0 $ 122
Basic net income per share .. ............. $ 013 $ 008 $ 008 $ 0.09
Diluted net income per share.............. $ 013 § 008 $ 008 $ 009

Shares used in computing earnings per share
(in thousands):

Basic ... . e 140,557 139,581 138,627 137,908
Diluted............. ... ... ... ... .. 146,129 144,466 141,486 142,082

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore,
the sum of quarterly basic and diluted per share information may not equal annual basic and diluted earnings per
share.
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The following tables present the effects of adjustments made to the Company’s previously reported quarterly
financial information as of March 31, 2006 (in millions, expect share and per share amounts):

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
March 31, 2006 DPecember 31, 2005
As As As As
Reported Adjustments Restated Reported Adjustments Restated

Netrevenue ............... $ 1140 $ — $ 1140 §$ 1162 $ — $ 1162
Costofrevenue. ............ 445 04 449 45.0 — 45.0
Gross margin . ............. 69.5 (0.4} 69.1 71.2 — 71.2
Operating expenses:
Research and development . . .. 17.1 29 20.0 12.3 0.9 13.2
Sales and marketing . ........ 30.8 35 343 25.2 1.0 26.2
General and administrative . . .. 10.7 0.4 11.1 69 0.7 7.6
Other charges, net. ... ....... —_ — — . — — _—
Total operating expenses . . . . .. 58.6 6.8 65.4 44.4 2.6 47.0
Income from operations. . . .. .. 10.9 (1.2) 37 26.8 (2.6) 24.2
Interest and other income, net . . 6.9 — 6.9 5.8 — 5.8
Income before provision for

income taxes and cumulative

effect of change in

accouanting principle .. ... .. 17.8 (1.2) 10,6 32.6 (2.6) 300
Provision for income taxes . ... 6.9 (2.3) 4.6 1.9 (0.8) 11.1

Income before cumulative effect

of change in accounting

principle . .. ............. 10.9 4.9 6.0 207 (1.8) 18.9
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of

TAXES. . vi v e — 0.4 0.4 — — —
Netincome................ $ 109 $(4.5) $ 64 $ 207 $(1.8) $ 189
Basic net income per share .. .. $ 0.08 $ 004 % 015 $ 013
Diluted net income per share... $ 0.07 $ 004 3% 0.4 $ 013
Shares used in computing

earnings per share

(in thousands):

Basic ...... ... ... ... 142,477 142,477 140,557 140,557
Diluted................... 149,208 149,333 146,369 146,129
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Netrevenue ...............
Costofrevenue. ............

Gross margin . .............

Operating expenses:

Research and development . . ..
Sales and marketing .........
General and administrative . . ..
Other charges, net. . .........

Total operating expenses . . .. ..

Income from operations. . . . ...
Interest and other income, net . .

Income before provision for

income taxes . ............
Provision for income taxes . ...

Netipcome., ...............

Basic net income per share . . . .
Diluted net income per share. . .

Shares used in computing
earnings per share
(in thousands):

Basic .......... ... ... .. ..

Three Months Ended

September 30, 2005

Three Months Ended

June 30, 2005
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As As As As
Reported Adjustments Restated Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 1065 $ — $ 1065 3% 966 $ — $ 966

40.5 0.7 41.2 37.8 (0.3) 37.5

66.0 (0.7) 65.3 58.8 0.3 59.1

124 2.5 14.9 14.2 0.4) 13.8

25.8 2.9 28.7 28.3 (0.5) 27.8

9.5 1.7 11.2 54 {0.4) 5.0
41.7 7.1 54.8 47.9 {1.3) 46.6
18.3 (7.8) 10.5 10.9 1.6 12.5
4.7 — 4.7 38 — 3.8
23.0 (7.8) 15.2 14.7 1.6 16.3
7.1 (3.4) 3.7 5.1 0.2 5.3
§ 159 $(4.4) $ 115 % 9.6 $14 $ 110
$ 0.1l $ 008 $ 007 $ 008
$ on $ 008 § 007 $ 008
139,581 139,581 138,627 138,627
144,087 144,466 141,109 141,486




FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2005
As As
Reported Adjustments Restated

NEUFBVEIUE L oottt e e e e e e e $ 846 3 — $ 846
Cost Of TEVENUE . . . i i e 31.9 {0.2) 31.7
Gross MAargin . . . .. ... i e e 52.7 0.2 52.9
Operating expenses:

Research and development .. .. ... . ..., .. ... . . et 12.4 (1.3) 11.1
Sales and marketing . . ... ... ... e 24.6 (1.6) 230
General and administrative . . ... ... . e 5.2 (1.2) 4.0
Total Operating eXpenses. . . .. ... oottt i i e e 42.2 {4.1) 38.1
Income from Operations . ........... .. ..ttt 10.5 43 14.8
Interest and other income, net. . . ... ... ... ... 3.8 — 3.8
Income before provision for income taxes . .......... ... ... ... ... 14.3 43 18.6
Provision for income taxes . .. ... ... .. ... i e 44 2.0 6.4
Netincome ........ ... .. . ... .. . $ 9.9 $23 $ 122
Basic net income pershare . . . .......... ... . ... .., § 007 3 009
Diluted net income per share .. ................c...cooeirnn.... $ 007 $  0.09
Shares used in computing earnings per share {in thousands):

Basic . ... e 137,908 137,908
Diluted. . .. .. . e 141,758 142,082
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FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

As of March 31, 2006

As As
Reported Adjustments Restated
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ..... ... .. . .t nnininnnnn. $211.4 $ — $211.4
Short-term INVESIMENTS. . . . . ...ttt i e e 401.3 — 401.3
Accounts receivable . ... . ... ... e 84.2 —_ 84.2
INVeNtOrIES. . . o i e e e e 36.1 — 36.1
Deferred tax assets. . .. .. ..ot e 30.6 32 338
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. . ... ... ... ... ..., 12.1 — 12.1
Total current @ssels. . . ... ...t e e 715.7 32 77189
Property and equipment, net ... ..... . ... .. .. 11.3 — 11.3
Long-term investments .. ... ... ...ttt et nnnenennnn 176.9 — 176.9
Deferred tax assets . ... ... ... ...ttt e 11.7 14.4 26.1
Other 888 . . . i i e e e e 6.0 — 6.0
Total @SSEIS . ...\t $981.6 $ 176 $999.2

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable. . ... ... $ 234 $ — $ 234
Accrued payroll and related benefits. .. ... ... ... ... . L 17.1 0.8 17.9
Income taxes payable. . . ... . . 6.9 0.7 7.6
Other accrued eXPenSEs . . .. ..ttt i it i e e 13.6 - 13.6
Deferred support revenue . . . . .. ... . ... e 46.3 — 46.3
Total current liabilities . ... .. ... L i 107.3 - 1.5 108.8
Deferred support revenue. . . ... ... ...t e 22.7 — 22.7
Total liabilities. . . . ... .o e 130.0 1.5 131.5
Stockholders’ equity:
Commonstock . ... . i e — — —
Additional paid-in capital. . ... ... .. L 545.5 123.3 668.8
Deferred stock compensation . .. ... .. ... Lo — — —_
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .................. —_ —_ —
Retained eamnings .. ... ... ... ... e 306.1 (107.2) 198.9
Total stockholders’ equity. . .. ... ... ... .. . ... .. ... 851.6 16.1 867.7
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ... ........ovvieun.ns $981.6 $ 176 $999.2
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FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

As of September 30, 2005

As As
Reported  Adjustments  Restated
Assets '
Current assets:
Cash and cash equIVAENES . .. ...\ttt $244.4 5 — $244.4
Short-term INVeSUMENts. . . . . ... ... e 3023 — 302.3
Accounts receivable. . . ... ... ... 77.1 — 77.1
IV n O e . . . . s e e e e 31.i (0.3) 30.8
Deferred tax assets. . . .ottt e 253 4.7 30.0
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. . ... ... ... . ... ... 6.4 — 6.4
Total CUITent a8SeLS. . . ... ittt it e e e 686.6 4.4 691.0
Property and equipment, net . .......... ... ... .. .. i i 9.0 — 9.0
Long-term investments . ... .. .. ... ...ttt 152.2 — 152.2
Deferred tax asses . .. .. ...ttt 18.4 14.1 32.5
Other assets .............. e e e e e e 6.9 — 6.9
Total a88e1s . . .. ... . $873.1 $ 183 $891.6
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable. . .. ... .. e § 20.7 5 — $ 207
Accrued payroll and related benefits. . ......... ... .. .. . L 16.8 0.7 17.5
Income taxes payable. .. ... . ... . .. e 9.0 1.9 10.9
Other accrued eXpenses . . ... .. .. et e e 9.6 0.1 9.7
Deferred support revenue . . ... ... .. .. e 333 — 33.3
Total current liabilities . ... ....... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... 89.4 23 92.1
Deferred support revenue. . ... ... .ot e 18.8 — 18.8
Total liabilities . . . ... ... . e e 108.2 2.7 110.9
Stockholders’ equity: '
Common stock .. ... ... — — —
Additional paid-in capital. . ... ... ... .. e 490.4 120.2 610.6
Deferred stock compensation . . .. ... ...t ie it — (3.6) (3.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss}Y ... ............... — — —
Retained earnings ... ... ... . o e 274.5 (100.8) 173.7
Total stockholders™ equity. . . ... ... ... ... . ... 764.9 15.8 780.7
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity . ... ................... $873.1 $ 185 3891.6
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Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounis receivable

Deferred tax assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Long-term investments
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related benefits
Income taxes payable
Other accrued expenses
Deferred support revenue

Total liabilities

Stockholders” equity:
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Deferred stock compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Retained carnings

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Total current Habilities . .. ... ... e e
Deferred support revenue
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As of June 30, 2005

As

Adjustments Restated
— 32690
— 2443
— 59.2
{0.1) 37.0
4.1 29.8
— 6.2
4.0 645.5
— 8.0
— 170.9
12.2 28.7
— 53

$ 162 $858.4
— $ 18.3
0.7 19.0
2.2 9.9
0.1 8.9
— 33.5
3.0 89.6
— 18.0
3.0 107.6
114.0 593.1
(4.4) (4.4)
— (0.1)
{96.4) 162.2
13.2 750.8

$ 16.2 $858.4




FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

As of March 31, 2005

As As
Reported Adjustments Restated

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . .. ....... ... ... . iiiurinerirenn.. $129.6 $ — $129.6
Short-term Investments. . . .. . ...ttt e 3548 — 354.8
Accounts receivable . . .. .. L e 66.3 — 66.3
TOVENLOTIES. -+« o v oo e e e e e e e e e e e e e 41.0 (0.4) 40.6
Deferred tax assets. . .. ... ... ... e 257 43 30.0
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . .. ... ... ... ... ... 13 — 7.3
Total current assets. . ... ... ... ... 624.7 39 628.6
Property and equipment, net . ............. .. e 8.2 — 8.2
Long-term investments . ....... ... ... 00 iiie i 172.1 — 172.1
Deferred tax assels . .. .. ... .. i e e 16.5 13.0 29.5
O her aSSELS . . ... e e e e e 54 — 54
Total a5SELS .« o oottt $826.9 $ 169 $843.8

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable. . . ... ... $17.2 F — 3172
Accrued payroll and related benefits. .. ......... ... ... L. 13.7 0.6 14.3
Income taxes payable. .. ... .. e e e e 7.9 26 10.5
Other accrued eXpenses . . .. .. ...ttt 8.2 0.1 8.3
Deferred supportrevenue . . ... ... .. i i 36.6 — 36.6
Total current liabilities . .. .. ........ ... . ... i 83.6 33 86.9
Deferred support revenue. . ... ... ... .. 174 — 174
Total Kabilities. .. ... ... .. . . . 1010 3.3 104.3

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock ... ... ... e — — —
Additional paid-in capital. . ... ... . e 477.2 117.1 594.3
Deferred stock compensation . . ... ............................ — 5.7 5.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . ................. (0.3) — (0.3)
Retained earnings . . ... ... ... . i e 249.0 (97.8) 151.2

Total stockholders” equity. . ... ... ... . .. . 725.9 13.6 739.5

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ............ ... . ...... $826.9 $ 169 $843.8
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FOUNDRY NETWORKS, INC.
SCHEDULE I1 -— VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at  Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expenses Deductions(1) Period

(In thousands of dollars)
Year ended December 31, 2004:; .
Allowance for doubtful accounts . ........... $4,151 $§ — $1,034 $3,117

Allowance for salesreturns .. .............. 2,020 2,080 2473 1,627
Year ended December 31, 2005;

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... ......... 3,117 154 - 884 2,387
Allowance forsalesreturns .. .............. 1,627 2,353 2,196 1,784
Year ended December 31, 2006:

Altowance for doubtful accounts . ... ........ 2,387 1,027 921 2,493
Allowance for salesreturns .. .............. 1,784 5,680 4,554 2,910

(1) Deductions for allowance for doubtful accounts refer to write-offs and deductions for allowance for sales
returns refer to actual returns.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
(“CEOQ™) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQO™), we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures, as such terms are defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {“Exchange Act”), as of December 31, 2006, the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 1(-K. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis and that such information is accumulated and communicated
to management, including the CEQ and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

On September 22, 2006, we issued a Current Report on Form 8-K to report that our historical financial
statements should no longer be relied upon. On January 23, 2007, we filed another Current Report on Form 8-K to
report that the Special Committee investigating our option practices had completed its review of all grants made
between September 27, 1999 (the date of our initial public offering) and May 31, 2006. As a result of the review of
our past stock option granting practices and the related accounting, our management, including our CEO and CFO,
concluded that we had control deficiencies that were significant and amounted to material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting prior to 2006, as discussed below. However, based on our evaluation as of
December 31, 2006, our CEO and CFO have concluded that we have remediated the material weakiess in internal
control over financial reporting relating to stock option granting practices and our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 2006.

Notwithstanding the historical matenial weaknesses described below, our current management, based upon the
substantial work performed during the restatement process, has concluded that our consolidated financial state-
ments for the periods covered by and included in this report are fairly stated in all material respects in accordance
with United States generally accepted accounting principles for each of the periods presented herein.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial
reporting. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, as required by
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, management has conducted an assessment, including testing, using the
criteria in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Our system of internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Based on its assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective at the reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework, issued by the COSO. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Stock Options Granting Practices Review and Restatement Related to Stock Options

On June 27, 2006, we announced the formation of a Special Committee of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors (“Special Committee™) to conduct an independent review of our stock option granting practices. On
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September 22, 2006, we announced that the review by the Special Committee had discovered irregularities related
to the measurement dates used to record certain stock option grants made between 2000 and 2003. We also
announced that our financial statements filed on or after January 1, 2000 should no longer be relied upon. On
January 22, 2007, we announced the conclusion of the Special Committee’s investigation and its key findings,
which were set forth in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2007.

Based on its investigation, the Special Commitiee has concluded, among other things, that we lack contem-
poraneous evidence supporting a substantial number of the recorded option grants and that some stock option grants
were determined with the benefit of hindsight. In some instances, documents, data and interviews suggest that the
option grant was prepared or finalized days or, in some cases, weeks after the option grant date recorded in our
books. The affected grants include grants to existing employees, newly-hired employees, officers and directors. The
Special Committee found that in a substantial number of cases, our then Chairman of the Board, and then and
current President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Bobby Johnson, Jr., selected the grant dates for and approved
option awards after the grant dates recorded in our books. Mr. Johnson did not. however, receive any options in
connection with these grants. Further, the Special Comimittee found no evidence demonstrating that Mr. Johnson
was advised that our stock option granting practices had resulted or would result in a misstatement of our financial
results. The Special Committee also found that although our former Vice President, Finance and Administration and
Chief Financial Officer, Timothy D. Heffner, did not select grant dates, he was involved in the granting process by,
among other things, communicating option grants determined by Mr. Johnson to our stock option administrators
and human resources group. Mr. Heffner was a recipient of a limited number of stock options for which the
measurement dates will be modified.

We believe these errors were the result of control deficiencies that included:

* Grants were often effected by written actions that contained “Effective as of” language to indicate the grant
date, rather than being effected at meetings of the Board of Directors or committees of the Board of
Directors, or using a written action that was manuatly dated and effecting a granting action with the grant
date based on the date of the manual signatures.

* Grants to non-officers were delegated to a sole member Stock Option Committee consisting of our CEQ,
which made it more difficult to confirm that the actions of the sole member committee were taken on the
dates indicated on the granting actions.

* Minutes of meetings where granting actions were made were not prepared on a contemporanecus basis,
which made it more difficult to confirm that the persons identified as receiving grants, and the number of
shares covered by such grant, had been finally determined at the time of the meeting where the granting
actions were made.

* We lacked a formal policy for issuing stock options, which contributed to our lack of contemporaneous
documentation and to inadequate attention to process considerations.

We concluded that these control deficiencies were significant and constituted a material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting.

Remedial Measures Instituted by the Company

Section 403 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 mandated new reporting requirements that apply when we
issue securities to our insiders, including our executive officers and directors. Prior to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
insiders were required to file Forms 4, to report transactions in our securities, no later than 10 days after the end of
the month in which the transaction occurred. Section 403 shortened the Form 4 filing period to the two business days
following the insider’s securities transaction. Compliance with Section 403 has significantly reduced the risk for
stock option price manipulation by insiders, who now must publicly report stock option grants within just two
business days after the grant date.

On July 20, 2006, our Board of Directors adopted new policies for the administration of all equity compen-
sation awards granted to officers, employees and service providers. The Board of Directors specified that the
Compensation Committee is to administer all equity compensation awards, and that all equity awards must be
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approved at a meeting of the Compensation Committee held on the last business day of each month or on the next
business day on which a quorum is available.

Since July, we have also implemented the following practices for our equity awards to employees and service
providers:

+ Our General Counsel or his designee takes the minutes of Compensation Committee meetings.

« Details of grant recommendations are circulated in advance of each meeting, and the Compensation
Committee approves the grantee names and share amounts at the meeting.

« The exercise price of each stock option grant is the closing price of our common stock on the date that the
Compensation Committee approved the grant.

« Stock option grants are made only after they are approved by the Compensation Committee and no changes
are made after the Compensation Committee’s approval,

« All grants are communicated to employees within a relatively short period after the grant date, as required by
applicable accounting rules.

On September 9, 2006, we appointed our Vice President and Controller, Daniel W. Fairfax, to the position of
Principal Accounting Officer. Mr. Fairfax, 51, had been our Vice President and Corporate Controller since May
2006.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2006, we expanded our Sarbanes-Oxley testing procedures relating to our new
option approval process for annual and monthly grants, and revised existing control documentation to describe the
revised approval and grant process.

On November 8, 2006, our Board of Directors formed an Executive Committee, consisting of the independent
directors, and authorized it on behalf of the Board of Directors as a whole 10 consider, adopt and implemeni
remedial measures in light of the findings of the Special Committee. The Executive Committee, on behalf of the
Board of Directors, has taken the following actions, among others:

« The Executive Committee determined that the positions of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer should be held by different persons. Accordingly, on January 19, 2007, Mr. Johnson resigned as
Chairman of the Board, and the Board of Directors elected director Alfred J. Amoroso as Chairman.
Mr. Amoroso has served as a member of our Board of Directors since October 2000. He also serves as
President and Chief Executive Officer of Macrovision Corporation and as a member of its Board of
Directors. Mr. Johnson continues to serve as a member of our Board of Directors, and as our President and
CEO.

« The Board of Directors accepted the resignation of Mr. Heffner as Vice President, Finance and Admin-
istration and Chief Financiai Officer on January 19, 2007, and Mr. Heffner assumed a new role as Vice
President of Corporate Development. His role as Vice President of Corporate Development does not involve
accounting or financial reporting responsibilities. Mr. Heffner has repaid us the net after-tax difference
between the initial exercise price for two options he exercised for which the measurement date has been
changed, and the price of the shares on the new measurement dates, an amount of approximately $162,000.
All unexercised options which he holds which have been remeasured were repriced to reflect the price of our
stock on the new measurement dates.

On January 19, 2007, we appointed Mr. Fairfax to the office of Vice President, Finance and Administration and
Chief Financial Officer, following Mr. Heffner’s resignation from these positions. The Special Committee found
that there was inadequate documentation for stock options awarded to members of our Board of Directors on two
dates. The price of our stock on the corrected measurement date for one of those grants was lower than the original
exercise price of the options, The price of our stock on the corrected measurement date for the other grant was
higher than the exercise price of that option. The Board of Directors directed that the latter grant be re-priced to
reflect a higher exercise price, and decided not to re-price the former grant to a lower exercise price. Our non-
management directors who received and exercised any of the options that had been recorded with the lower exercise




price have repaid us the net after-tax difference between the initial exercise price and the corrected exercise price
(an aggregate repayment of approximately $86,000),

We have begun to implement training and education designed to ensure that all relevant personnel involved in
the administration of stock option grants understand the terms of our equity incentive plans, the relevant accounting
requirements for stock options and other stock-based payments, and the revised approval and grant process.

We have tested key controls contained in the remedial actions above and found them to be operating effectively
as of December 31, 2006, enabling us to conclude that the material weakness discussed above has been remediated.
The possibility that inadequate documentation of equity grants will occur is remote.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

» pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of our assets;

» provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expen-
ditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

» provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Management does not expect that our internal controls will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of internal controls can provide absolute assurance that all control
issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Also, any evaluation of the effectiveness of ¢controls in
future periods are subject to the risk that those internal controls may become inadequate because of changes in
business conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may detertorate.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no significant changes to our internal controls during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 other
than those discussed above under Remedial Actions that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART I

Item 10. Directors, Executive 0fﬁcer§ and Corporate Governance.,

The names, ages and positions of our executive officers and directors as of May 31, 2007 are as follows:

Name Age Position

Bobby R. Johnson, Jr. ... ... ... ... ... 50  President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Alfred . AmOroso . .............oov... 57  Chairman of the Board of Directors

C. Nicholas Keating, Jr. ................ 65  Director

J.Steven Young ................. ... 45  Director

Alan L. Earhart. ... ........... ... .. ... 63  Director

Celeste VolzFord . .. .................. 51 Director

Laurence L. Akin .. ................ ... 59  Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales

Richard W. Bridges. . .. ................ 58 Vice President, Operations

Ken K.Cheng........................ 52  Vice President and General Manager, High

Value Layer 2/3 Systems Business Unit

Daniel W. Fairfax .. ................. .. 51 Vice President, Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer

Michael R. Tburg. .. ... . ... ... ..o 44 Vice President and Treasurer
Cliff G. Moore . ............ e 53 Vice President and General Counsel
Robert W. Schiff. . ......... ... ... ..., 50  Vice President and General Manager, Small

and Medium Systems

Directors

Bobby R. Johnson, Jr. co-founded Foundry and has served as President, Chief Executive Officer and member
of the Board of Directors of Foundry since its inception in May 1996. Mr. Johnson was Foundry’s Chairman of the
Board of Directors from May 1996 to January 2007. From August 1993 to October 1995, Mr. Johnson co-founded
and served as President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Centillion Networks,
Inc., a provider of local area network switches. From September 1991 to February 1993, Mr. Johnson was Vice
President and General Manager of Internetworking Hardware for Network Equipment Technologies, Inc., a wide
area networking company. Mr. Johnson holds a B.S. degree with honors from North Carolina State University.

Alfred J. Amoroso has served as a member of the Board of Directors of Foundry since October 2000 and as the
Chairman of the Board of Directors since January 2007. Since July 2005, Mr. Amoroso serves as the President,
Chief Executive Officer and director of Macrovision Corporation. From September 2004 to July 2005, Mr. Amoroso
was an advisor to Warburg Pincus. From July 2002 1o August 2004, Mr. Amoroso served as the President, Chief
Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of Meta Group, an information technology research and advisory firm. From
October 1999 until its merger with [BM in January 2002, Mr. Amoroso served as President, Chief Executive Officer
and a director of CrossWorlds Software, Inc. From November 1993 to November 1999, Mr. Amoroso served in a
number of general management positions with [BM and served on the Management Committee of the company for
a period of time. Before joining IBM, Mr. Amoroso held various positions at Price Waterhouse, now
PricewaterhouseCoopers, from 1985 to 1993, including lead technology partner and partner in charge of the
worldwide insurance consulting practice. He joined Price Waterhouse upon the sale of his consulting company to
them in 1985. Mr. Amoroso holds a B.S. degree in systems engineering and M.S. degree in operations research from
Polytechnic Institute of Brooklyn.

C. Nicholas Keating, Jr. has served as a member of the Board of Directors of Foundry since October 2000 and
has been a director of Network Equipment Technologies, Inc. (NET), a wide area networking company, since
November 2001. In July 2005, he was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of NET. From July 2000 to
April 2005, he served as a member of the Board of Directors of IP Infusion Inc., an Internet protocol software
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development company. From October 2000 to February 2004, Mr. Keating was the President and Chief Executive
Officer of IP Infusion Inc. From February 1999 to january 2001, he was President and Chief Executive Officer of
US Search.com Inc., a Web-based supplier of information products and services. From January 1994 to February
1999, he was a business advisor t0 a number of companies in the networking, software and semiconductor
industries. From May 1987 until December 1993, Mr, Keating served as Vice-President of Network Equipment
Technologies. In addition to Network Equipment Technologies, Mr. Keating also serves as a director of Bay
Microsystems, Inc. Mr. Keating holds a B.A. degree and M.A. degree from American University and was a
Fulbright Scholar.

J. Steven Young has served as a member of the Board of Directors of Foundry since October 2000. Mr. Young is
a co-founder of Sorenson Capital, a private equity firm, and has served as its Managing Partner since its inception in
February 2003. From February 1999 to January 2003, Mr, Young co-founded and served as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Found, Inc., an e-infrastructure technology solution provider. Mr. Young currently serves as a
director of Nutraceutical International Corporation and also serves as a member of the boards of directors of a
number of private companies. From May 1987 to June 2000, Mr. Young was the quarterback of the San Francisco
49ers. Mr. Young holds a B.S. degree and a J.D. degree from Brigham Young University.

Alan L. Earhart has served as a member of the Board of Directors of Foundey since August 2003 and has been a
retired partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP since 2001. From 1970 to 2001, Mr. Earhart held a variety of
positions with Coopers & Lybrand and its successor entity, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an accounting and
consulting firm, including most recently as the Managing Partner for PricewaterhouseCoopers’ Silicon Valley
office. Mr. Earhart also serves on the Board of Directors of Quantum Corporation, Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.
and Network Appliance, Inc. Mr. Earhart hoids a B.S. degree in accounting from the University of Oregon.

Celeste Volz Ford joined the Board of Directors of Foundry in April 2007. Ms. Ford is the founder of Stellar
Solutions, Inc., a professional aerospace engineering services firm, and has served as its CEO since its inception in
1995. From 1984 to 1995 Ms. Ford served as Vice President, Satellite Business Area of Scitor Corporation, a
systems engineering, information technology and program management aecrospace expertise company. From
1978 to 1984 Ms. Ford held project management and engineering positions in the aerospace industry. Ms. Ford
currently serves on the Board of Directors of Bay Microsystems, Inc. and also serves as Chairman of the Board of
California Space Authority. Ms. Ford holds a B.S. degree from the University of Notre Dame and a M.S. from
Stanford University.

Executive Officers

Laurence L. Akin has served as Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales since October 2002. From April
2001 to September 2002, Mr. Akin was Vice President of Sales for the Americas of Foundry. From November 2000
t0 March 2001, Mr. Akin served as Vice President of Sales Operations of Foundry. From April 1989 to May 1999,
Mr. Akin was Vice President of North American enterprise sales at 3Com Corporation, a computer networking
company. From June 1982 to March 1989, Mr. Akin held various sales management positions at ROLM/IBM, a
telecommunications company. Mr. Akin holds a B.S. degree from the University of Colorado.

Richard W. Bridges has served as Foundry’s Vice President of Operations since August 2001. From May 1999
to July 2001, Mr. Bridges was Vice President of Operations for Ramp Networks, a provider of Internet security
appliances subsequently acquired by Nokia. From October 1994 10 March 1999, Mr. Bridges was Director and
subsequently Vice President of Materials Management for Plantronics Inc.,, a manufacturer of lightweight
communications headsets. Mr. Bridges holds a B.S. degree from Stanford University.

Ken K. Cheng has served as Foundry’s Vice President and General Manager, High Value Layer 2/3 Systems
Business Unit since January 2003 and served as Vice President of Marketing from December 1999 to December
2002. From July 1998 (o November 1999, he served as Vice President of Product and Program Management of
Foundry. From December 1993 to July 1998, Mr. Cheng was Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of
Digital Generation Systems, a network services company. From December 1988 to December 1993, Mr. Cheng was
Director of LAN/WAN Internetworking Hardware for Network Equipment Technologies. Mr. Cheng holdsa B.S.
degree from Queen’s University and an M.B.A. degree from Santa Clara University.
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Daniel W, Fairfax has served as Foundry’s Vice President, Finance and Administration and Chief Financial
Officer since January 2007. Mr. Fairfax served as Foundry's Vice President and Corporate Controlier from May
2006 to January 2007 and as the Principal Accounting Officer from September 2006 to January 2007. Previously, he
served as the Senior Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer of GoRemote Internet Communications,
Inc., a Nasdag-listed company, from February 2004 until February 2006, when it was acquired by iPass, Inc. From
March 2000 to June 2003 he served as Chief Financial Officer of Ironside Technologies, Inc,, a privately-held
developer of supplier-focused real-time integration and e-commerce application software. From November 1998 to
December 1999, he served as Chief Financial Officer of ACTA Technology, a developer of data-warehousing and
application integration software for enterprise resource planning-based business information and e-commerce
applications. From June 1993 to November 1998, Mr. Fairfax served as Chief Financial Officer of privately held
NeoVista Software, which provided scalable intelligent data' mining software and related business intelligence
applications for Global 2000 companies. Mr. Fairfax holds a B.A. degree in economics from Whitman College and
an M.B.A. degree from the University of Chicago, and is a Certified Public Accountant in California.

Michael R. Iburg has served as Foundry’s Vice President and Treasurer since April 2000. Mr. Iburg holds a
B.S. degree from San Jose State University and an M.B.A. degree from Santa Clara University.

Cliff G. Moore has served as Foundry's Vice President and General Counsel since January 2002. From
June 2000 to January 2002, Mr. Moore was Foundry's General Counsel. Mr. Moore holds a J.D. degree from the
University of Michigan, an M.A. degree from Georgetown University, and a B.A. degree from the University of
California, Los Angeles.

Robert W. Schiff has served as Foundry’s Vice President and General Manager, Small and Medium Systems since
February 2006, as Vice President and General Manager, Edge and Mid-Range Systems Business Unit from December
2005 to February 2006, as Vice President of Product Marketing from January 2005 to November 2005, and as Vice
President and General Manager of Layer 4-7 from June 2004 to December 2004. From July 2003 to May 2004, Mr. Schiff
was Director of Product Marketing for Foundry. From August 1999 to May 2003, Mr. Schiff was Senior Director of
Marketing for Lantern Communications, a manufacturer of broadband packet switches subsequently acquired by C-
COR. From September 1994 to July 1999, Mr. Schiff held various product line management positions at FORE Systems,
a manufacturer of ATM switches acquired by Marconi Corporation plc. Mr. Schiff holds a B.S. degree in electrical
engineering from Cornell University and an M.S. degree in electrical engineering from Stanford University.

There are no family relationships among any of the directors or executive officers of the Company. Each of the
director nominees, except Mr. Johnson, is independent under current Nasdaq rules.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Under Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchunge Act”) and SEC rules, the
Company's directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 10% of any class of equity security are
required to file periodic reports of their ownership, and changes in that ownership, with the SEC. Based solely on its
review of copies of these reports and representations of such reporting persons, the Company believes that during
fiscal year 2006, such SEC filing requirements were satisfied.

Cade of Ethics

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to all officers and employees, including its principal
executive officer, principal financial officer and controller. This code of ethics is posted on our website at
hitp://www.foundrynet.com/company/irfir-corp-gov/. If any substantive amendments are made to the Code of
Ethics or the Board of Directors grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to any
of the directors or officers of the Company, the Company wiil disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver in a
report on Form 8-K.

Stockholder Director Nominations

There have been no material changes to the procedures by which stockholders may recommend nominees 1o
our Board of Directors. The Nominating Committee will consider written proposals from stockholders for nominees

bES




for director, provided such proposals meet the requirements described herein and in our Bylaws. Any such
nominations should be submitted to the Nominating Committee c/o0 the Secretary of the Company and should
inctude the following information: (a) all information relating to such nominee that is required 1o be disclosed
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (including such person’s written consent 1o
being named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected); (b) the names and addresses
of the stockholders making the nomination and the number of shares of the Company’s common stock which are
owned beneficially and of record by such stockholders; and (c) appropriate biographical information and a
statement as to the qualification of the nominee. We require that any such recommendations for inclusion in our
proxy materials be made within the time periods described in the previous year’s Proxy Statement for such
stockholder proposals. '

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert

Qur Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs. Keating, Amoroso and Earhart. The Board has determined
that Mr. Earhart qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as defined by the rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The Board has determined that each of the Audit Committee members is an independent
director under the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.

Item 11, Executive Compensation.
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Compensation Philosophy

Our executive compensation philosophy is to reward executive performance and leadership that is in line with
the Company’s interests and goals. We motivate, recognize and reward executive officer performance through cash
compensation, including base salary and bonuses, and equity incentives. We establish target levels of total
compensation for all of our named executive officers, which are determined with reference to competitive market
data, individual performance, skill set, prior experience, and the length of time the executive has served in the
position.

Peer Group Review

We believe that it is necessary to ensure our compensation packages are competitive with competing
companies in order to attract and retain skilled executives with the proper experience to deliver results. In our
experience, it is generally necessary to provide total compensation (base pay, cash bonuses and equity compen-
sation) for executives at levels equal to approximately the 75th percentile of total compensation for comparable
positions in the Northern California networking industry, In 2006, we used the following comparable companies for
purposes of our executive compensation benchmarking review:

« Extreme Networks, Inc.
+ F5 Networks, Inc.
« Juntper Networks, Inc.

We used these companies for comparison because they are in our industry and are geographically located in
such a way that we compete directly with these companies when we are seeking to hire executives. Each year, we
review the companies in our peer group, and add or remove companies as appropriate. For 2007 we expanded the list
of benchmark companies to ten, in order to have a larger set of compensation data for our executive compensation
benchmarking review. Companies included in our 2007 review include:

« 3Com Corporation
« Brocade Communications Systems, Inc.
» Ciena Corporation

« Extreme Networks, Inc.
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F5 Networks, Inc.

Juniper Networks, Inc.

» Netgear, Inc.

+ Network Appliance, Inc.
+ Radisys Corporation

* Tekelec

To assess competitive executive compensation, we review proxy statement filings and Form 4 filings for the
relevant peer group companies. We also review the Radford/AON and IPAS (International Pay Analysis System)
compensation benchmark surveys, which include survey data from direct networking competitors and other
networking companies. Geographic and economic variables factored into the surveys allow us to compare each job
inside Foundry to comparable jobs in other networking companies. The surveys also use a job grading structure that
allows us to compare the required level of job competencies, training, experience, responsibility and accountability
of one Foundry job to another Foundry job. Finally, the surveys provide us with data such as industry trends on merit
increase budgets. For 2007, we engaged a compensation consultant, Watson Wyatt Worldwide, to help perform our
executive compensation benchmarking review.

Compensation Process and Criteria

Each year, our Chief Executive Officer and our Vice President of Human Resources conduct a thorough
assessment of our compensation for all executive positions. The results of this review, including specifically any
adjustments to base salary, bonus or equity compensation, are submitted to-the Board’s Compensation Committee
for consideration and approval.

The Compensation Committee annually reviews and approves, as appropriate, total compensation and the
specific components of the total compensation package for our Chief Executive Officer and the other named
executive officers including each of the following components: base salary, cash bonus, equity awards such as stock
options or restricted shares, and all other benefits, including benefit plans. Qur Chief Executive Officer contin-
vousty evaluates the performance of the other executive officers on a subjective basis and focusing on core
competencies such as job knowledge, delivery of results, communication, teamwork, quality, initiative and
dependability, and also expense management, planning, process improvements, recruitment, retention, coaching,
mentoring and other measurable company-specific goals. Based on his performance assessment of each executive,
our Chief Executive Officer makes specific recommendations to the Compensation Committee, as appropriate, for
adjustment of base salary, cash incentives and equity awards. The Compensation Committee assesses the Chief
Executive Officer’s performance and determines his base salary, cash incentives and equity awards. The Chief
Executive Officer is not present when the Compensation Committee reviews his performance and determines his
compensation. :

We believe that the executive compensation program should be flexible enough for us to recruit and retain a
highly qualified executive team, while providing the structure to manage performance. We utilize external
professional support and consultation where appropriate to evaluate that compensation program, provide recom-
mendations and ongoing assistance in the administration of the program. In determining executive compensation
for fiscal 2006, we did not engage an outside professional consulting firm to conduct a competitive review and
assessment of our executive compensation package, but we did rely on executive compensation survey results from
Radford/AON. In determining executive compensation for fiscal 2007, we have engaged Watson Wyatt Worldwide,
a human resources consulting firm, to work with the Company to conduct a competitive review and assessment of
our executive compensation. This firm was engaged by management, at the request of the Compensation
Commitiee, to value the elements of our executive compensation program and our director compensation program.
Watson Wyatt followed its own methodology, which included developing a peer group approved by the Com-
pensation Committee, gathering data from Radford/AON benchmark salary surveys, analysis of Form 4 filings, and
reviewing proxy filings to assess the base, bonus and equity components of executive compensation. Watson Wyatt
then compiled a report of its analysis and recommendations, which was presented to and reviewed by the
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Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee took these recommendations into consideration when
determining the total compensation for its named executive officers for fiscal 2007,

Base Salary

We believe that we provide base salaries that are competitive and sufficient to attract and retain key executives,
However, in order to create a stronger link between pay and performance we emphasize incentive-based executive
compensation. To determine the appropriate base salary for an executive, the Compensation Committee considers a
number of factors, including the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer in light of the executive’s
responsibilities, years of experience, past performance, and expected future contribution to the Company. The
Compensation Committee then considers the base salaries of executives in similar positions at our peer group and
other comparable companies using, among other things, Radford/AON salary surveys which generally report a
salary range for each position, in addition to Forms 4 and proxy statements filed by comparable companies, and
generally targets the 75th percentile of the range depending on position.

Each year, our Chiet Executive Officer considers the performance and responsibilities of all executive officers
for the purpose of base salary determinations. Where responsibilities have increased for an executive officer, the
Chief Executive Officer will generally make a recommendation to the Compensation Committee for a base salary
increase, based on the compensation benchmark data. In 2006, Bobby Johnson, Tim Heffner, Ken Cheng and Paul
Twombly did not receive base salary increases because their responsibilities had not changed significantly and
benchmark data for similar positions did not support increases. In 2006, Laurence Akin received a base salary
increase of $50,000 due to greater responsibility for sales geography and quota.

Executive Performance Incentive Plan

Our Executive Performance Incentive Plan provides for cash bonus payments to executives based upon
attainment of annual corporate objectives for revenue, gross margin and operating income, and certain individual
management objectives. The plan is intended to provide competitive incentive-based cash compensation, reward
executive contributions to the achievement of corporate objectives, and acknowledge individual contributions, Each
named executive officer participates in our Executive Performance Incentive Plan except Lauvrence Akin, our Senior
Vice President of Worldwide Sales, who was compensated through a separate commissions-based sales incentive
plan. .

The target bonus for each named executive officer who participated in the plan in 2006 was 30% of annual base
salary except our Chief Executive Officer whose target bonus was 50% of annual base salary. Foundry maintains the
same weighting and bonus percentages for all executives who participate in the plan at the same level. For 2007, the
Compensation Committee approved an increase in the target bonus percentage for executives, to 40% of annual
base salary for all named executive officers who participate in the plan (as it had been for the years 2002 — 2004),
except our Chief Executive Officer whose target bonus percentage remains 50% of annual base salary. This change
was largely based on the Watson Wyatt analysis, which concluded that the 30% target was below the 50th percentile
of benchmarked data. The Compensation Committee determined that increasing the bonus percentage better
reflected our pay for performance compensation philosophy.

The actual bonus payout for each executive is determined primarily with reference to our achievement of
corporale targets, and secondarily with reference to achievement of individual objectives. No bonus is earned unless
the revenue target is achieved at no less than 93% of plan. 1f the revenue target is achieved, then bonuses are paid as
follows:

* One-fourth of the bonus amount is determined by the level of our revenue for the year. If revenue is achieved
at the level of 95% to 97.5% of target, then 75% of the revenue portion of the bonus is earned; if revenue is
achieved at 97.5% to 102.5% of target, then 100% of the revenue portion of the bonus is earned; if revenue is
achieved at 102.5% to 105% of target, then 125% of the revenue portion of the bonus is earned, and if
revenue exceeds 105% of target, then 150% of the revenue portion of the bonus is eamed.

* One-fourth of the bonus amount is determined by the level of our gross margin for the year. If gross margin is
achieved at the level of 95% to 97.5% of target, then 75% of this portion of the bonus is earned; if gross

118




margin is achieved at 97.5% to 102.5% of target, then 100% of this portion of the bonus is earned; if gross
margin is achieved at 102.5% to 105% of target, then 125% of this portion of the bonus is earned, and if gross
margin exceeds 105% of target, then 150% of this portion of the bonus is earned.

+ One-fourth of the bonus amount is determined by the level of our operating income for the year. If operating
income is achieved at the level of 95% to 97.5% of target, then 75% of this portion of the bonus is earned; if
operating income is achieved at 97.5% to 102.5% of target, then 100% of this portion of the bonus is earned;
if operating income is achieved at 102.5% to 105% of target,then 125% of this portion of the bonus is earned,
and if operating income exceeds 105% of target, then 150% of this portion of the bonus is earned.

« One-fourth of the bonus amount is determined by the individual executive’s performance over the year on
major management objectives determined by the Chief Executive Officer and typically communicated to the
executive earlier in the year. These objectives vary depending on the executive’s functional area and focus
primarily on departmental goals. If the executive achieves his or her individual management objectives, he or
she is entitled to a payment for this portion of the bonus. The Compensation Committee determines the
appropriate individual performance payout for all of the named executive officers. The maximum payment
in the case of exceptional performance is 100% of the target value of this portion of the award.

A tabular presentation of the structure of the Executive Performance Incentive Plan is as follows:

Weighted Level of Bonus
Performance Measures Achievement % Payout
Revenues (25%) 95.0% - 97.5% 75%
>97.5% - <102.5% 100%
102.5% - 105.0% 125%
> 105% 150%
(The revenue target must first be met before any bonus is paid on the following targets)
Gross Margins (25%) 95.0% - 97.5% 75%
And >97.5% - <<102.5% 100%
Operating Income (25%) 102.5% - 105.0% 125%
> 105% 150%
Individual Management Objectives {25%) 100% 100%

The specific target levels for our Executive Performance Incentive Plan are submitted by the Chief Executive
Officer to the Compensation Committee for review and approval on an annual basis. Since 2002, the targets have
been expressed as specific amounts of annual revenues, gross margin and operating income as reported in our
financial statements but excluding the impact of stock-based compensation expense and excluding or including
items that the Compensation Committee believes to be extraordinary or otherwise appropriate to exclude or include.
The Compensation Committee approves these target goals as stretch targets that should be challenging to achieve,
and historically they are not always achieved. For example, bonuses for years 2004 and 2005 were paid at
approximately 31% and 50%, respectively. For fiscal 2006, we did achieve our revenue, gross margin and operating
income targets, and all of our named executive officers earned 100% of their target bonuses, except for Mr. Johnson
and Mr. Heffner who were not awarded any bonus.

Equity Compensation

We believe that equity-based compensation is a key component for an effective executive compensation
program at growth-oriented technology companies. In 2006, we granted each named executive officer a combi-
nation of stock options and restricted stock. We believe that stock options are an effective motivational tool because
they have value for the executive only if the price of our stock on the date of exercise exceeds the exercise price, and
that restricted stock, which has a more limited upside incentive, serves to retain executives because those shares
have value even if the price of our stock does not increase. We believe equity compensation aligns executive
interests with the interests of our stockholders, since rewards depend on stock performance. We use vesting
schedules for our equity awards in order to delay realization of the benefits of the rewards until future periods,
thereby keeping incentives “in front” of our executives to motivate performance and help us retain key talent. All
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new stock option awards are granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock on
the date of grant. Restricted stock is generally sold for par value,

We monitor the number of equity awards granted to executives on an annual basis, as part of our assessment of
the number of equity awards granted to all employees, in order to limit compensation expense and potential dilution
of stockholder ownership. In particular;

* We budget the number of shares of stock available for executive equity incentive grants. In determining the
size of this pool, we consider factors such as the growth in the number of executives eligible for grants,

" competitive compensation practices, expected average grant sizes based on expected performance, and the
accounting expense of granting awards; and

* We are budgeting equity grants to all employees, including executive officers, with reference to a best
practice average annual dilution rate not to exceed 6.11% as measured over a 3 year period from 2006
through 2008. We define the annual dilution rate as the gross number of new equity awards granted during a
fiscal year, expressed as a percentage of the outstanding common stock at year-end. For purposes of
calculating the number of shares of our common stock granted in a year, each share of restricted stock
granted will be multiplied by a multiplier which is determined based on the annual stock price volatility. By
doing so, we are placing more weight on restricted stock grants due to their higher intrinsic value and
immediate dilutive effect. For 2006, the multiplier was 2. For complete details of this dilution calculation
please see Proposal No. 3 in our 2006 Proxy Statement related to the Approval of the 2006 Stock Incentive
Plan. For fiscal 2006, cur actual dilution rate was 5.3%, primarily reflecting retention grants to existing
employees and to a more limited extent grants to newly-hired employees as the total number of our
employees grew approximately 13%, from 719 to 816. We have no policy on any target proportion of
executive officer equity awards to all employee equity awards.

As aresult of our investigation of historical stock option practices in the second half of 2006 and the first half of
2007, we have made fewer equity awards than we anticipated. We expect there to be a substantial increase in our
equity award activity in coming months as we resume normal activities, but that overall we will remain within our
annual budget for equity awards.

To determine the appropriate size of each executive’s equity awards, the Compensation Committee considers
recommendations from our Chief Executive Officer based on several factors, including the executive’s past
performance and expected future contribution, the retention value of the executive’s prior unvested option and
restricted stock grants, our growth and performance outlook, and the equity incentive grants provided to executives
in similar positions at comparable companies. For example, smaller equity awards with shorter vesting periods may
be used from time to time to motivate specific performance objectives and/or retention objectives.

Historically, executives received a single stock option grant during the first quarter of each year. In the first
_quarter of 2006, each named executive officer received an award of a stock option (vesting quarterly over four years)
and an award of restricted stock (vesting annually over two years). For fiscal 2007, the Compensation Committee is
working with our compensation consultant to reassess the process for determining the size of executive equity
awards and the overall process for determining equity awards for executives. We do not grant re-lead options, make
loans to execulives to exercise stock options, grant stock options at a discount, or make grants to executives when
our stock trading window is closed. Because our Chief Executive Officer is one of our founders and has substantial
holdings of our common stock, equity grants to him have been infrequent.

Under our 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, stock options must be granted with an exercise price of not less than
100% of the fair market value on the date of grant: Shares of restricted stock are purchased at a purchase price no
less than the par value per share of our common stock. Our equity awards are typically granted subject to vesting
requirements, whether in the form of vesting dates before which stock options may not be exercised, or vesting dates
before which shares that have been issued are subject to forfeiture. Stock options for newly-hired employees
typically vest over four years, with a six-month cliff and monthly vesting over the following 42 months, The vesting
of stock option grants for retention purpose varies considerably with most option grants vesting quarterly over two
to four years. Grants of restricted stock typically vest in two annual cliff amounts.
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Other Benefits

We provide a comprehensive benefits package to all of our employees, including our named executive officers,
which includes medical, dental, prescription drug, vision care, disability insurance, life insurance benefits, flexible
spending plan, 401(k) savings plan, educational reimbursement program, employee assistance program, employee stock
purchase plan, holidays and personal time off which includes vacation, sick or personal days off and a sell back policy.

We also provide our executives with additicnal business travel insurance, supplemental life and accidental
death & dismemberment insurance and supplemental long-term disability and an additional five days of paid time
off per year in of recognition of the numerous domestic and international trips undertaken as part of their
responsibilities during a typical year. In fiscal year 2006, as a result of tax issues raised as a result of our recent stock
option investigation we reimbursed Laurence Akin and Paul Twombly for tax consulting services, in an aggregate
amount of less than $4,000.

We do not provide pension arrangements or post-retirement health coverage for executives or other employees,
nor do we provide other benefits such as the use of company vehicles.

Executive Compensation Tables
Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth all compensation earned by our Chief Executive Officer, former Chief Financial
Officer and the next three most highly compensated executive officers for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006,
for services rendered to us in all capacities during fiscal year 2006, We refer to these individuals collectively as the
“named executive officers.”

Summary Compensation Table

Non-Equity
Stock Option Incentive Plan All Other
Name and Principal Position Year Salary (§) Awards ($)(1)  Awards ($)(1})  Compensation ($)(2)  Compensation [43] Total ($)

. Bobby R. Johnson . .. .... 2006 $600,056 $515,755 32,011,794 $ — $2,032(3) $3,129,637

President and
Chief Executive Officer

Timothy D. Heffner ... ... 2006 $400,040 $257,878 $ 935,112 $ — $2,310(4) $1,595,340
Vice President, Corporate
Development

Ken K. Cheng* . . ....... 2006 $400,000 $257,878 $1,314,104 $120,000 $2,056(5) $2,004,038
Vice President and
General Manager,
Layer 2-3 Systems
Business Unit

Laurence L. Akin. . ... ... 2006  $344,423 $128,939 $1,004,905 $297,159 $2,357(6}) $1,777,783
Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Sales

Paul L. Twombly . . . .. ... 20060 $360,000 $257.878 $ 926,064 $108,000 $2,224(7) $1,654,165
Vice President, ,
Customer Support

Robert W. Schiff . . ...... 2006  $343.654 $257,878 $ 672,214 $105,000 $2,365(8) $1,381,111
Vice President and
General Manager,
Small and Medium
Systems

* Mr. Heffner was our Vice President, Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer until January 2007.

(1) Represents the amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006 in accordance with SFAS 123R for equity awards (which may or may not have been
granted in fiscal year 2006), disregarding the estimate of forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions,
For a more detailed description on the valuation model and assumptions used to calculate the fair value of our

" options refer to Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) The amounts in this column reflect the cash bonuses earned under our 2006 Executive Performance Incentive
Plan during fiscal year 2006.
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(3) Reflects amounts paid by Foundry for Mr. Johnson's life insurance premiums amounting to $2,025, and for
restricted stock purchased on 01/31/06 in the amount of $7.50

(4) Reflects amounts paid by Foundry for Mr. Heffner’s life insurance premiums amounting to $2,307, and for
restricted stock purchased on 01/31/06 in the amount of $3.75

(5) Reflects amounts paid by Foundry for Mr. Cheng’s life insurance premiums amounting to $2,052, and for
restricted stock purchased on 01/31/06 in the amount of $3.75

(6) Reflects amounts paid by Foundry for Mr. Akin’s life insurance premiums amounting to $2,355, and for
restricted stock purchased on 01/31/06 in the amount of $1.88

(7) Reflects amounts paid by Foundry for Mr. Twombly’s life insurance premiums amounting to $2,220, and for
restricted stock purchased on 01/31/06 in the amount of $3.75

(8) Reflects amounts paid by Foundry for Mr. Schiff’s life insurance premiums amounting to $2,362, and for
restricted stock purchased on 01/31/06 in the amount of $3.75

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table provides information regarding all plan-based awards that were granted to our named
executive officers during fiscal year 2006, The information in this table supplements the disclosure of option and
other awards set forth in the Summary Compensation Table above by providing additional details about the awards.

The option grants to purchase shares of our common stock set forth in the following table were granted under
our 1996 Stock Plan during fiscal year 2006. The exercise price of each option was equal to the closing price of our
common stock as reported by the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the date on which the option was approved by the
Compensation Committee.

Grant of Plan-Based Awards

Estimated Future P?youts Under All Other Option
R s All Other Stock  Awards: # of . _
Awards: # of Shares Securities Exercise or Base Grant Date Fair
Threshold  Target Maximum  of Stock or Units Underlying Price of Option Velue of Stock and
Grant Date $) ) ($) # Options (#) Awards ($/Sh)  Option Awards ($)(4)
Bobby R. Johnson, Jr. .. N/A 225000 300,000 450,000
13172606 600,000 $15.03 $3,333,240
. 1/31/2006 75,000 $1,127,250
Timothy D. Heffoer . . .. N/A 90,000 120,000 180,000
1/31/2006 125,000 $15.03 $ 694,425
1/31/2006 ) 37,560 $ 563,625
Ken K. Cheng. .. ... .. N/A 90,000 120,000 180,000
173112006 240,000 315.03 51,518,312
173112006 37,500 5 563,625
51612002 3,646(1) $ 6.75(1)
Laurence L. Akin. ., ... N/A 187,500 250,000 375,000
113112006 125,000 $15.03 3 694,425
1/31/2006 18,750 $ 281813
2/5/2002 10,279(2) $ 7.28(2)
5/62002 57.500(2) $ 6.75(2)
Paul L. Twombly, ir. . .. NIA 81,000 108,000 162,000
1/3172006 150,000 $15.03 $ 948,945
1/31/2006 37,500 © O § 563625
2/5/2002 2,778(3) § 7.28(3)
5f6/2002 3,125(3) $ 6.7503)
Robert W. Schiff . . . ... N/A 78,750 105,000 157,500
1/31.2006 200,000 $15.03
173172006 37,500 $ 0.00
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(1) In connection with our review of historic stock option grant practices, the Company and Mr. Cheng agreed to
increase the exercise price of the unvested portion of an option granted to Mr. Cheng on May 6, 2002, covering
3,646 shares, Under that agreement, the exercise price of this option was increased to $6.75, the closing price of
our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the revised measurement date. This change provided
no additional consideration to Mr. Cheng, and we did not recognize any financial expense under SFAS 123R in
connection with the modification.

(2) In connection with our review of historic stock option grant practices, the Company and Mr. Akin agreed to
increase the exercise price of the unvested portion of two options granted to Mr. Akin, on February 5, 2002 and
May 6, 2002, covering 10,279 and 57,500 shares respectively. Under that agreement, the exercise prices of these
options were increased to $7.28 and $6.75, respectively, which were the closing prices of our commeon stock on
the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the revised measurement dates. The changes provided no additional
consideration to Mr. Akin, and we did not recognize any financial expense under SFAS 123R in connection with
the modifications.

{3) In connection with our review of historic stock option grant practices, the Company and Mr. Twombly agreed to
increase the exercise price of the unvested portion of two options granted to Mr. Twombly, on February 3, 2002
and May 6, 2002, covering 2,778 and 3,125 shares respectively. Under that agreement the exercise prices of
these options were increased to $7.28 and $6.73, respectively, which were the closing prices of our common
stock on the Nasdag Global Select Market on the revised measurement dates. The changes provided no
additional consideration to Mr. Twombly, and we did not recognize any financial expense under SFAS 123R in
connection with the modifications.

{4) These amounts reflect the grant date fair value determined by us for financial accounting purposes under
SFAS 123R for these awards and do not reflect whether the recipient has actually realized or will realize a
financial benefit from the awards (such as by exercising stock options or by vesting in a restricted stock or
restricted stock unit award). Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated
forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. Stock awards consist of restricted stock and/or restricted
stock units. For additional information on the valuation model and assumptions used to calculate the grant date
fair value of these awards, see Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing
elsewhere in Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table presents information regarding outstanding equity awards as of December 31, 2006 held
by each of our named executive officers. Option grants made before January 1, 2005 generally had a ten year term
and option grants made after January 1, 2005 generally have a five-year term. .

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2006 Year-End

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of Market Value of .
Securities Securities Option Nuitber of Shares or Shares or Units of
Underlying Underlying Exercise Option  Units of Stock That  Stock That Have
Unexercised Options Unexercised Oplions  Price  Expiration ~ Have Not Vested Not Vested
Name (#) Exercisable (#) Unexercisable ($} Date #) %)
Bobby R. Johnson, Jr. ... ............. 300,000 $ 704 8712
400,000 $1392  &/10/14 .
225,000(1) 375,000 $15.03 13111 75,000(4) 1,123,500
Timothy D. Heffner . ................ 100,000 $59.69 5722110
85,000 $11.38 . 1/9/11
79,200 $ 614 2/58/12
230,000(2) 10,000 $ 8.14 2/4113
100,000 $13.92  o/10/14
114,583 10,417 $10.31  2/11/10
46,875(1) 78,125 $15.03  1/3UL/1t 37.500(4) 561,750
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Option Awards

Stock Awards

Number of Number of . Market Value of
Securities Securities Option Number of Shares or Shares or Units of
Underlying Underlying Exercise  Option  Units of Stock That  Stock That Have
Unexercised Options Unexercised Options  Price  Expiration  Have Not Vested Not Vested
Name (#) Exercisable {#} Unexercisable [¢.3] Date #) [$3]
Lavrence L. Akin. . . ................ 85,000 $36.88 11729/10
42,500 $11.38 1/9/11
100,000 $13.35  4/26/11
20,000 $ 614  2/4/12
60,000 $ 614 2512
57,500 $ 494  5/6/12
180,000(2) 16,000 $ 8.14 214113
100,000 $13.92 &/10/14
114,583 10,417 $1031 211110
46,875(1) 78,125 $15.03 173111 18,750(4) 280,875
KenK.Cheng .. ... ... ... ........ 80,000 $59.69 3522/10
85,000 $11.38 19/11
150,000 5 6.14 2/5/12
3.646 $ 494 5/6/12
230,000(2) 10,600 $ 8.4 2/4113
120,000(3) 120,000 $13.92 6/10/i4
114,583 10,417 $10.31 2/11/110
45,000 195,000 $15.03 13111 37,500(4) 561,750
Paul L. Twombly, Jr. . ............... 90.000 $10.16  4723/11
50,000 $ 614 2512
3,125 $ 494 5/6/12
172,500(2) 7.500 $ 8.14 24n3
90,000(3) 90,000 $13.92  6/10/14
91,666 8,334 $10.31  2/11/10
28,125 121,875 $15.03 1731411 37,500(4) 561,750
Robert W. Schiff . .................. 30,000(2) 5,000 $14.27  6/2913
1,000 $16.00 B8/16/13
15,000 $21.76 212014
16,666(2) 36,584 $ 995 7/25/14 :
35,833 54,167 §1031 2711110
37,500 162,500 $15.03 1731111 37.500(4) 561,750

(1) The shares subject to the option vest quarterly over two years commencing on the grant date.
(2) The shares subject to the option vest monthly over four years commencing on the six-month anniversary of the

grant date.

{(3) The shares subject to this option vest monthly over five years commencing on the three-month anniversary of

the grant date.

(4) The shares subject to this award vest 50% on the first and second annual anniversaries of the grant date.
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Option Exercises

The following table shows information regarding option exercises by our named executive officers during
fiscal year 2006. Amounts shown under the heading *“Value Realized on Exercise” represent the difference between
the exercise price of the shares subject to the stock option and the price of our common stock on the date of exercise,
as reported by the Nasdaq Global Select Market. The value realized was determined without considering any taxes
that may have been owed, and without considering any change in value of shares retained after the date of exercise.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested
Option Awards

Number of Shares
Acquired on Value Realized on
Name Exercise (#) Exercise ($)
Bobby R. Johnson, Jr. .. ... ... .. . — —
Timothy D. HEFFMEr . - o oo e e e e 30,000 $271.436
Ken K.Cheng .. ...oo o e 61,979 $643,901
Laurence L. Akin . ... ... .. .. — ' —_
Paul L. Twombly, Jr. . . ..o e e 18,125 $149,747
Robert W. Schiff . . .. ... ... . e 48,750 $224,709

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control

We have no contract, agreement, plan or arrangement, whether written or unwritten, that provides for payment
to a named executive officer at, following or in connection with any termination of that named executive officer,
including resignation, severance, retirement or constructive termination, or upon a change of control of Foundry, or
upon a change in the named executive officer’s responsibilities with the following exception:

We have agreed to pay Paul Twombly continued payment of his base salary rate less applicable withholdings
for three months following his termination of employment as the result of a change of control. If a change of control
had occurred on December 31, 2006 and Mr. Twombly’s employment was terminated as a result of the change of
control, the total cash payments would be $90,000 less applicable withholdings for this period.

Director Compensation

During fiscal year 2006, we paid our non-employee members of the Board of Directors an annual retainer of
$30,000. An additional annual retainer of $10,000 was paid to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Each non-
employee Board member also received a stock option award of 60,000 shares pursuant to the automatic provision of
the 1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan. In April 2007, the annual automatic grant to each non-employee member of
the Board of Directors was reduced to an annual stock option award of 40,000 shares and the initial automatic stock
option grant to each newly elected or appointed non-employee member of the Board of Directors was reduced to an
award of 100,000 shares (prior to this change the stock option award was 225,000 shares). No new non-employee
members of the Board of Directors were appointed to the Board of Directors in 2006.
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The following table summarizes the cash compensation paid to our non-employee members of the Board of

Directors for their services on the Board of Directors and its committees in fiscal year 2006.

(n

(2)

Director Compensation

Fees Earned or Option
Name Paid in Cash (§) Awards ($)(1) Total ($)
Alfred J. AmMOroso . . ..o v i e e e e $30,000 $367,155 $397,155
AlanL. Earhart . . ... ... ... . ... ... .. ....... $40.,000 $792,204 $832,204
C. Nicholas Keating, Jr. ........................ $30,000 $367,155 $397.155
JSteven Young. ............. i, $30,000 $367,155  $397,155
Andrew K. Ludwick ... ... ...... . ... ... ....... $15,00002) $330,255 $345,255

Represents amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2006 in accordance with SFAS 123R, for stock options (which may or may not have been granted in fiscal year
2006), disregarding the estimate of forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. On June 16, 2006, each of
Messrs. Keating, Amoroso, Young and Earhart were automatically granted an option to purchase 60,000 shares of
Company common stock. Each such option award had an aggregate grant date fair value for financial statement
reporting purposes under SFAS 123R of $272,280. For additional information on the valuation model and
assumptions used to calculate the grant date fair value of these options, see Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2006. At December 31, 2006, the non-employee members of the Board of Directors held exercisable options as
follows: Mr. Amoroso, 560,000 shares; Mr. Earhart, 405,000 shares; Mr. Keating, 540,000 shares; and Mr. Young,
641,250 shares. Mr. Ludwick had no outstanding options at December 31, 2006,

Mr. Ludwick ceased to be a director on June 16, 2006. Amounts in this column represent fees earned by
Mr. Ludwick through that date.

In April 2007 the Board of Directors approved the following changes to the cash compensation that each of its

non-employee members of the Board of Directors shall receive on an annual basis:

Position Annual Compensation
(Effective April 19, 2007)

Applicable to All Non-Employee Directors:

Member of Board of Directors $40,000
As Appropriate (in addition to above compensation):

Audit Committee Chair $15,000
Compensation Committee Chair $10,000
Nominating Committee Chair $10,000
Committee Member (audit, compensation $5,000*
and nominating committees onty)

Chairman of the Board $50,000%*

* Such amount to be paid to committee members not serving as chair.

** The Chairman of the Board shall not receive compensation for committees or other chairs.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the Compensation Committee members (i} has ever been an officer or employee of the Company, (ii) is

or was a participant in a “related person” transaction in 2006, or (iii) is an executive officer of another entity, at
which one of our executive officers serves on the Board of Directors, None of our executive officers served on the
Compensation Committee or board of another company, whose executive served on our Board of Directors or
Compensation Committee.
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Compensation Committee Report

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of Foundry’s filings under the Securities Act of 1933
or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that might incorporate future filings, including this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, in whole or in part, the following report shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any
such filings.

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with the management of Foundry the Compen-
sation Discussion and Analysis appearing earlier in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on this review and
discussion, the Compensation Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis be included in Foundry’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006.

Submitted by the Compensation
Committee:

C. Nicholas Keating, Jr. (Chairman)
Alfred J. Amoroso (Former member)
J. Steven Young

Celeste Volz Ford (New member)

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The following table presents information concerning the beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock
as of May 31, 2007 by:

« each person who is known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock;
= each of our directors;

« each of our named executive officers; and

« all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

The number and percentage of shares beneficially owned are based on 147,550,883 shares of common stock
outstanding as of May 31, 2007. Beneficial ownership is determined under the rules and regulations of the SEC.
Shares of common stock subject to options or warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
of May 31, 2007 are deemed to be outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the options or warrants
for the purposes of computing the number of shares beneficially owned and the percentage ownership of that person,
but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.
The persons listed in this table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our common
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stock shown as beneficially owned by them, except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, and subject to
applicable community property laws.

Amount and

Nature of Percent of
Beneficial Common
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Ownership Stock(1)

Greater than 5% Stockholders:

Royce & Associates, LLC(2) . ... .. ... e 14,927,500 10.12%
1414 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10019

Officers and Directors:

Bobby R. Johnson, JL(3) .. . o e e 12,110,379 8.15%
Timothy D. Heffner(4) . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .., e e 1,480,955 1.00%
Ken K. Cheng(5) . . . oo oo e e e e 1,273,880 *
Laurence L. AKIN(B) . ... ... . e 375,610 *
Robert Schiff{7 ). . - o oo s 225,963 *
Paul L. Twombly(8) . . . . .. e 613,903 *
Alfred J. AMOroso(0) . . .ot oo e e 474,750 *
C. Nicholas Keating, J.(10) . . ... .. . e 453,750 *
o Steven Young( Ll . .o e e e e 555,000 *
Alan L. Earhart(12) . . ... e 314,062 *
Celeste Volz FOrd . . ... .. i e e e e e e e — *
All directors and executive officers as a group (13) (i3 persons) . . .............. 17,421,384 11.35%

*  Less than 1% of the outstanding shares of common stock. Except as otherwise noted, the address of each
person listed in this table is c/o Foundry Networks, Inc., 4980 Great America Parkway, Santa Clara,
California, 95054,

(1) Foreach person and group included in the table, percentage ownership is calculated by dividing the number of
shares beneficially owned by such person or group as described above by the sum of the 147,550,883 shares of
common stock outstanding on May 31, 2007 and the number of shares of common stock that such person or
group had the right to acquire on or within 60 days of that date, including, but not limited to, the exercise of
options.

(2) Beneficial and percentage ownership information is based on information contained in Schedule 13G filed
with the SEC on January 19, 2007 by Royce & Associates, LLC. The Schedule 13G indicates that Royce &
Associates, LLC owns beneficially 14,927,500 shares,

(3) Includes 1,075,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007.

{(4)" Includes 807,325 shares issuable upon the exercise of options held by Mr. Heffner which are exercisable
within sixty days of May 31, 2007. Also includes 16,425 shares held by The Nicole M. Heffner Trust,
16,425 shares held by The Krysta M. Heffner Trust and 16,425 shares held by The Tyler B. Heffner Trust.
Mr. Heftner disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by The Nicole M. Heffner Trust, The Krysta M.
Heffner Trust and The Tyler B, Heffner Trust.

(5) Includes 906,646 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of

May 31, 2007.

(6) Includes 858,125 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007.

{7} Includes 195,166 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007. '
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(8) Includes 581,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007.

(9) Includes 473,750 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007. Also includes 1,000 shares held by the Amoroso Family Trust dated 4/2/00, for which
Mr. Amoroso serves as co-trustee with his wife.

(10) Includes 453,750 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007.

(11) Includes 555,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007.

(12) Includes 314,062 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007.

{(13) Includes 5,875,005 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which are exercisable within sixty days of
May 31, 2007.

Securities Authorized for Issvance nnder Equity Compensation Plans

The following table presents information about our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of
options, warrants and rights under all of our existing equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2006, including
the 1996 Stock Plan, the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the 1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, the 2000
Non-Executive Stock Option Plan and the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future issuance
under equity

Number of compensation
securities to be Weighted-average plans {(excluding
issued upon exercise - exercise price of securities
of outstanding outstanding reflected in
Plan Category options(a) options(b) column (a))(c}
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders:
2006 Stock Incentive Plan. . ... .......... 978,500 $12.92 25,021,500
1996 Stock Plan. .. ......... ... ... .. .. 27,062,547 $13.31 -—(1)
1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. . ... .. — — 6,628,776(2)
1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan ........ 1,991,250 $31.43 1,135.000
Equity compensation plans not approved by
stockholders:
2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan. . . .. 1,717,615 $12.73 246,163

(1) Because the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan was approved at the 2006 Annual Meeting, no further grants were made
under the 1996 Stock Plan after the date of the Annual Meeting. The number of shares reserved for issuance
under the 1996 Stock Plan has increased on the first day of each fiscal year through 2006 by the lesser of
(i) 5,000,000 shares, (ii} 5% of our outstanding common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding
fiscal year or (iii} the number of shares determined by the Board of Directors.

(2) The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan will be increased on
the first day of each fiscal year through 2009 by the lesser of (i) 1,500,000 shares, (ii) 2% of our outstanding
common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year or (iii} the number of shares determined
by the Board of Directors.
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2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan

In October 2000, our Board of Directors approved the 2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan (the “Non-
Executive Plan”) pursuant to which non-qualified stock options may be granted to our employees who are not
officers or directors. In October 2000, we allocated for issuance under the Non-Executive Plan approximately
2,000,000 shares that we had repurchased from departing employees upon cessation of their employment with us,
which shares did not become available for reissuance under the 1996 Stock Plan. In July 2002, we allocated an
additional 1,776,620 shares that we had repurchased from departing employees upon cessation of their employment
with us, which shares did not become available for reissuance under the 1996 Stock Plan. We did not obtain
stockholder approval of the Non-Executive Plan or the increase to the Non-Executive Plan in July 2002. As of
December 31, 2005, 3,772,808 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the Non-Executive Plan,
of which 1,717,615 shares were subject to outstanding options and 246,163 shares were available for future grant.

The purpose of the Non-Executive Plan is to promote our success by linking the interests of our non-executive
employees to those of our stockholders and by providing participants with an incentive for outstanding perfor-
mance. The Non-Executive Plan authorizes the granting of non-qualified stock options only. The exercise price of
an option may not be less than the fair market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant and no option may
have a tern of more than ten years. All of the options that are currently outstanding under the Non-Executive Plan
vest ratably over a four-year period beginning at the grant date and expire ten years from the date of grant. The
Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee may amend or terminate the Non-Executive Plan without
stockholder approval, but no amendment or termination of the Non-Executive Plan or any award agreement may
adversely affect any award previously granted under the Non-Executive Plan without the written consent of the
participant. We will seek stockholder approval for any amendment to the Non-Executive Plan as required by
applicable law, Nasdaq listing standards or such rules or regulations to which it is otherwise subject.

Item 13. Certain Relutionships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
Transaction with Related Persons

Since the beginning of fiscal year 2006, there has not been, nor is there currently proposed, any transaction or
series of similar transactions to which we were or are a party in which the amount involved exceeds or exceeded
$120,000 and in which any director, executive officer or beneficial holder of more than 5% of any class of our voting
securities or such person’s immediate family members had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

Policy Regarding Transactions with Related Persons

We have no policy with respect to entering into transactions with members of management or affiliated
companies. The practice of our Board of Directors has been to have the disinteresied members of the Board of
Directors review and vote on any non-arm’s length transaction.

Director Independence

Each of the directors, except Mr. Johnson, is independent under current rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.

Item 14, Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The Audit Committee has appointed Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007.
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The following table shows the fees incurred by us for the audit and other services provided by Ernst & Young
LLP for fiscal years 2006 and 2005.

2006 2005
(In thousands)

Audit Fees(l}):

Core audit fE8S . . .. oottt e e $2,519  $1,136
Audit fees related to restatement and independent stock option investigation. .. 3,944 —
Tax FEes(2) . oot e 44 243
All other Fees(3). . o oot it i e 0 30
TOlAl . . e e $6,507 31,409

(1) Audit fees represent fees for professional services provided in connection with the audit of our financial
statements and review of our quarterly financial statements and audit services provided in connection with other
statutory or regulatory filings. We have incurred total audit fees for fiscal 2006 of $6.5 million, of which
approximately $2.5 million was for our core audit fees and approximately $3.9 million was related to the audit
of our restated financial statements and the review of the independent investigation into our historical stock
option practices. Fiscal 2006 Audit fees paid or accrued as of December 31, 2006 were approximately
$2.6 million. We had no Audit-Related fees for fiscal 2006 or 2005.

(2) Tax fees are for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

(3) Al other fees consisted primarily of special consultations.

The Audit Committee has the authority to pre-approve audit-related and non-audit services not prohibited by
law to be performed by our independent registered public accounting firm and the associated fees. The Audit
Committee pre-approves all audit and other permitted non-audit services provided by our independent registered
public accounting firm. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other
services. Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year, and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular
services or category of services and is subject to a budget. Our independent registered public accounting firm and
our senior management are required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of the
services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm in accordance with a pre-approval, and the
fees for the services performed to date. The Audit Committee Chairman may also pre-approve particular services on
a case-by-case basis.

All services provided by Ernst & Young LLP during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 were approved
by the Audit Committee.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:
(1) Consolidated Financial Statements and Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
(2) Financial Statement Schedules
See liem 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying
Accounts.” Other schedules are omitted either because they are not applicable or because the information is

included in the Financial Statements or the Notes thereto.
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(3) Exhibits (numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K)
Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Foundry Networks, Inc. (Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed as Exhibit 3.2 to registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form §-1 (Commission File No. 333-82577) and incorporated herein by reference; Certificate of
Amendment to the foregoing filed as Exhibit 3.1 to registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference.)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Foundry Networks, Inc. (Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.)

10.1 1996 Stock Plan.*(1)

10.2 Form of Stock Option Agreement under registrant’s 1996 Stock Plan.*(1)

10.3 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended.*

104 1999 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (including related form agreements), as amended.*
10.5 Form of Indemnification Agreement. (2)

10.6 OEM Purchase Agreement dated January 6, 1999 between Foundry Networks, Inc. and Hewlett-
Packard Company, Workgroup Networks Division. (3)

10.7 Reseller Agreement dated July 1, 1997 between Foundry Networks, Inc. and Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (3)
10.8 2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan.*(4)
10.9 Form of Stock Option Agreement under registrant’s 2000 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan.*(4)

10.10  Lease agreement dated September 28, 1999, between Foundry Networks, Inc., and Legacy Partners
Commercial Inc., for offices located at 2100 Gold Street, San Jose, CA 95002 (5)

10.11  Confidential Settlement Agreement and Release, effective October 25, 2004, by and between Nortel
Networks Limited, Nortel Networks, Inc., Foundry Networks, Inc., Bobby R. Johnson, Jr., H. Earl
Ferguson, deceased, and Jeffrey Prince. (6)

10.12  Sublease agreement dated March 25, 2003, between Foundry Networks, Inc. and Hyperion Solutions
- Corporation, for offices located at 4980 Great America Parkway, Santa Clara, CA 95054. (7)

10.13  Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement under the registrant’s 1996 Stock Plan. *(1)

10.14 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.*(8)

10.15 2006 Stock Incentive Plan-Form of Stock Grant Agreement *(8)

10.16 2006 Stock Incentive Plan-Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agreement *8)
10.17 2006 Stock Incentive Plan-Form of Stock Unit Agreement. *(8)

10,18 2006 Stock Incentive Plan-Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement. ¥(8)

21.1 List of Subsidiaries.

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934,

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 18 U.5.C. Section 1350

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(1) Copy of original 1996 Stock Plan and related form of Stock Option Agreement incorporated herein by reference
to the exhibit filed with registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Commission File No. 333-82577).
Copy of 1996 Stock Plan reflecting the amendments approved at the 2000 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
incorporated by reference to registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for such meeting (Commission File
No. 000-26689). Copy of 1996 Stock Plan reflecting the amendments for approval at the 2002 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders incorporated by reference to registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for such meeting
(Commission File No. 000-26689). Copy of Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement under the 1996
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Stock Plan is incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005 (Commission File No. 000-26689). -

(2) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with régistram’s Registration Statement on Form $-1
(Commission File No. 333-82577).

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Commission File No. 333-82577); Confidential treatment has been granted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission with respect to this exhibit.

(4) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with registrant’s Registration Statement on Form $-8 filed
on October 25, 2000 (Commission File No. 333-48560).

(5) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with registrant’s Form 10-Q} for the quarter ended
September 30, 1999 (Commission File No. 000-26689).

(6) Incorporated by reference from registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2005 (Com-
mission File No. 000-26689).

(7) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2005 (Commission File No. 000-26689). :

(8) Copy of 2006 Stock Incentive Plan approved at the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders incorporated by
reference to the exhibits filed with registrant’s Form 8-K on June 22, 2006 (Commission File No. 000-26689).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Foundry Networks, Inc.
{Registrant)

By: {s/  Daniel W. Fairfax
Daniel W. Fairfax
Vice President, Finance & Administration
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer &
Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: June 14, 2007

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Bobby R. Johnson Jr. and Danief W, Fairfax, jointly and severally, his attorneys-in-fact, each with the
power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said atiormeys-in-fact, or his
substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the reciuirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/  Alfred J. Amoroso Chairman of the Board of Directors June 8, 2007
Alfred J. Amoroso

/s Bobby R, Johnson, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer June &, 2007
Bobby R. Johnson, Jr. (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/  Daniel W. Fairfax Vice President, Finance & June 8, 2007
Daniel W. Fairfax Administration, Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

/st C. Nicholas Keating, Jr. Director June 8, 2007
C. Nicholas Keating, Jr.

/s/ 1. Steven Young Director June 12, 2007
J. Steven Young

/s/  Alan L. Earhart Director June 8, 2007
Alan L. Earhart

/s/  Celeste Voiz Ford Director June 8, 2007
Celeste Volz Ford
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John Sutherland
Chief Technology Officer
New Your Law School

NEW YORK LAW SCHOOL

-

FOUNDRY’S PRODUCT PERFORMANCE AND RQUALITY, HIGH
LEVEL OF CUSTOMER SERVICE AND EXTRAORDINARY SENSE
OF URGENCY HAS RESULTED IN A STRONG FOUNDATION
FOR DUR NEW INFRASTRUCTURE. WE NOW FEEL WELL
POSITIONED TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF CURRENT AND
FUTURE BREAKTHROUGHS IN NETWORKING, APPLICATION,
COMMUNICATIONS AND SECURITY ADVANGCES.”

AMSTERDAM INTERNET EXCHANGE

Henk Steenman 4 AMS-IX HIT A HISTORICAL MILESTONE IN NOVEMBER WHEN
Chief Technical Officer TRAFFIC FLOWING ACROSS OUR INFRASTRUCTURE EXCEEDED
AMS-IX Z200G8PS. THE EASE OF MIGRATION BETWEEN FOUNDRY
PRODUCTS TO SUPPORT THIS GROWTH, COMBINED WITH THE
SERVICE AND SUPPORT RECEIVED BY FOUNDRY NETWORKS
HAS BEEN A VITAL FACTOR IN DUR SUCCESS.”
LONDON INTERNET EXCHANGE
Mike Hughes “ WE KNEW WE'D HAVE TO BUY NEW CHASSIS TD COPE WITH
Chief Technology Officer CUSTOMER DEMAND. WE'RE GETTING TWICE THE GIG AND
Londen Internet Exchange 10 GIG PORT DENSITIES WITH THE RX SWITCHES AT HALF
THE COST OF OTHER SOLUTIONS.”
FROST & SULLIVAN
Sam Masud 4 WITH THE INTRODUCTION OF THE NETIRON XMR AND MLX SERIES

Principal Analyst
Carrier Infrastructure
Frost & Sullivan

CORE AND METRO ROUTER SQLUTIONS, FOUNDRY STRENGTHENS ITS
POSITION IN THE ROUTER MARKET BY RAISING THE PRICE‘-PERFORMANCE
BENCHMARK FOR ADDRESSING CAPACITY ISSUES SERVICE PROVIDERS
ARE TACKLING.”
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Bobby R. Johnsen, Jr.
President, CEQ, and Chairman
of the Board of Directors
Foundry Networks, Inc.

Nick Keating, Jr.
President and CEO
Network Equipment Technologies, Inc.

Alfted J. Amoroso
President, Chicf Executive Officer and
Director of Macrovision Corporation

J. Steven Young
Managing Partner of Sorenson Capital

Alan L. Earhart
Retired Partner
PricewaterthouseCoopers, LLP

Celeste Volz Ford
CEOQ and Chairman
Stellar Solutions, Inc.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERB

Bobby R. Johnson, Jr.
President, CEQ, and Chairman
of the Board of Directors

Daniel W. Fairfax

Vice President, Finance and
Administration, and Chief
Financial Officer

Ken K. Cheng

Vice President and General Manager,
High Value Layer 2/3 Systems
Business Unit

Lawrence L. Akin
SentorVice President, Worldwide Sales

Paul L. Twombly
Vice President, Custotner Support

Richard W. Bridges
WVice President, Manufacturing

John P. Burger
Vice President, Hardware Engineering

Robere W, Schiff
Vice President, Enterprise Business Unit

Benjamin 1), Taft
Vice President,
Marketing Communications

Cliff G. Moore
Vice President, General Counsel

Michael R, Tburg
Vice President, Treasurer

Lisa McGill
Vice President, Human Resources

-

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Foundry Nerworks, Inc.

4980 Great America Parkway

Santa Clara, CA 95054

Tel: +1 408.207.1700

Fax: +1 408.207.1709

Web Address: www.foundrynetworks.com

FOREIGN OFFICES

Foundry Networks

(UK.) Ltd,

Unit 4 Bracknell Beeches
Bracknell, Berkshire RG12 1RT
England

Tel: +44(0)1344.398900

Foundry Nerworks GmbH
Einsteinscrasse 14

85716 Unterschleissheim
Gernuny

Tel: +49 89.374262.10

Foundry Networks
France $.A.R.L,

21E rue Jacques Cartier
78960 Voisins le Bretonneux
France

Tel: +33(0)1.39.30.41.50

Foundry Networks
Canada Company
195 The West Mall
Suite 1102
Toronto, Ontario
M9C 5K1

Tel: 416.626.3435

Foundry Networks

Singapore, PTE Luid.

391A Orchard Road

#12-01 Ngee Ann City Tower A
Singapore 238873

Tel; +65.6838.5160

Foundry Networks
Hong Kong Office
21st Floor, ICBC Tower
Citibank Plaza

No. 3 Garden Road
Hong Kong

Fax: +852 2273 5999

Foundry Networks
{Netherlands) B.V.
Stephensonweg 14

PO Box 709

4200 AS, Gorinchem
MNetherlands

Tel: +31(0)183.646.030

Foundry Networks
Teatia S.r.l.

Magnolia Business Center
Via Pavese 1/3

20089 Rozzane (M}

Lzaly
Tel: +39 02.57554305

Foundry Networks
Sankt Eriksgatan 46 C
11234 Stockholm
Sweden

Tel: 0046 8 562 666 96

Foundty Networks

Middle East

Office 113, Lst Floor, DMC Bkig 1
Dubai Internet Ciry

PO Box 500037

Dubai

UAE
Tel: 971 4 3910530

Foundry Networks
Japan K.K.

The Imperial Tower 7F
1-1-1, Uchisaiwai-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
Japan 100-0011

Tel: +81 3.3519.5351

Foundry Networks
Australia

Level 2, 56 Berry Street
North Sydney NSW 2060
Australia

Tel: +612.9455.0299

Foundry Networks

India

404,“A" Wing, Carlton Towers
No.1, Airport Road
Bangalore-560008

India

Tel: +91 B0 41482022/41452023

Foundry Networks do Brasil Ltda
Avenida Paulista 2300

Andar Pilotis-—cjto 008 Sio Paulo
Sio Paulo-zip $1310-300

Brazil

Tel: +55 1] 6847.4654

Foundry Networks

Korea

POSCO Center BD

“West Tower 11th Floor

892 Dhaechi 4 Deng, Kangnam-Ku
Seoul, Korea

Tel; 82.2.559.0660

TRANSFER AGENT

ULS. Stock Transfer Corporation
1745 Gardena Avenue

Glendale, CA 91204-1504

Tel: $18.502.1404

Fax: 818,502.0674

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Ernst & Young LLP
Palo Alto, CA

LEGAL COUNBSEL

Orrick, Herrington & Succliffe LLP
Menlo Pack, CA

ANNUAL MEETING

The 2007 Annual Mcetng will

be held at 2:00 p.m. Jocal dme,

on Monday, July 23, 2007, at the
Hyatt Regency Santa Clana Hotel,
tocated at 5101 Great America
Parkway, Santa Clara, CA 95054,
All stockholders are cordially
invited to attend.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Financial Dynamics

44 Montgomery Street, Suite 1500
San Prancisco, CA 94104

Tel: 415.439.4504

Fax: 415.296.0446

Foundry Networks Investor Relations
4980 Great America Parkway

Santa Clara, CA 95054

Tel: +1 408.207.139%

Fax: +1 408.207.170%

Ermuil: ir@foundrynet.com

You tnay also visit our website
at www.foundrynetworks.com

cCOMMON STQCK

Foundry’s common stock is publicly
traded on the NASDAQ National
Market under the symbol FDRY,
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